
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ENVIRONMENT & TRANSPORT CABINET COMMITTEE 
 

Thursday, 17th March, 2022 
 

10.00 am 
 

Council Chamber 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 





 
 

AGENDA 
 

ENVIRONMENT & TRANSPORT CABINET COMMITTEE 
 

Thursday, 17 March 2022 at 10.00 am Ask for: Matt Dentten 
Council Chamber, County Hall, Maidstone Telephone: 03000 414534 
 
 
Membership (16) 
 
Conservative (12): Mr S Holden (Chairman), Mr Baker, Mr C Beart, Mr T Bond, 

Mr N J Collor, Mr D Crow-Brown, Mr M Dendor, Mr A R Hills, 
Mrs S Hudson, Mrs L Parfitt-Reid, Mr A Sandhu, MBE and 
Mr D Watkins 
 

Labour (2): Ms M Dawkins and Mr B H Lewis 
 

Liberal Democrat (1): Mr I S Chittenden 
 

Green and 
Independent (1): 

Mr M Baldock 
 

 
 

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS 
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public) 

 

1 Introduction/Webcast announcement  

2 Election of Vice Chairman  

3  Membership  

 To note that Mr Avtar Sandhu MBE has replaced Mr Rory Love OBE as a member 
of this committee. 
 

4  Apologies and Substitutes  

 To receive apologies for absence and notification of any substitutes present. 
 

5  Declarations of Interest by Members in items on the Agenda  

 To receive any declarations of interest made by Members in relation to any matter on 
the agenda.  Members are reminded to specify the agenda item number to which it 
refers and the nature of the interest being declared. 
 

6  Minutes of the meetings held on 18 January and 18 February 2022 (Pages 1 - 14) 

 To consider and approve the minutes as a correct record. 



 

7 Verbal Updates by Cabinet Members and Corporate Director  

8 Decisions taken between Cabinet Committee Meetings (Pages 15 - 16) 

9 22/00022 - Active Travel Funding Tranche 2 (Pages 17 - 26) 

10 22/00023 - Transport for the South East continuation of voluntary participation 
(Pages 27 - 38) 

11 22/00025 - Bearsted Road Improvement Scheme (Pages 39 - 56) 

12 22/00026 - Heritage Conservation Strategy (Pages 57 - 102) 

13 22/00029 - Solar Farm - To follow  

14 Green Economy - Prospects and Opportunities (Pages 103 - 114) 

15 Risk Register (Pages 115 - 130) 

16 Performance Dashboard (Pages 131 - 142) 

17 Work Programme (Pages 143 - 146) 

 

EXEMPT ITEMS 

(At the time of preparing the agenda there were no exempt items.  During any such items 
which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public) 

 
Benjamin Watts 
General Counsel 
03000 416814 
 
 
Wednesday, 9 March 2022 
 
rt. 
 



1 

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

 

ENVIRONMENT & TRANSPORT CABINET COMMITTEE 
 
MINUTES of a meeting of the Environment & Transport Cabinet Committee held 
Online on Tuesday, 18 January 2022. 
 
PRESENT: Mr S Holden (Chairman), Mr R C Love, OBE (Vice-Chairman), Mr Baker, 
Mr M Baldock, Mr C Beart, Mr T Bond, Mr I S Chittenden, Mr N J Collor, Mr D Crow-
Brown, Ms M Dawkins, Mr M Dendor, Mr A R Hills, Mrs S Hudson, Mr B H Lewis, 
Mrs L Parfitt-Reid and Mr D Watkins 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mr P J Oakford (Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance, 
Corporate and Traded Services), Mr D L Brazier (Cabinet Member for Highways and 
Transport), Miss S J Carey (Cabinet Member for Environment), Mr M A J Hood, 
Mr H Rayner and Ms L Wright 
 
IN ATTENDANCE: Mr S Jones (Corporate Director for Growth, Environment and 
Transport), Mrs S Holt-Castle (Director of Growth and Communities), Mr P Lightowler 
(Interim Director of Transportation) and Mr M Dentten (Democratic Services Officer) 
 

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS 
 
46. Declarations of Interest by Members in items on the Agenda  
(Item 3) 
 
No declarations were made. 
 
47. Minutes of the meeting held on 3 November 2021  
(Item 4) 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 3 November 2021 were an 
accurate record and that they be signed by the Chairman. 
 
48. Verbal Updates by Cabinet Members and Corporate Director  
(Item 5) 
 

1. The chairman informed the committee that Barbara Cooper, formerly 
Corporate Director of Growth, Environment and Transport, had been awarded 
an MBE in the New Year Honours, for services to Transport and the Covid-19 
Response.  
 

2. Mr Brazier gave a verbal update. He informed members that he had visited the 
newly renovated Swanley and Maidstone East train stations, which KCC 
secured funding for through the South East Local Enterprise Partnership. He 
confirmed that Ashford Truckstop had opened in December 2021 and 
accommodated overnight lorry parking facilities. He noted that he had 
attended the ADEPT Live Labs Expo in Derby. Regarding the London Gatwick 
emergency runway consultation, he informed members that KCC had 
submitted its strong opposition to the proposal.  

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 6



 

2 

RESOLVED that the verbal update be noted. 
 
49. Petition Scheme Debate - Proposed cycle lanes in Cheriton  
(Item 7) 
 

1. The chairman informed the committee that the lead petitioner would no longer 
be addressing the committee. 

 
2. Mr Love, as a local member, provided a verbal overview of the petition 

statement and outlined the anticipated impact of the proposed cycle lanes, 
which included a negative impact on local businesses as a result of decreased 
roadside parking. He acknowledged the significant level of public support and 
confirmed that two public meetings involving himself and Mr Jeffrey were held 
in October 2021 to understand the possible local impact of the proposals.  
 

3. Mr Brazier responded to the petition. He confirmed that a public consultation 
had taken place and that following the local response the scheme would not 
proceed. He noted that there would be further investigations into other ways to 
facilitate active travel in the area and that these proposals would be brought to 
the committee in due course. He made a commitment to work with local 
members on future schemes of a similar nature. 
 

4. Mr Love proposed and Mr Holden seconded a motion that “the Environment 
and Transport Cabinet Committee:  
 
a) note the petition and thank Mr John Baker, the lead petitioner and 

proprietor of County Hardware, Cheriton, for taking the time to submit 
his petition; 

 
b) join with the petitioner in recommending to the Cabinet Member for 

Highways and Transportation not to proceed with the current 
Cheriton active travel scheme; and 

 
c) recommend that the Cabinet Member works with the local Members to 

consider the feasibility of alternative proposals which safeguard the 
economic vibrancy of Cheriton High Street.” 

 
5. The motion was agreed unanimously. 

 
RESOLVED to: 

 
a) note the petition and thank Mr John Baker, the proprietor of County 

Hardware, Cheriton, for taking the time to submit his petition; 
 
b) join with the petitioner in recommending to the Cabinet Member for 

Highways and Transportation not to proceed with the current Cheriton 
active travel scheme; and 

 
c) recommend that the Cabinet Member works with the local Members to 

consider the feasibility of alternative proposals which safeguard the 
economic vibrancy of Cheriton High Street. 

 

Page 2



 

3 

50. 21/00118 - Active Travel Capital Projects  
(Item 9) 
 
Nikola Floodgate (Schemes Planning and Delivery Manager) was in attendance for 
this item. 
 

1. Mrs Floodgate gave a technical overview of the proposed executive decision 
and related scheme, which included scheme timelines, public consultation 
results and reference to previous projects of a similar nature endorsed by the 
committee.  

 
2. Mr Chittenden highlighted the improved arrangements for the Active Travel 

Tranche 2 schemes in comparison to Tranche 1. He noted that greater time for 
consultation and assessment of each scheme’s impact were the main reasons 
for the improvement. Mr Brazier reminded members of the tight time 
constraints set by the Department for Transport in Tranche 1 which impact the 
ability to hold a full scoping and public consultation process.  
 

3. Ms Dawkins thanked the officers involved in the proposed scheme for 
cooperating with her as the local member and noted the significant level of 
public support. 
 

4. Mr Watkins reminded members of the important benefits related to active 
travel, which included: health, environmental and economic improvements. 
 

5.  Mrs Wright asked that disabled access be considered in all future schemes 
and that electric charging points for mobility scooters be investigated, if within 
the funding guidelines. Mrs Floodgate agreed to investigate the request with 
the Department for Transport. 

 
RESOLVED to endorse the proposed decision of the Cabinet Member for Highways 
and Transport to proceed to the detailed design and then construction of the 
Canterbury: Littlebourne to City Centre Active Travel scheme. 
 
51. 21/00116 - National Bus Strategy and Kent Bus Service Improvement Plan: 
Next Steps and implementation of Kent Enhanced Partnerships  
(Item 10) 
 
Stephen Pay (Public Transport Planning and Operations Manager) and Dan Bruce 
(Policy, Infrastructure and Community Transport Manager) were in attendance for 
this item. 
 

1. Mr Brazier explained the reasons for the proposed executive key decision and 
informed members of the deadline, set by the Department for Transport, of 
April 2022 to form Enhanced Partnership Agreements with bus operators. He 
gave a summary of developments to that point. He confirmed that KCC had 
not yet received confirmation of its funding allocation from the Department for 
Transport. Mr Lightowler further explained that a function of Enhanced 
Partnerships was to act as a mechanism for funding bus service investment. 
 

2. Mr Bruce gave an overview of the National Bus Strategy. A number of key 
points were highlighted and included: that local authorities were enablers of 

Page 3



 

4 

bus service improvements; that incentives in ticketing infrastructure were 
required; that £1.2bn had been allocated to the strategy nationally; and that 
public feedback had been used to inform the contents of the strategy. He 
confirmed that the Kent Bus Service Improvement Plan included 47 proposals, 
which would be open for public consultation. He informed members that 
confirmation of the funding allocation was expected in February 2022. He 
noted that bus usage in Kent stood at 60% of its pre-pandemic level, with 
Government subsidising operators to March 2022.  
 

3. Mr Baldock raised his concerns that the deadlines set by the Department for 
Transport would lead to a hurried allocation of funding, which could impact 
transport links across Kent. Mr Lightowler reassured members that the service 
planning process took account of usage, geography, service patterns and 
operators. 
 

4. Mr Love commented that bus operators were capable of engaging customers 
and making service improvements without KCC oversight. He asked that 
digital displays at bus stops be installed to the greatest possible extent. 
 

5. Mr Bond observed that there had been a trend of falling bus use before the 
pandemic. He asked what could be done to encourage car users to use public 
transport. Mr Lightowler confirmed that increasing bus usage was a core 
principle of the strategy, with a dual focus on pandemic recovery and medium 
term growth.  
 

6. Members asked that the Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport write to 
the Department for Transport highlighting concerns related to the deadlines 
associated with the National Bus Strategy and the possible impact they could 
have on delivery. 

 
RESOLVED to endorse the Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport on the 
proposed decision to support the proposed next steps and specifically the Executive 
Decision to form Enhanced Partnership Schemes. 
 
52. Draft Ten Year Capital Programme, Revenue Budget 2022-23 and Medium 
Term Financial Plan 2022-25  
(Item 8) 
 
Peter Oakford (Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance, Corporate and 
Traded Services), Zena Cooke (Corporate Director of Finance), Dave Shipton (Head 
of Finance Policy, Planning and Strategy) and Cath Head (Head of Finance 
Operations) were in attendance for this item. 
 

1. Mr Oakford introduced the Draft Ten Year Capital Programme, Revenue 
Budget 2022-23 and Medium Term Financial Plan 2022-25 proposals. He 
addressed the financial context that the budget had been drafted in, which 
included continued costs related to the pandemic, changes in work practices 
and increases in service demand. He confirmed that the Ten Year Capital 
Programme had been drafted to prevent project slippage. Regarding 
borrowing, he reassured members that it would only be used if required to fulfil 
statutory duties. He stated that whilst central government funding and the tax 
base had increased, that they would not cover costs increases without 

Page 4



 

5 

savings. Further reassurance was given that future savings would go out for 
public consultations and involve individual executive key decisions.   
 

2. Mr Jones provided a technical overview of the £173.8m Growth, Environment 
and Transport portion of the draft revenue budget, which represented a £3.7m 
reduction from 2021-22. He addressed the key financial challenges faced by 
the directorate which included scarcity in supply, price increases, asset 
investment requirements and increased service demand. He reassured the 
committee that the directorate’s financial position was sustainable. Addressing 
the £1.5bn capital budget, he confirmed that most of the programme was 
funded through government grants and external funding. He raised concerns 
at the reduction in Department for Transport highways asset management 
grant funding from £73m to £59m. 
 

3. Mr Brazier addressed key budget developments within his portfolio. He 
explained the cost pressures and acknowledged the complexity of the revenue 
budget. He confirmed that a reduction in the subsidy of the Kent Travel Saver 
scheme was included in the draft budget, which necessitated a price increase 
in the pass from £370 to £450 per academic year. The committee were 
informed that a separate key decision would be taken following the approval of 
the budget at County Council on 10 February. He highlighted a proposed 
£300,000 investment in rural swathe maintenance, which sought to support 
KCC’s commitments to biodiversity. He added that in excess of £500,000 had 
been allocated to fund Active Travel and Vision Zero projects.  
 

4. Mr Baldock commented that given recent increases in population and service 
demand it was difficult to provide the same levels of service without further 
Government grant funding. He raised his concerns at the impact of the 
reduction in highways asset management grant funding on the network.  
 

5. Ms Dawkins shared her concerns at the possible impact of the Kent Travel 
Saver price increase on families given the additional financial burden. Mr 
Brazier recognised the impact and acknowledged the difficulty faced in setting 
a balanced budget. He added that the subsidy of the scheme was non-
statutory. He addressed alternative options which included withdrawing the 
scheme altogether and stated that the proposed change represented a lesser 
of two evils. 

 
RESOLVED to note the draft capital and revenue budgets including responses to 
consultation. 
 
53. Decisions taken between Cabinet Committee Meetings  
(Item 6) 
 

1. Miss Carey explained that key decision 21/00109, Kings Hill Solar Park, was 
taken between meetings of the Cabinet Committee due to related Public 
Sector Decarbonisation Scheme funding deadlines and the associated land 
purchase involved in facilitating the project. She made members aware that 
future key decisions funded through the Public Sector Decarbonisation 
Scheme may need to be taken in accordance with urgent decision protocol, 
given the time constraints. 
 

Page 5



 

6 

RESOLVED to note that decision 21/00109, Kings Hill Solar Park was taken between 
meetings of the Cabinet Committee in accordance with the process set out in the 
Council’s constitution. 
 
54. Ash Die-back Annual Report  
(Item 12) 
 
Tony Harwood (Resilience and Emergency Planning Manager) was in attendance for 
this item. 
 

1. Miss Carey introduced the report, stressed the importance of ash trees to 
Kent’s environment and acknowledged the threat posed by ash die-back.  
 

2. Mr Harwood provided a technical overview of developments. He noted that it 
had been almost 10 years since ash die-back had been identified in the UK 
and that members had previously agreed to take an evidence based 
approach. He confirmed that European ash was the most widespread tree 
species in the county, with significant prevalence in the Kent Downs Area of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty and along the Greensand Ridge. Regarding tree 
removal, he reassured members that this only happens for health and safety 
purposes and that surveyors monitor areas year on year. Further reassurance 
was given that the containment policy enacted in Kent ensured good 
biosecurity. Concerning the severity of the disease, he recognised that it has 
not proved as destructive in the county as originally forecast, with urban trees 
seemingly better protected from infection than trees growing in woodland. 

 
RESOLVED to: 
 

a) note the significant threat Ash Dieback poses to the environment and 
economy of Kent;  

 
b) acknowledge the local and national leadership role of the County Council in its 

response to the pathogen and the resultant environmental and financial 
benefits that have accrued from the science-led response; and 
 

c) endorse the planning, monitoring and response contingencies outlined within 
this report. 

 
55. 21/00123 - Household Waste Recycling Centre Booking  
(Item 11) 
 
David Beaver (Head of Waste and Business Services) and Hannah Allard (Waste 
Business Development Manager) were in attendance for this item. 
 

1. Miss Carey introduced the proposed key decision and explained the intention 
to permanently operate a booking system for customers accessing KCC’s 
Household Waste Recycling Centres. She highlighted that the public 
consultation had received the largest number of responses of any KCC 
consultation in recent years.  
 

2. Mr Beaver gave an overview of the temporary booking system and the 
operational benefits of using the system permanently. He confirmed that the 

Page 6



 

7 

system had been developed by bookinglab, that there were no booking limits 
and that bookings could be amended and cancelled. He informed members 
that a £1.3m saving was expected as a result of the proposed decision. He 
noted that whilst the number of trips made to sites had decreased since the 
adoption of the temporary booking system, that the volume of waste received 
had increased by 10%. Addressing site traffic, he confirmed that queuing on 
high speed road network has been eradicated as a result of the system. 
 

3. Hannah Allard gave a presentation. Topics covered in the presentation 
included: the booking system offer; environmental, customer, operational and 
financial benefits; and the public consultation process and results. 
 

4. Mr Hills shared his positive experience using the same day booking 
arrangement at the New Romney Centre and that there was significant local 
support for the proposal.   
 

5. Mr Love stated that he would be unable to endorse the proposed decision on 
the basis that he believed it constituted a continuation of Covid-19 emergency 
measures. 
 

6. Mr Lewis proposed and Mr Baldock seconded a motion that “the 
Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee recommends that the 
Cabinet Member for Environment considers the adoption of a hybrid 
Household Waste Recycling Centre booking system, comprised of a 
Wednesday to Saturday booking arrangement and Sunday to Tuesday 
non-booking arrangement.” 
 

7. Members voted on the motion. The motion was lost. 
 
RESOLVED to endorse the Cabinet Member for Environment on the proposed 
decision for: 
 

a) the Waste Management service to permanently operate a booking system for 
customers to access Kent County Council’s Household Waste Recycling 
Centres: and  

 
b) the Corporate Director for Growth, Environment and Transport to keep 

progress of the booking system under review and to inherit the main 
delegations via the Officer Scheme of Delegation to make any further 
operational changes to the booking system to maximise customer service. 

 
56. Presentation from Southern Water  
(Item 13) 
 
Dr Toby Willison (Director of Environment and Corporate Affairs, Southern Water) 
was in attendance for this item. 
 

1. Dr Willison gave a presentation. Topics covered in the presentation included: 
the Environment Agency Court Case and £90m fine; investments in Kent, 
2020-2025; 2040 targets; the water challenge; nutrient neutrality; combined 
sewer and overflow operations; reducing storm overflows; Combined Sewer 

Page 7



 

8 

Overflows Task Force; Drainage and Wastewater Management Plans; work 
with developers; and areas for cooperation with KCC members.  
 

2. Mr Lewis explained that residents in his division had been affected by 
wastewater releases and asked whether executives at Southern Water had 
received bonuses during the period. Dr Willison apologised and confirmed that 
a review of the company’s bonus system had been overseen by its 
renumeration committee, with the CEO not taking a bonus for the previous 3 
years.  
 

3. Mr Baker, who’s division included the Swalecliffe facility, gave an overview of 
developments over the last year including the negative impact of untreated 
wastewater releases on the local population and business. He shared his 
concerns with the infrastructure in place and stressed the need to increase 
resilience within the water treatment and storage system. He asked that 
investment in a rapid testing and response mechanism be undertaken. Dr 
Willison highlighted the Beachbuoy system which provided a simple real-time 
water monitor and was set for deployment in Herne Bay. He added that new 
features would be ready for the 2022 Bathing Water season. 
 

4. In response to a question from Ms Dawkins, Dr Willison confirmed that 
ultraviolet solutions were used at the Swalecliffe facility as a treatment 
measure. 
 

5. Mr Hills asked for further information on Southern Water’s strategy to address 
increasingly frequent extreme weather events. Dr Willison agreed to provide 
the request information in a future update. 
 

6. Mr Baldock asked that Southern Water’s ability to accommodate planned 
residential developments be included in future updates. 
 

7. Following a question from Mrs Parfitt-Reid, Dr Willison confirmed that the 
£90m fine had been paid to HM Treasury.  
 

8. Mr Hood stated that Southern Water needed to improve communication with 
residents affected by future developments and mitigation measures. 
 

9. The chairman asked for examples of KCC-Southern Water cooperation 
opportunities. Dr Willison spoke on the importance of collaborating to reduce 
the impact of surface water runoff, aligning infrastructure investment was 
highlighted, with the importance of the relationship between KCC Highways 
and Southern Water noted.  
 

10. The chairman thanked Dr Willison for his attendance and commitment to 
update the committee later in the year.  

 
RESOLVED to note the contents of the presentation and ask that Southern Water 
report back to the committee in autumn 2022. 
 
57. Performance Dashboard  
(Item 14) 
 

Page 8



 

9 

Rachel Kennard (Chief Analyst) was in attendance for this item. 
 

1. Ms Kennard gave a verbal summary of the performance dashboard up to 
October 2021. She confirmed that of the 19 key performance indicators within 
the remit of environment and transport, 15 had been RAG rated green, 4 
amber and 0 red. She acknowledged that this reflected good overall 
performance. 

 
RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 
58. Work Programme  
(Item 15) 
 

1. The chairman confirmed that the following items had been added to the work 
programme: 

a. Traffic Management Act Part 6 update 
b. Southern Water update 

 
2. Ms Dawkins asked that an update on Kent’s cycling network be added to the 

work programme.  
 
RESOLVED that the work programme be noted. 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

 

ENVIRONMENT & TRANSPORT CABINET COMMITTEE 
 
MINUTES of a meeting of the Environment & Transport Cabinet Committee held 
Online on Friday, 18 February 2022. 
 
PRESENT: Mr S Holden (Chairman), Mr R C Love, OBE (Vice-Chairman), Mr Baker, 
Mr M Baldock, Mr C Beart, Mr T Bond, Mr I S Chittenden, Mr N J Collor, Mr D Crow-
Brown, Mr M Dendor, Mr A R Hills, Mrs S Hudson, Mr H Rayner, Mr B H Lewis and 
Mr D Watkins 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mr D L Brazier (Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport), 
Sir Paul Carter, CBE and Mr M A J Hood 
 
IN ATTENDANCE: Mr S Jones (Corporate Director for Growth, Environment and 
Transport), Mr P Lightowler (Interim Director of Transportation), Mr S Pay (Transport 
Integration Manager), Mr J Cook (Democratic Services Manager), Mr M Dentten 
(Democratic Services Officer), Miss T A Grayell (Democratic Services Officer) and 
Miss K Reynolds (Democratic Services Officer) 
 

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS 
 
Mr Love took the chair for items 1 to 5 because the chairman, Mr Holden, was unable 
to connect to the meeting due to a power cut until Item 5 when he took over the chair. 
 
59. Declarations of Interest by Members in items on the Agenda  
(Item 3) 
 
No declarations were made. 
 
60. 21/00124 - Kent Travel Saver Price Increase  
(Item 4) 
 

1. Mr Brazier introduced the proposed key decision to increase the cost of the 

Kent Travel Saver from £370 per academic year to £450 and the low-income 

Kent Travel Saver from £120 per academic year to £150. He provided a 

summary of the debate on the issue at Budget County Council on 10 

February. He confirmed that whilst the budget had agreed the financial 

provision, that a decision was required to change the Council’s policy. 

 

2. Mr Chittenden commented that the decision coincided with significant cost of 

living challenges and noted that it would have an impact on low income 

households.  

 

3. Mr Baldock proposed and Mr Lewis seconded a motion that “the 

Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee recommend that the 

Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport delay the decision until 

New Homes funding and other related funding is received.” 

 

Page 11



 

2 

4. Members voted on the motion. The motion was lost. 

 

5. Mr Hood commented that the decision was in contradiction with the Council’s 

climate change commitments and would lead to an increase in car use for 

home to school transport. Mr Brazier reminder members that the intention of 

decision to was to make budget savings from discretionary spend and that 

other consequences had been considered.  

 

6. Members voted on the recommendation to “endorse the Cabinet Member for 

Highways and Transport on the proposed decision to increase the cost of the 

standard Kent Travel Saver from £370 per academic year to £450.” Mr 

Baldock abstained on the motion to endorse the proposed decision. The 

motion was won. 

RESOLVED to endorse the Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport on the 
proposed decision to increase the cost of the standard Kent Travel Saver from £370 
per academic year to £450. 
 
61. Supported Bus Services Public Consultation  
(Item 5) 
 

1. Mr Brazier set out his intention to run a public consultation from February 

through April 2022 concerning a reduction in KCC’s subsidy of bus routes. He 

asked for the committee’s support for the public consultation and reminded 

members that a related key decision would return to the committee for its 

endorsement in due course. 

 

2. Mr Lewis asked, in relation to section 3.3 of the report which confirmed that 

several students were provided entitled free home to school transport on the 

affected contracts and that this could be revised to include bespoke transport 

at a higher cost to the Children, Young People and Education directorate, 

whether there had been agreement for the directorate to fund the additional 

costs mentioned. Mr Brazier confirmed that the cost implications were being 

investigated and that the relevant Cabinet Members and officers were aware 

of the entitled student element on the services. 

 

3. Mr Baldock commented that the reduction in subsidised services could have a 

significant impact on residents and car usage. He asked the Cabinet Member 

to consider the social impact of future decisions. He added that the 

consultation was an important mechanism for understanding the consequence 

of changes on residents lives.  

 

4. Mr Hood commented that KCC should wait for confirmation of its Bus Back 

Better funding before considering reductions in bus service subsidy.  

Mr Holden took the chair, and thanked Mr Love for standing in as chairman. 
 

5. Sir Paul Carter raised concern that many bus services, including Kent Karrier, 

were subsidised to reduce social isolation and prevent independent living 

amongst vulnerable residents. He asked that elderly and vulnerable residents 

be permitted to respond to the consultation by post. Mr Brazier reminded 

Page 12



 

3 

members that budget savings were required from the County Council’s 

discretionary spend and that the cost per journey of many subsidised services 

was significant. He confirmed that negotiations on cost and future services 

would be carried out with operators. Mr Lightowler confirmed that the 

consultation process would involve hard copies and that there was a freepost 

address for responses. He reassured the committee that Kent Karrrier users 

would be written to regarding proposed changes and asked for their 

comments.  

 

6. Mr Baldock abstained on the motion to support the proposed consultation.  

RESOLVED to support consultation on a range of measures (including supported bus 
contract withdrawals) required to reduce KCC expenditure on supported bus 
services. 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



From:   David Brazier, Cabinet Member, Highways and Transport 

   Simon Jones, Corporate Director, Growth, Environment  & Transport   

To:   Environment & Transport Cabinet Committee – 17 March 2022 

Decision No: N/A – For information only 

Subject:  Decisions taken between Cabinet Committee Meetings  

Classification: Unrestricted  

Past Pathway of Paper:  Cabinet Member Decision 

Future Pathway of Paper: N/A 

Electoral Division:   County-wide 

Summary: The attached decision was taken between meetings of the Environment 
and Transport Cabinet Committee as it could not be reasonably deferred to the next 
programmed meeting of the Cabinet Committee for the reasons set out in paragraph 
2.3 below. 

Recommendation: 
The  Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee is asked to note that decision 
22/00018: Highway Rural Swathe Contract - Maintenance Frequencies was taken 
between meetings of the Cabinet Committee in accordance with the process set out 
in the Council’s constitution.  

1.  Introduction  
 

1.1 The Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport has taken decision 
22/00018 to increase the biodiversity provision of the Rural Swathe, Visibility 
and Hedge Maintenance to Option 3 (Two swathe cuts with a tiered approach 
to all biodiversity assets).  

 
1.2 The decision was taken between meetings of the Environment and Transport 

Cabinet Committee, as it could not reasonably be deferred due to the reasons 
set out in paragraph 2.3 below. 

 
2.  Background to decision  
 
2.1  As part of the tendering process for the Highway Rural Swathe, Visibility and 

Hedge Maintenance contract, contractors were asked to provide options for 
current provision of maintenance frequencies that have been in place for 
many years as well as two further options which will increase the provision of 
biodiversity and support the Council’s Pollinator Strategy. 

 
2.2  The three options were:  

Page 15

Agenda Item 8



 Option 1: Single Swathe cut Current Specification. 

 Option 2: Single Swathe with two Conservation cuts 

 Option 3: Two Swathe cuts with tiered Conservation cuts 
 
2.3   The preferred option was option 3 as this was the most flexible option and  

presented the greatest biodiversity benefit. The contract start date is 1 April 
2022. To allow Contractors to mobilise in time to provide the works has 
required that the decision needed to be taken in early March before the 
meeting of this Cabinet Committee.  

      
3.   Recommendation(s) 

The  Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee is asked to note that decision 
22/00018: Highway Rural Swathe Contract - Maintenance Frequencies was taken 
between meetings of the Cabinet Committee in accordance with the process set out 
in the Council’s constitution 

4.   Background Documents 

 Record of Decision: 22/00018:  Highway Rural Swathe Contract - Maintenance 
Frequencies; https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=2567 

Contact details 
Report Author 
Theresa Warford, Staff Officer 
Theresa.warford@kent.gov.uk 
03000 417192 

Relevant Director 
Simon Jones 
Corporate Director, Growth, Environment and Transport  
Simon.jones@kent.gov.uk 
03000 41163 

 

Page 16

https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=2567
mailto:Theresa.warford@kent.gov.uk
mailto:Simon.jones@kent.gov.uk


From:  David Brazier, Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport 
     
   Simon Jones, Corporate Director, Growth, Environment & Transport 
 
To:   Environment & Transport Cabinet Committee – 17th March 2022 
    
Subject:  Active Travel Funding Tranche 2 
                          
Key decision     22/00022 
 
Classification: Unrestricted   

 
Past Pathway of report:  A paper titled ’DfT Emergency Active Travel Fund’ in 
relation to Tranche 1 of the funds went to the 17th of July 2020 meeting of the ETCC. 
Details of the Tranche 2 Active Travel Canterbury Scheme came to this committee in 
in January 2022 (21/00118). 
  
Future Pathway of report: Due to the size and local nature of the remaining 
schemes we will take the detail of these schemes through the appropriate democratic 
channels, Joint Transportation Boards. 
 

Electoral Division:    

District Electoral Division County Member 

Folkestone & Hythe Cheriton Sandgate & Hythe East Rory Love OBE 

Folkestone & Hythe Folkestone West Dylan Jeffrey 

Folkestone & Hythe Hythe West Andy Weatherhead 

Gravesham Gravesend East Jordan Meade 

Gravesham Gravesend East Alan Ridgers 

Gravesham Northfleet & Gravesend West Dr Lauren Sullivan 

Gravesham Northfleet & Gravesend West  Conrad Broadley 

Thanet Birchington & Rural Derek Crow-Brown 

Thanet Birchington & Rural Linda Wright 

 

Summary: Following the results of the second round of consultation carried out 14th 
September to 25th October 2021, this paper provides an updated position on the 
remaining three Active Travel Funded schemes and seeks approval to proceed with 
the alternative scheme extents and scope for the Thanet, Gravesend, and 
Folkestone Active Travel Schemes. 
 
Recommendation(s):  The Cabinet Committee is asked to consider and endorse or 
make recommendations to the Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport in 
respect of the proposed decision to proceed to consideration of alternative options for 
all three schemes as shown at Appendix A. 

 
1 Introduction 

  
1.1 The Department for Transport has provided two phases of active travel funding 

to date.  The first tranche supported the installation of temporary projects for the 
COVID-19 pandemic and the second tranche is to enable and support the 
creation of permanent infrastructure to support walking and cycling and active 
travel. 

Page 17

Agenda Item 9



1.2 The DfT ran a competitive bidding process for Tranche two, and Local 
Authorities were invited to submit their top five named schemes for 
consideration.  There were very clear criteria to establish the types of schemes 
that Local Authorities could include in the bids, and these were: 

 
 Strategic schemes that challenged the status quo of the network 
 Segregated cycle routes only (no shared or lining schemes to be included) 
 The schemes had to score highly on the Government’s ‘Propensity to 

Cycle’ tool and the ‘Rapid Cycleway Prioritisation Tool’ 
 

1.3 The bid was submitted on 6th August 2020 and the announcement was made on 
27th November 2020.  Kent was awarded £6.098million.  This was the third 
highest settlement in the Country.  It covers the cost of the five named 
schemes. 

 
1.4 Considering the nationwide push back on the tranche one schemes (mostly 

related to the unrealistic timescales preventing consultation) the Government 
made some key amendments to the grant conditions of this fund, and added in 
some flexibility around spend deadlines, mandating that consultation was key. 
Expenditure by March 2023 has now been suggested by the DfT. 

 
1.5 The Hythe, Cinque Ports scheme has proceeded to construction stage due to 

the overwhelming support in the first consultation.  Following approval by this 
Cabinet Committee on 17th January 2022 the Canterbury scheme (21/00118) is 
now in the detailed design stage with an ongoing steering group to oversee it 
with involvement from the local member.  This report will identify the results of 
the consultation for Gravesham, Thanet, and Folkestone proposals. 
 

1.6 Targeted social media was used to advertise each consultation and this has 
proven to be the most successful tool to ensure local communities were aware 
of the need to respond.  See Fig 1 identifying “How did you find out about this 
consultation?” Officers also delivered postcards, put up posters along the route 
and issued a press release. 
 

 

Page 18



1.7  Across all schemes, most respondents were strongly opposed/ opposed to the 
proposed design. Percentages are shown under the relevant scheme updates 
below. 

 
1.8  Full consultation reports for each scheme are attached as appendices to this 

report.  
 

2 The report 
 

2.1 This report captures the key themes identified as part of the consultation 
process in relation to the Gravesham, Thanet, and Folkestone proposals. 

 
2.2  An independent consultancy was used to collate the results as follows:  
 
  Gravesham Update 
 
2.3 The consultation received 260 responses with 213 respondents leaving a 

comment on the proposed scheme There were 2,290 visits to the Gravesham 
scheme webpage and 867 document downloads.   

 
2.4  The majority of respondents strongly opposed/opposed the initial design. The 

results shown in the table below. 
 

Strongly Support 26% 

Support 8% 

Neither Support nor Oppose 3% 

Oppose 7% 

Strongly Oppose 55% 

Don’t Know 1% 
 

2.5  The consultation identified eleven key themes.  These were: 
 

 Concerns raised regarding the removal of parking  

 The scheme is unnecessary / not needed 

 Scheme favours cyclists over drivers / concern of prioritising cyclists needs over 
drivers 

 The scheme is a waste of public funding 

 Concerns that it will increase congestion 

 Concerns for the one-way system(s) proposed 

 The scheme will improve walking and / or cycling facilities 

 The scheme will displace traffic onto other local streets 

 Opposed to vehicle restrictions / closures 

 Concerns for vulnerable road users (elderly/disabled) 

 Opposition based on concerns for safety 
 

2.6  Based on the consultation feedback, alternative options being pursued will 
consider: 

 
West section: 

 Review measures to reduce speed on London Road, including vertical and 
horizontal alignment measures including the possibility of surface treatments. 

Page 19



This will be dependent upon conversations with the local district manager as 
asset manager and also the bus companies. 

 Review options for improved pedestrian facilities, including crossings and 
widened footways. 

 Review of options for additional cycling facilities including Advanced Stop Lines 
for cyclists, side road connections and cycle parking. 

 Review of option to improve existing advisory cycle lane on London Road with 
semi-permanent measures.   

 
Centre section / Rosherville: 

 Review of public realm opportunities at Rosherville shops, including pedestrian 
areas and side road junctions. 

 Review of improved cycle facilities through the commercial area without a 
detrimental impact on parking. 

 
East section: 

 Review of London Road east section, including Thames Way junction for 
improved pedestrian and cycling measures.  

 Review of opportunities for the Overcliffe Road route to the town centre and 
consider pedestrian and cycling measures.  

 Review of St James Road through to the station route. 
 

2.7   Officers are not proposing to deliver a bi-directional cycleway facility and it should 
be noted that the scheme designs referred to above will need to be developed, 
shared with a steering group, and then confirmed as appropriate by DfT in terms 
of the grant funding. 

 
2.8 A steering group will be established to provide local governance for this scheme 

and report via the Joint Transportation Board. Officers will seek to involve the local 
members in this steering group. 

 
Thanet Update   

2.9 There were 504 responses to the consultation with 415 respondents leaving a 
comment on the proposal. There were 2,930 visits to the Thanet scheme webpage 
with 1,300 document downloads.   

 
2.10 The majority of respondents strongly opposed/opposed the initial design. The 

results shown in the table below. 
 

Strongly Support 20% 

Support 9% 

Neither Support nor Oppose 4% 

Oppose 10% 

Strongly Oppose 57% 

Don’t Know 0% 

 
2.11   The consultation identified ten key themes.  These were: 

 

 Concerns that it will increase congestion 

 The scheme is unnecessary/not needed 

 The scheme is a waste of public funding 

Page 20



 Oppose to vehicle restrictions/closures 

 Scheme favours cyclists over drivers/concern of prioritising cyclists needs over 
drivers 

 Opposition based on concerns for safety 

 Concerns for increased levels of pollution 

 The scheme will improve walking and / or cycling facilities 

 Concerns raised regarding removal of parking 

 The scheme will improve safety 
 

2.12  Based on the consultation feedback, alternative options being pursued will 
consider: 

 
West section: 

 Review of two identified options for connection to Birchington Station and 
identify a recommended option. 

 Review options for cycle route/quietway route along Alpha Road/Epple Road to 
Birchington station. 

 Review options for cycle track route along Canterbury Road/Station Road to 
Birchington station. 

 
Central section: 

 Review existing proposed route from Charlesworth Drive to Domneva Road with 
considerations for connections to west and east alternatives sections. 

 Proposal for connection with KCC’s new crossing at Hengist Road. 

 Review cycle lane arrangement adjacent to Ursuline College and King Ethelbert 
School following comments raised during consultation and further engagement 
with the school. 

 
East section: 

 Review of two identified options for connection to Westgate Station and identify 
recommended option 

 Review options for Hengist Road, including cycle track and footways to connect 
with Ryder’s Avenue/Cuthbert Road and the Viking Coastal Trail.  

 Review options for Domneva Road to connect with Ryder Road/Cuthbert Road 
and the Viking Coastal Trail.  

 Develop an option to connect Cuthbert Road to Westgate. 
 

2.13 Officers are not proposing to re-purpose any whole sections of traffic lanes to 
deliver full width cycle lanes along the A28.  The intention is to design a more 
locally appropriate cycle route using some existing desire lines, with a mixture 
of quietways and improvements for pedestrians and cyclists. We would like to 
drastically improve the opportunities for local children to walk and cycle to 
school.  The scheme designs referred to above will need to be developed, 
shared with a steering group, and then confirmed as appropriate by DfT in 
terms of the grant funding. 

 
2.14 A steering group will be established to provide local governance for this scheme 

and report via the Joint Transportation Board. Officers will seek to involve the 
local members in this steering group 

 
 Folkestone Update 

Page 21



2.15 The consultation received 919 responses, with 777 respondents leaving a 
comment on the proposal. There were 6,650 visits to the Folkestone scheme 
webpage, with 2,100 document downloads.   

 
  2.16  The majority of respondents strongly opposed/opposed the initial design. The 

results shown in the table below. 
 

Strongly Support 17% 

Support 7% 

Neither Support nor Oppose 2% 

Oppose 9% 

Strongly Oppose 64% 

Don’t Know 1% 

 
2.17  The consultation identified six key themes.  These were: 

 

 Scheme will negatively impact businesses 

 Concerns raised regarding parking removal 

 The scheme is unnecessary/not needed   

 Concerns for vulnerable road users (elderly/disabled) 

 Oppose to the removal of trees 

 Opposition to the closure of Stanley Road 

2.18   A petition opposing the Cheriton Cycle Lane Scheme was received in October 
2021 containing approximately 3,500 signatures.  In accordance with KCC’s 
petition scheme this was debated at the Environment and Transport Cabinet 
Committee meeting on 18th January 2022.  The number of individual signatures 
has not been included in our total number of responses received, as only 
completed consultation questionnaires and other individually submitted 
responses are included within our analysis. However, the issues raised in the 
petition have been considered alongside the other feedback received.  

2.19 Based on the consultation feedback, alternative options being pursued will 
consider: 

 

 Provision of a scheme only to the east of Coombe Road to have minimal impact 
on parking and the business activity in the High Street. 

 Identification of additional pedestrian crossings, public realm, and speed 
management along the route. 

 Improvements along Cheriton High Street to encourage and enhance the 
experience for pedestrians and visitors (with no detriment to parking). 

 Identify some improvements as suggested by businesses. 
 
3 Financial Implications 

 
3.1 The DFT’s grant conditions state that the expenditure is for the named schemes 

contained in the bid, for the purpose and benefit of Active Travel and it requires 
Kent to carry out advanced consultation.  
 

3.2 The funds were originally intended for expenditure by March 2021, however 
since the Department for Transport spent some months deliberating the grant 
offer; we now have an extension, and the schemes should be delivered as soon 
as possible, preferably before the end of March 2023.  If any capital funding is 

Page 22



left; we will seek approval from the DfT to use it for smaller active travel 
measures such as cycle storage and/or other measures to compliment walking 
and cycling in the local vicinity. 

 
3.3 The DfT grant of £6.098m will fully cover both the capital and revenue costs 

associated with the scheme as per current concept designs.  These costs are 
split as follows: 

 

 Revenue £1.220m 

 Capital £4.878m 
 

3.4 The schemes’ costs are scalable to suit the budget available and therefore 
present no financial risk to KCC. A proportion to allow for risk was included in the 
cost estimates.  Independent cost consultants will be used throughout the design 
process to ensure cost assurance for the whole life costs of the schemes. 

 
4 Legal implications 

 
4.1 Nothing to report at this stage. 

 
5 Equalities implications  

 
5.1 Equality Impact Assessments have been completed for the individual projects.  

KCC will review these documents whilst keeping any affected groups informed 
and updated. 
 

6 Conclusions 
 

6.1  Kent County Council has been working closely with a consultant through the Kent 
Professional Services Framework Contract to deliver the second consultation on 
the outline design of the active travel schemes.  Following the responses from 
the consultation officers need to look at alternative design options for 
Gravesham, Thanet and Folkestone that consider the comments received during 
the public consultation.  KCC would like to harness this investment in an 
appropriate way and it will be important to work closely with local communities 
and locally elected members to get the right schemes in the right places.  

 
6.2  Joint Transportation Boards would appear to be the democratically appropriate 

channel to debate the detail of these schemes since they are limited to 
individual districts and are not going to be in excess of £1m in value. 
 

6.3  There is highly likely to be more funding opportunities coming forward from 
Central Government under the Active Travel agenda.  Central Government is 
establishing an Ofsted style body to assess Local Authorities’ active travel 
achievements and it is understood that Local Authorities will receive a sliding 
scale of funding in the future depending on their active travel achievements.  
 

6.4  The DfT have asked us to engage in design assurance processes for future 
rounds of Active Travel Funding prior to making capital grant payments to local 
authorities. Active Travel England design experts are now on board and 
undertaking regular design reviews along with recommendations which are 
necessary to consider in order to ensure schemes comply with LTN 1/20.  

Page 23



 
7 Background Documents 
 

 Appendix A: Proposed Record of Decision 
 Gravesend Consultation Report - 

https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/documents/s109790/GravesendConsultationRe
port.pdf  

 Thanet Consultation Report - 
https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/documents/s109778/ThanetConsultationReport
.pdf  

 Folkestone Consultation Report - 
https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/documents/s109775/FolkestoneConsultationRe
port.pdf 

 The five EQIA’s can be seen on our corporate website:  
www.kent.gov.uk/kentactivetravel.gov.uk 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

9. Contact details 
 
Report Author: Nikola Floodgate 
Schemes Planning & Delivery Manager 
Telephone number 03000 416239 
Email: Nikola.floodgate@kent.gov.uk 

Relevant Director: Phil Lightowler 
Interim Director Transportation  
Telephone number 03000 411683 
Email: Philip.lightowler@kent.gov.uk 

 

8.  Recommendation(s):  
The Cabinet Committee is asked to consider and endorse or make recommendations to 
the Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport in respect of the proposed decision to 
proceed to consideration of alternative options for all three schemes as shown at 
Appendix A. 

Page 24

https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/documents/s109790/GravesendConsultationReport.pdf
https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/documents/s109790/GravesendConsultationReport.pdf
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.kent.gov.uk%2Fdocuments%2Fs109778%2FThanetConsultationReport.pdf&data=04%7C01%7Ctheresa.warford%40kent.gov.uk%7Cfd314dc956cd43e2d9f308d9fdc44a14%7C3253a20dc7354bfea8b73e6ab37f5f90%7C0%7C0%7C637819841764548932%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=uyHqir%2BkQ%2F0CNIiv6BNb%2FN6OlmqzD4Jz2xrKfquomYo%3D&reserved=0
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.kent.gov.uk%2Fdocuments%2Fs109778%2FThanetConsultationReport.pdf&data=04%7C01%7Ctheresa.warford%40kent.gov.uk%7Cfd314dc956cd43e2d9f308d9fdc44a14%7C3253a20dc7354bfea8b73e6ab37f5f90%7C0%7C0%7C637819841764548932%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=uyHqir%2BkQ%2F0CNIiv6BNb%2FN6OlmqzD4Jz2xrKfquomYo%3D&reserved=0
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.kent.gov.uk%2Fdocuments%2Fs109775%2FFolkestoneConsultationReport.pdf&data=04%7C01%7Ctheresa.warford%40kent.gov.uk%7Cfd314dc956cd43e2d9f308d9fdc44a14%7C3253a20dc7354bfea8b73e6ab37f5f90%7C0%7C0%7C637819841764392704%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=0kgTQGljR649LktwK%2FSYqBgxorlIUFnwgA1FJRtMnHE%3D&reserved=0
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.kent.gov.uk%2Fdocuments%2Fs109775%2FFolkestoneConsultationReport.pdf&data=04%7C01%7Ctheresa.warford%40kent.gov.uk%7Cfd314dc956cd43e2d9f308d9fdc44a14%7C3253a20dc7354bfea8b73e6ab37f5f90%7C0%7C0%7C637819841764392704%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=0kgTQGljR649LktwK%2FSYqBgxorlIUFnwgA1FJRtMnHE%3D&reserved=0
http://www.kent.gov.uk/kentactivetravel.gov.uk


 

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL – PROPOSED RECORD OF DECISION 
 

DECISION TO BE TAKEN BY: 

David Brazier, Cabinet Member for Highways & Transport 

   
DECISION NO: 

22/00022 

 

For publication  
 

Key decision: YES  
 
 

Subject Matter / Title of Decision: Active Travel Funding Tranche 2 
 

Decision:  
As Cabinet Member for Highways and Transportation, I give approval  to proceed to consideration of 
alternative options for Thanet, Gravesend, and Folkestone Active Travel Schemes. 
 

Reason(s) for decision: 
The Department for Transport has provided two phases of active travel funding to date.  The first 
tranche supported the installation of temporary projects for the COVID-19 pandemic and the second 
tranche is to enable and support the creation of permanent infrastructure to support walking and 
cycling and active travel. Following a competitive bid process funding was granted for schemes 
across Kent including Thanet, Gravesend, and Folkestone.  

Cabinet Committee recommendations and other consultation:  
Initial high-level consultation of the proposed schemes took place between 9th December and 
January 2021.   
 
A second round of consultation was carried out 14th September to 25th October 2021 
 
Previous reports have been discussed at Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee: 

 17 July 2021 

 18 January 2022  

Any alternatives considered and rejected: 
Not to seek funding.  

 

Any interest declared when the decision was taken and any dispensation granted by the 

Proper Officer:  
 
 
 
 

 

 
.........................................................................  .................................................................. 

 signed   date 
   
 

 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

From:  Roger Gough, Leader of the Council 
 
   David Brazier, Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport 
    
   Simon Jones, Corporate Director Growth Environment and 

Transport 
 
To:   Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee – 17 March 2020 
 
Subject:  Transport for the South East – Continuation of voluntary 

participation 
 
Key decision 22/00023 
 
Classification: Unrestricted 
 
Past Pathway of Paper:   N/A 
 
Future Pathway of Paper: For Leader decision 
 

Electoral Division: All divisions   
 

Summary: Kent County Council (KCC) was a founding member of Transport for the 
South East (TfSE), participating and funding TfSE since 2017 (decision ref 
16/00120). The Council took a further decision (ref: 20/00010) in July 2020 to support 
a TfSE proposal to Government for Statutory Powers. These decisions were taken by 
the Leader as they concern the decision to participate in a partnership. TfSE applied 
in July 2020 for powers and in October 2020 received a refusal from Government 
Ministers, highlighting that no further Sub-national Transport Bodies (STBs) would be 
made statutory for the foreseeable future.  
 
TfSE has continued to receive funding from Government since October 2020, for the 
undertaking of studies on the region’s transport networks, and KCC has continued to 
participate in those. The studies will continue into 2022, and KCC will be tasked by 
TfSE with considering their outcomes; adopting a proposed Strategic Investment 
Plan (SIP) to begin delivering the outcomes; and supporting TfSE in their future 
stages of work.  
 
TfSE, given its lack of statutory status, has also been reviewing its function and role. 
KCC has provided feedback as part of that process. It is important, ahead of the 
2022/23 Financial Year, that KCC decide whether to continue to participate in TfSE in 
the same way and through the same means that it has to date given the changed 
circumstances for TfSE in comparison to its former plan to become a Statutory body 
on which past Council Decisions were based. It is strongly recommended that KCC 
continue its role in TfSE to ensure it can support the organisation in finalising its 
Strategic Investment Plan and defining its role in the face of any forthcoming reforms 
to local transport and local government more generally that the Government plans. 
 
Recommendation: The Cabinet Committee is asked to consider and endorse or 
make recommendations to the Leader to agree to: 
  

Page 27

Agenda Item 10



 

 

1. Kent County Council continuing to participate in a non-statutory voluntary Sub 
National Transport Body (SNTB) for the South East, known as Transport for the 
South East (TfSE), at the cost, for the purposes, and with the membership, set out in 
the accompanying report; and 
 
2. Delegate to the Corporate Director Growth, Environment and Transport to take, in 
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport, the actions 
necessary to implement the decision subject to the Council’s decision-making 
procedures. 
 
The Proposed Record of Decision is appended at Appendix A. 

 
1. Background 

  
1.1 Kent County Council (KCC) is the largest single constituent Member of 

Transport for the South East (TfSE) and provides an annual contribution of 
£58,000 towards its operating costs. Match funding is provided by other 
participating County Councils and Unitary Authorities, whilst the Department for 
Transport (DfT) provides the main portion of funding, set in 2021/22 Financial 
Year to £1.625m. 
 

1.2 The first Key Decision was taken by the Leader on 8 December 2018 
(16/00120) which agreed to KCC’s participation in the TfSE Sub-national 
Transport Body (STB) as an informal non-statutory body, and to further work to 
establish TfSE as a formal statutory body.  

 
1.3 The culmination of the action taken by KCC through this decision, in partnership 

with TfSE was the application to the Secretary of State for Transport for TfSE to 
be granted Statutory Status. KCC’s Leader took a further decision on 10th July 
2020, as follows: 

 
1.3.1  Consent to Transport for the South East’s Proposal to Government for 

powers in addition to the general powers of a Sub-national Transport 
Body and endorse the Transport Strategy for the South East as part of 
this proposal. 
 

1.3.2  Participate in, and cooperate with, Transport for the South East in 
accordance with the powers requested from Government and those 
powers operating concurrently with Kent County Council as Highway 
Authority and Local Transport Authority. 

 
1.4 TfSE was unsuccessful in securing these powers, and hence the decision KCC 

took to participate in and cooperate with TfSE as a statutory body has not come 
to fruition and will not do so for the foreseeable future. TfSE initially considered 
making a further bid in due course; however, as part of a review of its function 
and role no further bid is under consideration at the current time. Nonetheless 
Government has continued to provide funding to TfSE for research on topics 
ranging from EV charging to decarbonisation. 
 

1.5 Consequently, a decision is now sought on KCC’s continued participation in 
TfSE given the former course of action was unsuccessful. 

Page 28



 

 

 
2. Transport for the South East 

 
2.1 TfSE is comprised of 16 Local Transport Authorities (LTAs) and 5 Local 

Enterprise Partnerships (LEPs). There are also other bodies co-opted onto the 
board – the Chair of the South Downs National Park to represent protected 
landscapes and two district council representatives for all the Local Planning 
Authorities in the region. Network Rail, National Highways and Transport for 
London (TfL) are non-voting members of the Board. The constituent authorities 
are: 
 

 East Sussex County Council (lead authority and Accountable Body) 

 West Sussex County Council 

 Kent County Council 

 Medway Council 

 Hampshire County Council 

 Surrey County Council 

 Brighton and Hove City Council 

 Southampton City Council 

 Portsmouth City Council 

 Isle of Wight Council 

 The Berkshire unitary authorities through the Berkshire Local Transport 
Body (LTB) which includes West Berkshire, Wokingham, Windsor & 
Maidenhead, Bracknell Forest, Reading and Slough. 

 Five LEPs within the TfSE area are also included: South East LEP 
(SELEP), Enterprise M3, Coast to Capital, Solent, and Thames Valley 
Berkshire. 

 
3. TfSE’s planned activity 
 
3.1 TfSE has been undertaking a series of area studies on transport movement and 

connectivity across the region. In addition, these are supplemented by thematic 
studies on freight and future forms of mobility (e.g., ranging from digital 
connectivity as a mode to drones and autonomous vehicles etc). Government 
has also given TfSE further funds late on in the 2021/22 Financial Year to 
undertake research in partnership with other Sub National Transport Bodies 
about Electric Vehicles, decarbonisation and how they can support Local 
Authorities with future Bus Service Improvement Plans. 
 

3.2 The studies will generate a set of outline proposals to apply across the region to 
begin delivering the outcomes identified in the TfSE Transport Strategy, 
adopted in July 2020. The proposals will be described and promoted in a 
Strategic Investment Plan (SIP) that TfSE will then submit to Government for 
consideration.  
 

3.3 KCC continues to review the work undertaken by TfSE, advising on the 
strategic priorities for movement in Kent in the context of the sub-region. Once a 
draft SIP has been prepared and published for consultation by TfSE, KCC will 
need to decide whether it supports the proposals TfSE promotes in the SIP and 
whether KCC wishes to be party to implementing the SIP through KCC’s 
statutory function as a Local Transport and Highway Authority. We anticipate 

Page 29



 

 

that these decisions will need to be taken in accordance with the Council’s 
decision-making procedures in late 2022 / early 2023. 

 
3.4 Alongside the completion of the study work by TfSE, the organisation has also 

undertaken a review of its functions to establish a plan for what the organisation 
should focus on and be capable of in the future. The plan envisages TfSE 
substantially increasing its functions into areas such as more developed 
transport modelling, planning and delivery such as options development, case 
development, scheme, and proposal consultations, through to procurement and 
contract management. Such ambitions will be reliant on significant increases in 
Government grant funding towards levels akin to Transport for the North (which 
has a current funding of a core grant for 2021/22 of £8.54m with further funding 
drawn from Northern Powerhouse Rail funds held by DfT). It is conceivable that 
Government funding of an expanded TfSE may be contingent on increases in 
funding from member constituent authorities such as KCC.  

 
4. Implications for KCC  

 
4.1 The DfT has demonstrated that it considers TfSE has value, even without 

statutory status and powers, given the continued grant funding. In particular, the 
DfT benefits from a streamlined means of communication with the region’s 
transport authorities, through a single point of contact of TfSE and relied on 
TfSE on a small number of occasions to co-ordinate submission of priorities 
from constituent authorities, such as with National Highways Road Investment 
Strategy 3 pipeline. 

 
4.2 However, it is also the case that outside of these occasions, KCC maintains its 

own dialogue with the DfT on the multitude of projects and issues that are either 
of national interest (e.g., road freight and port’s traffic) or are benefiting from 
government funding (e.g., active travel, ZEBRA bus funding). Furthermore, as a 
statutory body, were KCC not a member of TfSE, the DfT and other bodies such 
as Network Rail and National Highways would still have an obligation to 
consider our adopted policies and plans.  

 
4.3 Given this, there is a risk that non-participation in TfSE could potentially see the 

Council’s influence in lobbying for schemes on the Strategic Road Network and 
railway network diluted. This could arise because KCC would be a small area 
alone in comparison to TfSE as a whole, albeit still the largest County Council in 
the country and a statutory body that must be regarded as such through any 
statutory process. 

 
4.4 Alongside involvement in TfSE, it remains the case that the best route for KCC 

to articulate and secure future funding and investment in its transport network is 
to continue to adopt and implement its own policies and plans as it has done 
such as the Vision Zero Road Safety Strategy, the Bus Service Improvement 
Plan, and the next iteration of KCC’s statutory Local Transport Plan (LTP) 
currently in development.  

 
4.5 Until TfSE’s Strategic Investment Plan (SIP) is published, and further clarity 

arises from the planned Levelling Up White Paper proposed reforms on local 
transport government and local government more generally, it is recommended 
that KCC remain a constituent member of TfSE. This will include participating in 

Page 30



 

 

the remaining study work and supporting TfSE with its exploration of how its 
future organisation and operations can be tailored to provide the best support to 
realising our county-wide priorities to the benefit of the sub-region.  

 
5. Legal implications 

 
5.1 As TfSE will remain a non-statutory informal and voluntary group that KCC 

participates in, there are no legal implications of the planned decision.  
 
6. Financial implications 

 
6.1 KCC contributes £58,000 per year to fund the development of TfSE. KCC’s 

expected contribution for the 2021/22 Financial Year is expected to remain at 
this level. Up to and including 2021/22 Financial Year, KCC will have 
contributed a total of £214,000 exclusive of officer time. Beyond this 
forthcoming Financial Year, future decisions by KCC will be required relating to 
the adoption and delivery of the SIP and hence future financial implications to 
KCC will be set out in any future decision report(s). 
 

6.2 KCC’s contribution is matched by other constituent members as shown in the 
table below.  

 

Type of authority Contribution per 
annum 

Total 

County Councils (Kent, East Sussex, West 
Sussex, Surrey, Hampshire) 

£58,000 £290,000 

Unitary authorities (Medway, Brighton and 
Hove, Isle of Wight, Portsmouth, 
Southampton) 

£30,000 £150,000 

Other member authorities (Berkshire Local 
Transport body) 

£58,000 (shared 
between the 
authorities)  

£58,000 

 
7. Equalities implications  

 
7.1 The KCC Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) for the revised Proposal to 

Government is attached at Appendix B. 
 
8. Data Protection implications 

 
8.1 A Data Protection Impact Assessment is not required as this decision does not 

require the processing of personal data.   
 
9. Conclusion 
 
9.1 TfSE continues its work towards establishing a Strategic Investment Plan (SIP) 

which will set out the proposals needed across the sub-region to deliver the 
Transport Strategy outcomes TfSE adopted in 2020. TfSE is evaluating and 
planning its future role and operations given the current lack of statutory status 
and powers. KCC was a founding member of TfSE and continues to play an 
active part in the sub-regional transport body. It is strongly recommended that 
KCC continue this role, including funding TfSE to ensure it can support the 

Page 31



 

 

organisation in finalising its Strategic Investment Plan and defining its role in the 
face of any forthcoming reforms to local transport and local government more 
generally that the Government plans.  

 
10. Recommendation 
 
10.1  The Committee is asked to consider and endorse or make 
 recommendations to the Leader to agree to: 
  

1. Kent County Council continuing to participate in a non-statutory 
voluntary Sub National Transport Body (SNTB) for the South East, 
known as Transport for the South East (TfSE), at the cost, for the 
purposes, and with the membership, set out in the accompanying 
report; and 
 

2.  Delegate to the Corporate Director Growth, Environment and Transport 
to take, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Highways and 
Transport, the actions necessary to implement the decision, subject to 
the Council’s decision-making procedures; 
 
The Proposed Record of Decision is appended at Appendix A.  

 
11. Background Documents 
 
Appendices: 

 Appendix A: Proposed Record of Decision  

 Appendix B: Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA); 
https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/documents/s109804/TfSEEqIA.doc.pdf 

 
Previous Committee reports: 

 ROD 16/00120: 
https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/documents/s88382/1600120%20-
%20signed%20ROD%20scanned.pdf  

 ROD 20/00100: https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/documents/s97556/20-
00010%20-%20ROD.pdf  

 Kent County Council’s response to Transport for the South East’s draft 
Proposal to Government: 
https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/documents/s91339/Item%2015%20-
%20Report%20-
%20KCC%20Response%20to%20Transport%20for%20the%20South%20Eas
ts%20Proposal%20Consultation.pdf 

 Kent County Council’s response to Transport for the South East’s draft 
Transport Strategy for the South East: 
https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/documents/s95532/Item%209%20-
%20Report%20-%20Transport%20for%20the%20South%20East.pdf 

 
12. Contact Details 

 

Report Author:  
Joseph Ratcliffe, Transport Strategy 
Manager 
03000 413445 

Relevant Director: 
Simon Jones, Corporate Director for 
Growth, Environment, and Transport 
03000 411683 

Page 32

https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.kent.gov.uk%2Fdocuments%2Fs109804%2FTfSEEqIA.doc.pdf&data=04%7C01%7Ctheresa.warford%40kent.gov.uk%7Ce7a10b6ecf9c45e67d2408da00e61245%7C3253a20dc7354bfea8b73e6ab37f5f90%7C0%7C0%7C637823285389712242%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=lrh%2BcamgK67TyZGkhRoqQB%2Fc7zQeNZ1sQuf2rAmIDis%3D&reserved=0
https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/documents/s88382/1600120%20-%20signed%20ROD%20scanned.pdf
https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/documents/s88382/1600120%20-%20signed%20ROD%20scanned.pdf
https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/documents/s97556/20-00010%20-%20ROD.pdf
https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/documents/s97556/20-00010%20-%20ROD.pdf
https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/documents/s91339/Item%2015%20-%20Report%20-%20KCC%20Response%20to%20Transport%20for%20the%20South%20Easts%20Proposal%20Consultation.pdf
https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/documents/s91339/Item%2015%20-%20Report%20-%20KCC%20Response%20to%20Transport%20for%20the%20South%20Easts%20Proposal%20Consultation.pdf
https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/documents/s91339/Item%2015%20-%20Report%20-%20KCC%20Response%20to%20Transport%20for%20the%20South%20Easts%20Proposal%20Consultation.pdf
https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/documents/s91339/Item%2015%20-%20Report%20-%20KCC%20Response%20to%20Transport%20for%20the%20South%20Easts%20Proposal%20Consultation.pdf
https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/documents/s95532/Item%209%20-%20Report%20-%20Transport%20for%20the%20South%20East.pdf
https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/documents/s95532/Item%209%20-%20Report%20-%20Transport%20for%20the%20South%20East.pdf


 

 

joseph.ratcliffe@kent.gov.uk simon.jones@kent.gov.uk 

 

Page 33

mailto:joseph.ratcliffe@kent.gov.uk
mailto:simon.jones@kent.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL – PROPOSED RECORD OF DECISION 
 

DECISION TO BE TAKEN BY: 

Leader of Kent County Council 

   
DECISION NO: 

22/00023 

 

For publication  

 

Transport for the South East – KCC Participation 
 

Key decision: YES 
 
Affects more than two Electoral Divisions 
 
 

Subject Matter / Title of Decision 

 

Transport for the South East – KCC Participation 
 
 

Decision:  
 
As Leader, I agree to:  
 

1. Kent County Council continuing to participate in a non-statutory voluntary Sub National 
Transport Body (SNTB) for the South East, known as Transport for the South East (TfSE), at 
the cost, for the purposes, and with the membership, set out in the accompanying report; and 
 

2. Delegate to the Corporate Director Growth, Environment and Transport to take, in 
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport, the actions necessary to 
implement the decision, subject to the Council’s decision-making procedures. 
 

Publication date: DD/MM/YYYY 
Date of decision: DD/MM/YYYY 
Effective from: DD/MM/YYYY  
 

Reason(s) for decision: 

 

Background 
 
The Cities and Local Government Devolution Act 2016 amended the Local Transport Act 2008 to 
allow the creation of Sub-national Transport Bodies (STBs). There are now several shadow STBs in 
England, with Transport for the North becoming the only statutory STB in April 2018. 
 
Transport for the South East (TfSE) is a partnership of 16 Local Transport Authorities and five Local 
Enterprise Partnerships. In July 2020, TfSE’s Shadow Board adopted a Transport Strategy. TfSE 
applied to Government to become a Statutory body in July 2020, submitting a business case 
following adoption of the Transport Strategy. In October 2020, TfSE was notified it would not be 
granted statutory status for the foreseeable future. TfSE had also embarked on a series of Area 
Studies and Thematic Strategies (Freight and Future Mobility) in August 2020 and which are 
completing in early 2022. These completed studies will enable the preparation of a Strategic 
Investment Programme for submission to government, following public consultation, in 2023.  
 
 

Page 35



 

01/decision/glossaries/FormC 2 

Financial Implications  

 
As a constituent authority, KCC contributes £58,000 per year to fund the development of TfSE. The 
Department for Transport (DfT) has provided funding support to TfSE, most recently to a value of 
£1.625m within Financial Year (FY) 2021/22. Funding for future FYs has not yet been confirmed by 
DfT. 
 

Legal Implications  

 
Invicta Law have previously provided advice that KCC’s Constitution requires Transport for the 
South East to be listed in Section 19, Partnerships. The Monitoring Officer will be informed of the 
decision and asked to list TfSE as an Outside Body on the Council website and also asked to 
update the Constitution consequent to the exercise of Executive power in relation to the decision 
taken concerning Transport for the South East. This advice remains valid for this decision. 
           

Equalities implications  

 
An Equalities Impact Assessment has been undertaken and provided alongside the decision report 
to Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee for consideration. TfSE have completed an EqIA 
for the Transport Strategy for the South East and are undertaking further assessment as part of an 
Integrated Sustainability Appraisal for the Area Studies and Thematic Studies.  
 

Data Protection implications 
A Data Protection Impact Assessment is not required as this project does not require the processing 
of personal data. 
 

Cabinet Committee recommendations and other consultation:  

 

Is any public consultation planned or has already been undertaken?  
Transport for the South East published a draft Proposal to Government for consultation in May 
2019, with the consultation ending in July 2019. The draft Transport Strategy for the South East was 
consulted on from October 2019 to January 2020. A further public consultation will be undertaken by 
TfSE on a draft Strategic Investment Plan in 2022. 

 

Cabinet Committee consultation planned or undertaken 
The KCC proposed response to the Transport for the South East draft Proposal to Government was 
taken to Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee on 16th July 2019. At that meeting it was 
resolved that the proposed response would be noted. This proposed response supported the 
powers requested by Transport for the South East, and conditionally supported the powers that 
would be shared with KCC provided that the principle of subsidiarity applies – i.e. that decisions on 
the use of these powers are made at the most local level by constituent authorities. 
 
The KCC proposed response to Transport for the South East’s Transport Strategy for the South 
East was taken to Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee on 23rd January 2020. At that 
meeting it was resolved that the proposed response be noted. 
 
KCC will prepare a future response to the proposed draft Strategic Investment Programme and take 
that to Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee in 2022.  

 

Which Divisions / Local Members are particularly affected:  
All Divisions. 

 

Have views been sought from local Members?   
All consultations held by Transport for the South East are discussed at Environment and Transport Page 36



 

01/decision/glossaries/FormC 3 

Cabinet Committee. 

 

Any alternatives considered and rejected: 

 
Kent County Council is one of the founding bodies of Transport for the South East (TfSE). As such, 
the only other option would be to cease participation inTfSE. This would reduce the county’s 
opportunities for participation from wider regional discussions about transport in the future that TfSE 
host, although KCC can nonetheless engage with authorities across the England through its own 
effort whilst also participating in other regional and national fora.  
 
Non participation could potentially see the Council’s influence in lobbying for schemes on the 
Strategic Road Network and railway network diluted because KCC would be a small area alone in 
comparison to TfSE as a whole, albeit still the largest County Council in the country and a statutory 
body that must be regarded as such through any statutory process, whereas the failure of TfSE to 
achieve that status means that its powers and obligations on others to engage with it are less than 
those held by KCC.  
 
The DfT has continued to fund TfSE since refusing statutory status, recognising value in TfSE 
providing a streamlined, single point of contact through which to engage with its constituent 
members. On balance, given these factors, the option of ceasing participation and associated 
funding to TfSE has been discounted at this stage. 
 

 

Any interest declared when the decision was taken and any dispensation granted by the 

Proper Officer:  
 
None. 
 
 

 

 
.........................................................................  .................................................................. 

 signed   date 
   
 

 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



From:  David Brazier – Cabinet Member for Highways & Transport 

  Philip Lightowler – Interim Director Transportation 

To:   Environment & Transport Cabinet Committee – 17 March 2022 

Decision No:  22/00025 

Subject:  Bearsted Road Improvement Scheme, Maidstone 

Classification: Unrestricted  

Past Pathway of Paper:  None 

Future Pathway of Paper: None 

Electoral Division:   Within Maidstone Rural North and adjacent to Maidstone Rural East, 
Maidstone South & Maidstone North East 

Summary: This report provides an update on the scheme including funding update and is 
seeking approval of an amended scheme design 

Recommendation(s):  The Cabinet Committee is asked to consider and endorse, or make 
recommendations to the Cabinet Member on, the proposed decision as follows and as 
indicated on the proposed decision sheet attached at Appendix D 

To give approval to: 

i)     Adopt The Bearsted Road dualling scheme shown on Drg. No. 70040984-SK-0086 for 
development control, land charge disclosures and implementation; 

ii)     Retain the current scheme for widening Bearsted Road to three lanes scheme shown 
on Drg. No. 70040984-SK-0087; 

iii)     Delegate the decision to decide which of the two scheme options (Drg. No. 70040984-
SK-0086 or Drg. No.70040984-SK-0087) is delivered to the Corporate Director of Growth, 
Environment & Transport under the Officer Scheme of Delegations following the views of 
this Committee and after prior consultation with the Cabinet Member; 

iv)    Give authority to enter into the appropriate land, development and funding agreements 
and the award of the construction contract, and all other acts and consents and any 
subsidiary contracts required to allow the scheme to be implemented; 

v)     Delegate to the Corporate Director of Growth, Environment & Transport under the 
Officer Scheme of Delegations following prior consultation with the Cabinet Member, any 
further or other decisions as may be appropriate to deliver the Bearsted Road scheme; 

vi)     Confirm that other decisions in Record of Decision 18/00026 remain extant. 

Page 39

Agenda Item 11



1. Introduction 

1.1 The Bearsted Road Improvement Scheme is an important infrastructure 
improvement which aims to address congestion in Maidstone. It has been 
successful in unlocking external funding from the Department for Transport under 
the National Productivity Investment Fund (NPIF). 

 
1.2 Initially the scheme included improvements to M20 junction 7 and subsequent bids 

for additional external funding have been submitted but were not successful. This 
element of the scheme does have S106 contributions but they are not banked. It 
would be preferable to deliver both elements under one Construction contract to 
achieve cost savings and also to manage the works and disruption to the travelling 
public.  KCC have continued to develop the proposals and future grant 
opportunities will continue to be explored, but the fall-back situation may rely on 
those development contributions being recovered in a timely fashion. 

 
1.3 The objective of the Bearsted Road scheme is to improve capacity and operational 

efficiency, together with improved infrastructure for pedestrians and cyclists. The 
highway extents are highly constrained and therefore the available solutions are 
limited particularly as there is a need to minimise land take and any commercial 
impact on Newnham Court Shopping Village. 

 
1.4  The current Bearsted Road scheme involves widening Bearsted Road to three 

lanes (two in the eastbound and one in the westbound direction), signalising the 
‘Next’ roundabout and enlarging and signalising the New Cut roundabout, together 
with an alternative access and service roads to the Newnham Court Shopping 
Village as shown in Appendix B. 

 
1.5 The Bearsted Road element can proceed as Permitted Development, but the new 

access and service roads required planning consent that was in part granted by 
KCC on 18 November 2020 (planning reference MA/20/500047).  There have been 
issues with the planning status of some of the existing internal infrastructure that 
the scheme connects to which relate to the HGV access and loading/unloading 
area within Newnham Court Shopping Village. These have now been resolved by 
the granting of a Lawful Development Certificate and retrospective planning 
consent by Maidstone Borough Council, that in turn has allowed the remaining part 
of the improvement scheme to receive planning consent from KCC in February 
2022. 

 
1.6 The scheme also includes a sustainable drainage solution that involves the creation 

of a shallow settlement lagoon within the curtilage of Vinters Park Crematorium.  
Vinters Valley Nature Reserve are supportive as it will help minimise the silting up 
of the stream that runs through their site and will also remove hydrocarbons, salts 
and heavy metals from the highway runoff prior to discharging into the water 
course.  The sustainable drainage planning application received planning consent 
from Maidstone Borough Council in February 2022. 

 
1.7 Land for the scheme is required from Harvestore, owners of the Newnham Court 

Shopping Village, and land for the sustainable drainage element within the 

Page 40



Crematorium grounds from Maidstone Borough Council.  Both parties are 
supportive and draft agreements are being progressed. 

 
1.8 Construction tenders for the scheme were invited in 2020 and a preferred 

contractor selected.  This has enabled an advance works contract to be let during 
2021 for ecology works and utility trial hole investigations aimed at providing some 
cost certainty for one of the significant construction risks.  The award of the main 
works contract was deferred until the planning issues referred to above had been 
resolved and Cabinet Member decisions are agreed following consideration of the 
report by this Committee. 

 
1.9 The current adopted scheme is therefore ready to proceed but there are several 

issues that need to be resolved: 

i) a review of the scheme using KCC’s new Countywide transport model has 
questioned some of the modelling assessments and whether theoretical 
junction operation reflects how traffic operates in practice. 

ii) whether travel behaviour has changed given the larger emphasis on active 
travel as the county emerges from the Covid pandemic and the impact of 
Brexit is realised, particularly as the A249 forms part of the resilience network;  

iii) the inter relationship with M20 junction 7, particularly in the absence of 
imminent improvements; 

iv) whether KCC has been bold enough with the scheme design bearing in mind 
the significance of this route for local traffic and the impact of future 
maintenance requirements (although the need to minimise land take still 
needs to be considered);  

v) buildability aspects and opportunities to minimise construction inconvenience 
following discussions with the appointed contractor; and  

i) the cost and funding. 

1.10 The report will present these aspects and recommend that subject to detailed 
design, landowner agreement and confirming funding that Bearsted Road is 
widened further to become a two-lane dual carriageway. 

2. Bearsted Road 

2.1 The objective of these highway improvements in Maidstone is to achieve improved 
capacity and operational efficiency, together with improvements for pedestrians and 
cyclists where possible. The highway extents are highly constrained and therefore 
the available solutions may be well below what should be provided in an ideal 
world. 

2.2  The underlying driver for the Bearsted Road scheme was to avoid land take and 
minimise any commercial impact on Newnham Court Shopping Village. This limited 
the scheme to providing an additional eastbound lane away from the M20 that 
required a low retaining wall of height to match the opposite wall along the 

Page 41



Crematorium. This proposal would include an earthwork slope up to the Newnham 
Court carpark to accommodate the level difference – Appendix B. 

 
2.3  The scheme would provide benefit through providing an additional lane for east 

bound vehicles.  However, there is not sufficient space along the Crematorium 
frontage to provide a standard verge width to offer protection for the wall where 
traffic currently runs very close.  Pedestrians at the controlled crossing just to the 
west of the Crematorium access would also need to cross in one stage requiring all 
three lanes of traffic on Bearsted Road to be held. 

 
2.4  The existing tight and steep access to Newnham Court Shopping Village would be 

relocated onto Newnham Court Way but the access to the Crematorium would 
remain unchanged.  Despite regulatory signage, there would be nothing to prevent 
funeral corteges and visitors from turning right into or right out of the Crematorium. 
These illegal movements happen frequently and are likely to continue but with a 
higher risk due to the increased width of the carriageway. 

 
2.5  The scheme requires extensive utility diversions under the new footway/cycle way 

along the north side of the additional carriageway lane.  These works, together with 
building the new lane, retaining wall and earthworks will require significant periods 
of signal-controlled shuttle working along Bearsted Road.  Although traffic 
management at peak periods will be avoided wherever possible, and all efforts will 
be made to minimise inconvenience to drivers, it is inevitable that there will be 
significant disruption to traffic and pedestrians during construction. 

 
2.6  The construction tender returns and build programme has confirmed that these are 

significant issues and consequently high-risk aspects of the scheme construction, 
and particularly in terms of both its duration and cost. 

 
2.7  These concerns were implicit in many of the responses to the public engagement 

events in 2019, and it is possible that the public will not view the scheme as a 
significant improvement having experienced inconvenience during the construction 
period. 

 
2.8  The provision of only three lanes will not provide significant resilience, particularly in 

managing traffic in the event of an incident or future utility or maintenance works, 
and it is unlikely that two-way traffic could be maintained during future road works. 

 
2.9  As a consequence of all these aspects, the feasibility of providing a two-lane dual 

carriageway has been investigated.  A key aspect was to also consider the 
provision of a shared footway/cycleway along the Crematorium frontage providing a 
route more in keeping with that required by pedestrians.  The updated design can 
physically impose a left in/left out entrance to the Crematorium providing safer 
movements.  A plan of the proposed dual carriageway design is shown in Appendix 
A. 

 
2.10  By creating more carriageway space, it would allow the scheme to be built with less 

disruption to the travelling public and ensure that there is sufficient room for all the 
utility diversions.  It is likely that a traffic incident or future maintenance 
requirements could be catered for in the years following completion by lane 

Page 42



closures, therefore enabling a two-way flow of traffic to be maintained and 
minimising congestion. 

 
2.11  Discussions have been held with Harvestore, and they recognise the negative 

aspects of the current scheme and the risk to them of further improvements being 
required in the future. They are willing to make some additional land available, as 
part of a review of their contribution.  KCC need to avoid loss of car parking spaces 
and not prejudice Harvestore’s future development aspirations however, and so a 
higher retaining wall along this side of the road will be required. 

 
2.12  The manager of the Crematorium and Maidstone Borough Council have been 

consulted and are supportive, even if a hybrid solution involving a higher retaining 
wall along the north side will not provide symmetry with the Crematorium wall.  It 
would be more visually imposing although a sloped bank with planting up to the car 
park level may still be possible for part of its length and this would help to soften the 
appearance. 

 
2.13  Although a formal screening opinion is still to be sought, it is considered that the 

enhanced scheme would still be able to proceed as Permitted Development. For 
the added benefits described above, proceeding with the enhanced scheme is 
recommended to Members of this Committee, though the additional cost outlined in 
Section 4 needs to be considered. 

 
3.      A249 Bearsted Road ‘Next’ Roundabout and New Cut Road/Newnham Court 

Way Roundabout 

3.1  These elements of the scheme have recently been reviewed and modelled 
independently from the scheme consultants by Jacobs using the new County Traffic 
Model that they have recently been appointed to manage for KCC.  The County 
Model was not available during the earlier scheme development and hence this has 
also given an opportunity for a fresh look at the design. 

 
3.2  The modelling has confirmed that the proposed signalised roundabouts; offer the 

best available solution in both locations.  Therefore, no changes to the existing 
designs for these elements of the scheme are proposed.  

 
4.  Financial Implications 

4.1  The cost of the existing and enhanced scheme is compared below: 
   

 Existing Scheme Dualling Scheme 

Cost £m £m 

Estimated Cost 12.202 13.582 

Risk & Contingency 1.229 1.075 

Total 13.431 14.657 

 
4.2     These estimates are considered robust as they are based on the preferred contractor 

tender return and the recent work of trial holes to confirm knowledge about the 
location of utility pipes and cables. 

 

Page 43



4.3  In 2019, the current scheme was estimated to cost £11.4m and was to be funded 
by £9.4m NPIF, £1.5m from Harvestore and £0.5m from Maidstone Borough 
Council.  Since then, we have the ongoing economic consequences of the Covid 
pandemic, construction material supply shortages involving sharp increases in price 
for some items and two years of general inflation to consider against the 
construction tenders and pricing that were returned to construct the scheme. 

 
4.4  Harvestore has no S106 planning obligation to contribute but recognised the 

benefits of the scheme and offered the £1.5m contribution to support the successful 
bid for NPIF funding.  During the height of the pandemic with all businesses at 
Newnham Court Shopping Village closed and rents unaffordable, Harvestore 
reluctantly felt it necessary to reduce their contribution to £0.875m.  The retail 
sector remains fragile and with the ongoing concerns and uncertainty about the 
economy and future Covid variant’s, Harvestore are unable to increase the level of 
their contribution. 

 
4.5  Additional sources of funding have been explored, and sufficient funding to deliver 

the enhanced scheme with a 7% contingency and risk allowance has been 
identified as follows: 

 

Funding Source £m Status 

NPIF 9.400 Banked, secure – 
no time limit 

Harvestore 0.875 Funding 
agreement to be 
signed 

Maidstone BC 0.500 Funding 
agreement to be 
signed 

Covid Recovery Fund 1.375 Secure 

KCC Lane Rental Fund 0.600 Secure – banked 

Capital Reallocation 
(Including Preliminary 
design) 

1.097 Secure - banked 

S106 Contributions 
(including M20 J7 
design) 

0.810 Secure - banked 

Total 14.657  

4.6 While every effort will be made working in collaboration with the contractor to minimise 
costs, the scheme is in a quasi-urban environment, in a busy road corridor, with 
significant utility apparatus that needs to be protected or moved.  The opportunities for 
value engineering savings therefore will be very limited and also factoring in the very 
volatile and uncertain market that currently exists in respect to construction materials, 
it must be assumed that the full cost will be incurred, and all the identified funding 
required.  Further synergies could be delivered if the M20 Junction 7 scheme 
proceeds and is fully funded, and external funding opportunities for this element will 
continue to be explored. 

 

Page 44



5.  Policy Framework 

5.1  Bearsted Road corridor capacity improvements is included as a Transport Priority 
for Maidstone is included in LTP4 ‘Delivering Growth without Gridlock 2016 -2031.  
The earlier decisions taken in 18/00026 should also be noted. 

6.  Equalities Impact Assessment 

6.1  An updated Equalities Impact Assessment is included in Appendix C. 

7.  Local Members 

7.1  Local Members will continue to be consulted regarding the proposal to progress a 
dualling scheme.   

 
8.  Summary 

8.1  It is unfortunate that the dualling proposal has come forward at this advanced stage 
of scheme development, and just prior to construction, but the Covid period while 
being very difficult has provided an opportunity for reflection and challenge and to 
make use of the new County Traffic Model to review the scheme. 

 
8.2  While continuing to progress the current proposal will bring benefits there is an 

opportunity to deliver a better and more resilient scheme that will minimise 
inconvenience to drivers during the construction period, and in the longer term in 
the event of traffic incidents or essential maintenance and utility works. 

 
8.3  Further public engagement is not considered necessary.  There was extensive 

consultation in 2019 and the underlying need and principal objectives of the 
scheme remain unchanged.  While there was wide support, reviewing the 
responses again does suggest some scepticism about the adequacy of the 
proposals and progressing the dualling option would go some way to addressing 
those concerns. 

 
9.  Conclusion 

9.1  Bearsted Road and its adjacent junctions is a key part of Maidstone’s highway 
infrastructure contributing to a link around the north and east side of the town and 
the need for improvement is clear. 

 
9.2  The enhanced dualling scheme is considered to provide a better operational, safer 

and resilient solution – Appendix A.  A key aspect is that the wider dual carriageway 
road corridor can be constructed with less inconvenience to road users, KIMS, and 
the retail, commercial, veterinary, and childcare facilities at Newnham Court Village. 
This is considered vital at a time when a successful recovery of the business sector 
is paramount. 

 
9.3  The Committee is asked to note that a provisional road space booking is in place 

and the funding secured to allow the scheme to proceed with a start of construction 
of the new Newnham Court Shopping Village access and service roads in Spring 

Page 45



2022 subject to the formality of the various funding and land agreements being 
completed and planning conditions being discharged. 

10.  Recommendation(s) 

Recommendation(s): The Cabinet Committee is asked to consider and endorse, or make 
recommendations to the Cabinet Member for Environment and Transport on the proposed 
decision as follows and as indicated on the proposed decision sheet attached at Appendix 
D. 

To give approval to: 

i.  Adopt The Bearsted Road dualling scheme shown on Drg. No. 70040984-SK-0086 for 
development control, land charge disclosures and implementation; 

ii. Retain the current scheme for widening Bearsted Road to three lanes scheme shown on 
Drg. No. 70040984-SK-0087; 

iii. Delegate the decision to decide which of the two scheme options (Drg. No. 70040984-
SK-0086 or Drg. No.70040984-SK-0087) is delivered to the Corporate Director of Growth, 
Environment & Transport under the Officer Scheme of Delegations following the views of 
this Committee and after prior consultation with the Cabinet Member; 

iv. Give authority to enter into the appropriate land, development and funding agreements 
and the award of the construction contract, and all other acts and consents and any 
subsidiary contracts required to allow the scheme to be implemented; 

v. Delegate to the Corporate Director of Growth, Environment & Transport under the Officer 
Scheme of Delegations following prior consultation with the Cabinet Member, any further or 
other decisions as may be appropriate to deliver the Bearsted Road scheme; 

vi. Confirm that other decisions in Record of Decision 18/00026 remain extant. 

 

12. Background Documents 

Appendix A – Scheme Plan Drg. No. 70040984-SK-0086 to be adopted: 
https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/documents/s109774/BearstedRoadDuallingPlan.pdf   

    
Appendix B – Scheme Plan Drg. No. 70040984-SK-0087 to be retained; Bearsted 
Road Scheme Drawing 
https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/documents/s109806/BearstedRoadSchemeDrawing.pdf  

 
Appendix C – Equalities Impact Assessment: 
https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/documents/s109828/BearstedRoadEqIA.docx.pdf 

 
Appendix D – Proposed Record of Decision 22/00025 

Page 46

https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/documents/s109774/BearstedRoadDuallingPlan.pdf
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.kent.gov.uk%2Fdocuments%2Fs109806%2FBearstedRoadSchemeDrawing.pdf&data=04%7C01%7Ctheresa.warford%40kent.gov.uk%7Ce7a10b6ecf9c45e67d2408da00e61245%7C3253a20dc7354bfea8b73e6ab37f5f90%7C0%7C0%7C637823285389712242%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=2DIJAMyiZe48b5KDsyyRkAz0bPS0ErEPt%2F15nCvEWKo%3D&reserved=0
https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/documents/s109828/BearstedRoadEqIA.docx.pdf


Appendix E – Existing Record of Decision 18/00026: 
https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=2190 

13. Contact details 

Report Author 

Barry Stiff – Senior Project Manager, 
Major Capital Programme Team 

barry.stiff@kent.gov.uk 

 

Relevant Director: 

Philip Lightowler - Interim Director of 
Highways & Transportation 

philip.lightowler@kent.go.uk 

 

 

Page 47

https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=2190
mailto:barry.stiff@kent.gov.uk
file:///C:/Users/BurchL01/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/8A8E9BF3/philip.lightowler@kent.go.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



N

E

W

N

H

A

M

C

O

U

R

T

 

W

A

Y

A

2

4

9

A

2

4

9

N

E

W

 

C

U

T

 

R

O

A

D

B

E

A

R

S

T

E

D

 
R

O

A

D

B

E

A

R

S

T

E

D

 

R

O

A

D

A

2

4

9

3.2m WIDE PEDESTRIAN

ONLY CROSSING

3m WIDE SHARED

FOOTWAY/CYCLEWAY

2m WIDE FOOTWAY

3m WIDE SHARED

FOOTWAY/CYCLEWAY

THREE LANE

APPROACH TO

ROUNDABOUT

4m WIDE TOUCAN CROSSING

DITCH DIVERTED TO

SUIT NEW ALIGNMENT

PROVISION FOR

CYCLISTS TO REJOIN

CARRIAGEWAY

RESTING AREA FOR

CYCLISTS TO CROSS

THE ROAD

CREMATORIUM JUNCTION

MODIFIED TO SUIT NEW ALIGNMENT

2m WIDE

FOOTWAY

4m WIDE TOUCAN CROSSING

3m WIDE SHARED

FOOTWAY/CYCLEWAY

FOOTWAY TO BE

IMPROVED FOR

SHARED USE

DUAL CARRIAGEWAY ROAD

(LANE WIDTH 3.5m,

CENTRAL RESERVE

MINIMUM WIDTH 1.5m)

RETAINING WALL TAPERED

TO TIE IN WITH EXISTING

BATTER SLOPE

FULL HEIGHT

RETAINING WALL

(MAXIMUM HEIGHT OF

WALL IS 4.75m)

RETAINING WALL TAPERED

TO TIE IN WITH EXISTING

BATTER SLOPE

CONCRETE APRON

HIGHWAY SURFACE WATER DRAINAGE
OUTFALL INTO WATERCOURSE VIA
POLLUTION CONTROLS & LAGOONS
THROUGH LAND AT CREMATORIUM

PEDESTRIAN ACCESS

TO SHOPPING VILLAGE

AND BUSINESSES

PEDESTRIAN ACCESS

TO SHOPPING VILLAGE

AND BUSINESSES

BEARSTED ROAD

ROUNDABOUT

NEW CUT ROAD

ROUNDABOUT

VERGE TO EXTEND

TO EXISTING

BOUNDARY WALL

S

E

T

T

L

I

N

G

 

L

A

G

O

O

N

A

T

T

E

N

U

A

T

I

O

N

 

L

A

G

O

O

N

NOTES:

1. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE IN METRES UNLESS STATED

OTHERWISE.

2. THIS DRAWING IS NOT TO BE REPRODUCED IN ANY

PART OR FORM WITHOUT CONSENT OF WSP. ALL

COPYRIGHT RESERVED.

3. DRAWING TO BE PRINTED IN COLOUR.

4. THE LOCATION AND DEPTH OF ALL EXISTING

SERVICE APPARATUS SHOULD BE CONFIRMED

PRIOR TO COMMENCING ANY EXCAVATION WORK.

5. THE EXTENT OF SHARED FOOTWAY/CYCLEWAY

ALONG NEW CUT ROAD IS YET TO BE FINALISED.

KEY:

PROPOSED DESIGN

CARRIAGEWAY

NON PEDESTRIAN ISLAND/HARD LANDSCAPING

SHARED FOOTWAY/CYCLEWAY

FOOTWAY

OTHER PAVED AREAS

SWALE/LAGOON

VERGE

EARTHWORK

RETAINING WALL

N

E

W

 
C

U

T

 
R

O

A

D

EXISTING ZEBRA

CROSSING

FOOTWAY TO BE

IMPROVED FOR

SHARED USE

LOCATION PLAN

DO NOT SCALE

APPROVED:

DRAWING No:

SCALE @ A1:

TITLE:

SITE/PROJECT:

DESIGNED:

CHECKED:

DATE:

REV:

CLIENT:

F
i
l
e
 
n
a
m

e
 
C

:
\
U

S
E

R
S

\
U

K
S

R
A

0
0
3
\
D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T
S

\
W

S
P

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
\
0
2
 
K

M
C

\
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

\
0
2
_
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

 
I
N

 
P

R
E

P
A

R
A

T
I
O

N
\
7
0
0
4
0
9
8
4
-
S

K
-
0
0
8
6
 
P

0
1
.
D

W
G

,
 
p
r
i
n
t
e
d
 
o
n
 
2
1
 
F

e
b
r
u
a
r
y
 
2
0
2
2
 
1
7
:
3
2
:
1
2

,
 
b
y
 
A

l
i
,
 
R

a
g
i
b

DRAWN:

WSP UK Ltd

c

PROJECT NO:

DRAWING STATUS:

© 

Kent County Council

1st Floor,

Invicta House

Maidstone,

ME14 1XX

70040984

70040984-SK-0086 P01

KENT MEDICAL CAMPUS

TO M20 J7 IMPROVEMENTS

BEARSTED ROAD DUALLING

FULL EXTENT PLAN

1:1000 JH DC

RA RA 21/02/2022

wsp.com

4th Floor, 6 Devonshire Square, London, EC2M 4YE, UK

T+ 44 (0) 207 337 1700, F+ 44 (0) 207 337 1701

FOR DISCUSSION ONLY

FOR CONTINUATION SEE

DRAWING NUMBER 70040984-SK-0086

INSERT 'B'

FOR CONTINUATION SEE

INSERT 'B'

40 80 Metres200

Scale 1:1000

P
age 49



T
his page is intentionally left blank



N

E

W

N

H

A

M

C

O

U

R

T

 

W

A

Y

A

2

4

9

A

2

4

9

N

E

W

 

C

U

T

 

R

O

A

D

B

E

A

R

S

T

E

D

 
R

O

A

D

B

E

A

R

S

T

E

D

 

R

O

A

D

A

2

4

9

SHARED FOOTWAY/CYCLEWAY

BEARSTED ROAD

ROUNDABOUT

4m WIDE TOUCAN

CROSSING

SHARED FOOTWAY/CYCLEWAY

TAPERED TO MATCH EXISTING

2m WIDE FOOTWAY

PEDESTRIAN ACCESS

TO SHOPPING VILLAGE

AND BUSINESSES

PEDESTRIAN ACCESS

TO SHOPPING VILLAGE

AND BUSINESSES

ACCESS TO

CREMATORIUM

MAINTAINED

THREE LANE

APPROACH TO

ROUNDABOUT

3m WIDE SHARED

FOOTWAY/CYCLEWAY

3.2m WIDE PEDESTRIAN

ONLY CROSSING

3.2m WIDE PEDESTRIAN

ONLY CROSSING

DITCH DIVERTED TO

SUIT NEW ALIGNMENT

3m WIDE FOOTWAY

VERGE WIDENING

FOR VISIBILITY

NEW CUT ROAD

ROUNDABOUT

3 LANE CARRIAGEWAY

(2 LANE EASTBOUND +

1 LANE WESTBOUND)

CONCRETE APRON

HIGHWAY SURFACE WATER DRAINAGE
OUTFALL INTO WATERCOURSE VIA
POLLUTION CONTROLS & LAGOONS
THROUGH LAND AT CREMATORIUM

2m WIDE

FOOTWAY

HEADWALL

S

E

T

T

L

I

N

G

 

L

A

G

O

O

N

A

T

T

E

N

U

A

T

I

O

N

 

L

A

G

O

O

N

NOTES:

1. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE IN METRES UNLESS STATED

OTHERWISE.

2. THIS DRAWING IS NOT TO BE REPRODUCED IN ANY

PART OR FORM WITHOUT CONSENT OF WSP. ALL

COPYRIGHT RESERVED.

3. DRAWING TO BE PRINTED IN COLOUR.

4. THE LOCATION AND DEPTH OF ALL EXISTING

SERVICE APPARATUS SHOULD BE CONFIRMED

PRIOR TO COMMENCING ANY EXCAVATION WORK.

KEY:

PROPOSED DESIGN

CARRIAGEWAY

NON PEDESTRIAN ISLAND/HARD LANDSCAPING

SHARED FOOTWAY/CYCLEWAY

FOOTWAY

OTHER PAVED AREAS

SWALE/LAGOON

VERGE

EARTHWORK

RETAINING WALL

HEADWALL

N

E

W

 
C

U

T

 
R

O

A

D

EXISTING

UNCONTROLLED

CROSSING

2m WIDE

FOOTWAY

EXISTING ZEBRA

CROSSING

LOCATION PLAN

DO NOT SCALE

APPROVED:

DRAWING No:

SCALE @ A1:

TITLE:

SITE/PROJECT:

DESIGNED:

CHECKED:

DATE:

REV:

CLIENT:

F
i
l
e
 
n
a
m

e
 
C

:
\
U

S
E

R
S

\
U

K
S

R
A

0
0
3
\
D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T
S

\
W

S
P

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
\
0
2
 
K

M
C

\
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

\
0
2
_
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

 
I
N

 
P

R
E

P
A

R
A

T
I
O

N
\
7
0
0
4
0
9
8
4
-
S

K
-
0
0
8
7
 
P

0
1
.
D

W
G

,
 
p
r
i
n
t
e
d
 
o
n
 
2
3
 
F

e
b
r
u
a
r
y
 
2
0
2
2
 
0
9
:
5
0
:
2
1

,
 
b
y
 
A

l
i
,
 
R

a
g
i
b

DRAWN:

WSP UK Ltd

c

PROJECT NO:

DRAWING STATUS:

© 

Kent County Council

1st Floor,

Invicta House

Maidstone,

ME14 1XX

70040984

70040984-SK-0087 P01

KENT MEDICAL CAMPUS

TO M20 J7 IMPROVEMENTS

CURRENT TENDERED LAYOUT

FULL EXTENT PLAN

1:1000 JH DC

RA RA 23/02/2022

wsp.com

4th Floor, 6 Devonshire Square, London, EC2M 4YE, UK

T+ 44 (0) 207 337 1700, F+ 44 (0) 207 337 1701

FOR DISCUSSION ONLY

FOR CONTINUATION SEE

DRAWING NUMBER 70040984-SK-0087

INSERT 'B'

FOR CONTINUATION SEE

INSERT 'B'

40 80 Metres200

Scale 1:1000

P
age 51

AutoCAD SHX Text
53.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
55.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
55.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
54.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
54.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
55.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
54.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
53.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
53.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
53.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
53.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
53.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
54.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
54.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
54.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
53.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
52.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
52.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
53.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
53.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
53.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
53.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
53.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
53.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
54.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
53.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
WL

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
52.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
53.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
silted pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
dense foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
52.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
52.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
52.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
52.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
52.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
52.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
52.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
52.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
52.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
53.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
53.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
53.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
53.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
53.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
53.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
53.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
53.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
53.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
53.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
53.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
53.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
52.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
52.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
52.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
52.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
52.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
52.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
51.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
53.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
52.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
52.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
52.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
52.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
52.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
52.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
52.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
52.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
52.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
55.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
55.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
54.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
54.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
55.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
55.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
54.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
54.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
52.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
52.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
53.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
53.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
54.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
54.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
53.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
53.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
53.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
53.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
54.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
54.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
54.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
53.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
53.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
52.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
53.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
55.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
54.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
54.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
53.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
53.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
53.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
53.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
53.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
53.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
54.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
54.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
54.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
55.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
55.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
56.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
56.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
56.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
59.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
59.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
59.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
59.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
58.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
58.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
57.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
57.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
57.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
57.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
57.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
56.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
55.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
55.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
55.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
54.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
54.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
54.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
53.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
53.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
53.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
56.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
56.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
56.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
56.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
55.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
55.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
55.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
55.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
55.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
55.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
55.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
56.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
56.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
56.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
56.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
57.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
57.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
57.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
56.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
56.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
56.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
56.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
56.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
56.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
55.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
55.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
55.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
56.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
57.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
57.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
57.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
57.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
57.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
57.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
56.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
56.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
56.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
56.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
56.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
56.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
56.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
55.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
55.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
55.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
55.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
56.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
56.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
56.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
56.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
56.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
57.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
57.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
53.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
53.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
53.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
53.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
53.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
53.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
53.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
52.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
52.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
52.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
52.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
52.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
52.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
52.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
57.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
57.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
soffit=54.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
il=53.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
54.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
54.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
54.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
54.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
54.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
54.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
54.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
54.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
54.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
53.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
56.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
52.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
52.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
52.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
52.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
52.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
54.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
52.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
52.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
52.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
52.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
52.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
52.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
52.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
52.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
52.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
53.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
53.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
footbridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
PG

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
53.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
54.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
54.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
53.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
PG

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
53.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
54.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
53.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
53.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
53.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
53.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
53.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
53.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
53.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
53.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
53.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
53.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
53.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
52.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
52.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
53.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
53.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
52.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
52.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
52.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
53.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
53.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
52.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
52.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
56.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
56.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
56.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
55.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
55.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
57.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
56.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
56.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
57.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
56.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
55.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
54.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
54.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
55.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
56.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
55.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
56.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
55.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
54.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
55.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
57.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
57.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
56.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
56.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
56.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
56.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
55.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
55.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
55.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
55.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
55.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
55.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
55.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
55.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
54.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
55.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
53.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
53.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
53.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
53.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
53.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
53.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
53.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
53.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
53.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
53.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
53.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
53.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
52.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
53.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
53.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
53.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
53.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
53.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
53.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
53.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
53.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
53.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
53.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
53.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
57.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
56.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
56.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
56.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
55.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
55.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
56.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
55.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
55.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
57.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
57.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
57.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
56.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
56.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
55.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
56.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
55.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
57.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
57.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
57.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
56.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
55.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
54.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
54.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
54.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
54.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
56.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
56.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
56.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
55.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
156798.70 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
    56.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
BX

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
55.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
54.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
54.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
54.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
54.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
54.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
54.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
54.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
54.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
52.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
52.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
52.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
54.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
54.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
54.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
54.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
54.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
54.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
54.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
54.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
54.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
54.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
54.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
54.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
54.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
55.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
55.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
55.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
55.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
55.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
55.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
55.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
55.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
55.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
54.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
54.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
53.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
578038.41 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
56.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
56.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
55.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
56.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
56.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
55.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
55.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
56.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
car park

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
56.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
56.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
56.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
56.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
56.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
T200

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
55.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
56.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
56.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
55.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
55.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
55.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
57.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
57.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
57.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
57.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
57.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
57.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
57.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
57.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
56.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
56.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
56.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
56.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
56.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
56.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
56.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
56.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
56.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
56.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
56.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
55.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
56.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
56.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
56.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
56.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
56.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
56.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
56.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
56.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
56.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
56.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
56.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
56.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
56.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
57.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
57.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
57.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
57.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
57.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
57.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
57.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
57.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
56.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
56.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
56.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
56.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
56.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
56.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
56.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
56.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
56.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
56.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
56.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
56.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
57.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
57.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
57.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
57.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
57.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
57.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
57.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
56.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
57.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
56.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
57.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
57.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
57.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
57.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
57.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
56.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
57.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
57.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
58.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
58.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
58.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
57.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
58.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
58.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
58.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
57.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
58.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
58.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
58.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
57.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
58.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
58.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
57.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
BX

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
57.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
57.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
57.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
57.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
57.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
57.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
57.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
57.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
57.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
58.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
58.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
59.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
59.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
58.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
59.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
59.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
59.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
59.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
59.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
58.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
58.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
stump

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
58.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
59.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
59.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
58.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
58.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
57.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
57.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
57.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
57.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
57.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
57.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
57.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
57.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
57.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
58.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
58.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
57.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
57.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
57.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
58.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
58.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
58.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
59.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
59.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
T201

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
577984.46 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
156840.79 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
    58.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
59.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
59.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
60.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_583
59.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
il=52.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
soffit=52.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
il=52.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
rough stone lined channel

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
silted culvert

AutoCAD SHX Text_589
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_590
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_591
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_592
Gidd's Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_593
SHEPHERDS GATE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_594
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_595
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_596
Gidd's Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_597
COPPICE

AutoCAD SHX Text_598
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_599
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_600
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_601
Gidd's Pond Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_602
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_603
BEARSTED ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_604
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_605
VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text_606
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_607
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_608
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_609
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_610
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_611
65.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_612
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_613
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_614
HENLEY FIELDS

AutoCAD SHX Text_615
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_616
NEW CUT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_617
Freshwoods

AutoCAD SHX Text_618
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_619
Dawn Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_620
Fenwynd

AutoCAD SHX Text_621
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_622
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_623
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_624
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_625
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_626
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_627
Newnham Court Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_628
Newnham Court Inn (PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_629
Lodge Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_630
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_631
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_632
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_633
Plaistow Square

AutoCAD SHX Text_634
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_635
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_636
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_637
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_638
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_639
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_640
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_641
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_642
KEWLANDS

AutoCAD SHX Text_643
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_644
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_645
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_646
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_647
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_648
WEYHILL

AutoCAD SHX Text_649
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_650
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_651
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_652
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_653
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_654
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_655
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_656
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_657
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_658
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_659
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_660
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_661
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_662
BARGROVE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_663
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_664
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_665
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_666
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_667
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_668
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_669
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_670
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_671
Crematorium

AutoCAD SHX Text_672
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_673
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_674
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_675
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_676
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_677
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_678
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_679
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_680
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_681
NEWENDEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_682
NEWENDEN CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_683
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_684
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_685
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_686
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_687
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_688
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_689
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_690
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_691
BARGROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_692
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_693
GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_694
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_695
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_696
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_697
HAMPTON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_698
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_699
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_700
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_701
WEYHILL CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_702
Vinters Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_703
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_704
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_705
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_706
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_707
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_708
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_709
EMSWORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_710
THE MEDLARS

AutoCAD SHX Text_711
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_712
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_713
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_714
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_715
Lower Fullingpits Wood

AutoCAD SHX Text_716
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_717
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_718
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_719
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_720
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_721
Twyford Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_722
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_723
NETLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_724
Vinters Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_725
Netley Close

AutoCAD SHX Text_726
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_727
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_728
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_729
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_730
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_731
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_732
Tanks

AutoCAD SHX Text_733
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_734
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_735
Towergate House

AutoCAD SHX Text_736
Springs

AutoCAD SHX Text_737
Lake

AutoCAD SHX Text_738
Oak

AutoCAD SHX Text_739
Horizon House

AutoCAD SHX Text_740
Globe House

AutoCAD SHX Text_741
Eclipse Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_742
Mast

AutoCAD SHX Text_743
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_744
Eclipse House

AutoCAD SHX Text_745
Playground

AutoCAD SHX Text_746
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_747
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_748
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_749
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_750
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_751
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_752
Mast

AutoCAD SHX Text_753
Tall Trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_754
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_755
68.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_756
Melton

AutoCAD SHX Text_757
BEARSTED ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_758
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_759
SITTINGBOURNE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_760
BEARSTED ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_761
M 20

AutoCAD SHX Text_762
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_763
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_764
66.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_765
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_766
Park and Ride

AutoCAD SHX Text_767
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_768
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_769
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_770
Stas

AutoCAD SHX Text_771
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_772
Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_773
Gantry

AutoCAD SHX Text_774
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_775
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_776
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_777
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_778
M 20

AutoCAD SHX Text_779
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_780
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_781
Hockers Shaw

AutoCAD SHX Text_782
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_783
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_784
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_785
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_786
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_787
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_788
Horish Wood

AutoCAD SHX Text_789
Sluice

AutoCAD SHX Text_790
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_791
Horish Wood

AutoCAD SHX Text_792
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_793
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_794
Newnham Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_795
M 20

AutoCAD SHX Text_796
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_797
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_798
SITTINGBOURNE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_799
Veterinary

AutoCAD SHX Text_800
The Oasts

AutoCAD SHX Text_801
Clinic

AutoCAD SHX Text_802
A 249

AutoCAD SHX Text_803
GIDDS POND WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_804
NEWNHAM COURT WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_805
(KNAF526)

AutoCAD SHX Text_806
(SI_42)

AutoCAD SHX Text_807
french drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_808
(KNAF047)

AutoCAD SHX Text_809
(SI_41)

AutoCAD SHX Text_810
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_811
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_812
DfT

AutoCAD SHX Text_813
kerb drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_814
SSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_815
DfT

AutoCAD SHX Text_816
SSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_817
french drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_818
remains of fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_819
NP

AutoCAD SHX Text_820
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_821
woodland

AutoCAD SHX Text_822
dia.=0.25m

AutoCAD SHX Text_823
conc.

AutoCAD SHX Text_824
conc.

AutoCAD SHX Text_825
i/r

AutoCAD SHX Text_826
il=

AutoCAD SHX Text_827
54.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_828
kerb drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_829
overgrown

AutoCAD SHX Text_830
drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_831
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_832
(SI_39)

AutoCAD SHX Text_833
rw

AutoCAD SHX Text_834
il=

AutoCAD SHX Text_835
55.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_836
culvert

AutoCAD SHX Text_837
woodland

AutoCAD SHX Text_838
kerb drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_839
BEARSTED ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_840
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_841
track

AutoCAD SHX Text_842
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_843
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_844
woodland

AutoCAD SHX Text_845
gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_846
kerb drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_847
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_848
56.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_849
WL

AutoCAD SHX Text_850
54.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_851
soffit=

AutoCAD SHX Text_852
55.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_853
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_854
56.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_855
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_856
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_857
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_858
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_859
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_860
56.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_861
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_862
56.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_863
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_864
56.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_865
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_866
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_867
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_868
56.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_869
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_870
56.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_871
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_872
56.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_873
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_874
56.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_875
LP/CCTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_876
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_877
56.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_878
56.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_879
    57.012

AutoCAD SHX Text_880
PSS10

AutoCAD SHX Text_881
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_882
156795.417 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_883
578119.226 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_884
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_885
(SI_50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_886
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_887
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_888
(SI_56)

AutoCAD SHX Text_889
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_890
(KNAF518)

AutoCAD SHX Text_891
(SI_55)

AutoCAD SHX Text_892
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_893
(SI_52)

AutoCAD SHX Text_894
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_895
(SI_53)

AutoCAD SHX Text_896
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_897
SI

AutoCAD SHX Text_898
(SI_54)

AutoCAD SHX Text_899
(KNAF518A)

AutoCAD SHX Text_900
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_901
(KNAF522)

AutoCAD SHX Text_902
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_903
(SI_35)

AutoCAD SHX Text_904
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_905
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_906
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_907
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_908
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_909
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_910
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_911
(KNAF523)

AutoCAD SHX Text_912
(SI_34)

AutoCAD SHX Text_913
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_914
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_915
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_916
MH(CP)

AutoCAD SHX Text_917
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_918
chevrons

AutoCAD SHX Text_919
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_920
MH(F)

AutoCAD SHX Text_921
p/r fence h=1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_922
DfT

AutoCAD SHX Text_923
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_924
InteR

AutoCAD SHX Text_925
NP

AutoCAD SHX Text_926
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_927
BX

AutoCAD SHX Text_928
WO(F)

AutoCAD SHX Text_929
BX

AutoCAD SHX Text_930
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_931
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_932
NP

AutoCAD SHX Text_933
(KNAF050)

AutoCAD SHX Text_934
(SI_40)

AutoCAD SHX Text_935
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_936
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_937
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_938
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_939
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_940
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_941
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_942
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_943
(SI_37)

AutoCAD SHX Text_944
(KNAF524)

AutoCAD SHX Text_945
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_946
(SI_61)

AutoCAD SHX Text_947
(KNAF519)

AutoCAD SHX Text_948
(SI_57)

AutoCAD SHX Text_949
(SI_58)

AutoCAD SHX Text_950
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_951
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_952
(SI_59)

AutoCAD SHX Text_953
(KNAF517)

AutoCAD SHX Text_954
(SI_60)

AutoCAD SHX Text_955
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_956
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_957
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_958
(LFAV702)

AutoCAD SHX Text_959
(SI_38)

AutoCAD SHX Text_960
chevrons

AutoCAD SHX Text_961
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_962
DfT

AutoCAD SHX Text_963
NP

AutoCAD SHX Text_964
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_965
p/w h=1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_966
(SI_36)

AutoCAD SHX Text_967
(KNAF049A)

AutoCAD SHX Text_968
InteR

AutoCAD SHX Text_969
DfT

AutoCAD SHX Text_970
NP

AutoCAD SHX Text_971
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_972
gabions

AutoCAD SHX Text_973
p/r fence h=1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_974
sign

AutoCAD SHX Text_975
dia.=

AutoCAD SHX Text_976
0.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_977
il=

AutoCAD SHX Text_978
55.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_979
il=

AutoCAD SHX Text_980
55.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_981
il=

AutoCAD SHX Text_982
55.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_983
gabions

AutoCAD SHX Text_984
conc.

AutoCAD SHX Text_985
gabions

AutoCAD SHX Text_986
gabions

AutoCAD SHX Text_987
dia.=0.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_988
NEWNHAM COURT WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_989
il=

AutoCAD SHX Text_990
57.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_991
il=

AutoCAD SHX Text_992
57.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_993
conc.

AutoCAD SHX Text_994
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_995
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_996
kerb drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_997
BEARSTED ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_998
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_999
drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_1000
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1001
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1002
InteR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1003
(KNAF051)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1004
gabion r/w

AutoCAD SHX Text_1005
dia.=0.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1006
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1007
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1008
attachment

AutoCAD SHX Text_1009
points

AutoCAD SHX Text_1010
(MH_11)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1011
gabions

AutoCAD SHX Text_1012
remains of fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_1013
overgrown bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_1014
il=

AutoCAD SHX Text_1015
54.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1016
box culvert

AutoCAD SHX Text_1017
i/r

AutoCAD SHX Text_1018
il=

AutoCAD SHX Text_1019
54.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_1020
il=

AutoCAD SHX Text_1021
55.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1022
dia.=0.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1023
sapling plantation

AutoCAD SHX Text_1024
dia.=0.30m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1025
dia.=0.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1026
concrete base

AutoCAD SHX Text_1027
(MH_18)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1028
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_1029
56.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1030
soffit=

AutoCAD SHX Text_1031
55.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1032
WL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1033
54.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1034
soffit=

AutoCAD SHX Text_1035
55.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1036
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_1037
56.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1038
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_1039
56.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1040
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1041
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1042
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_1043
56.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1044
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1045
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1046
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1047
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1048
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1049
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1050
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1051
WC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1052
56.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1053
    56.622

AutoCAD SHX Text_1054
156806.597 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1055
578162.037 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1056
PSS09

AutoCAD SHX Text_1057
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1058
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1059
56.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1060
stay

AutoCAD SHX Text_1061
56.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1062
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1063
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1064
56.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1065
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1066
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_1067
56.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1068
    57.322

AutoCAD SHX Text_1069
156844.709 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1070
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1071
57.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1072
578147.995 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1073
PSS08

AutoCAD SHX Text_1074
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1075
57.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1076
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1077
57.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1078
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1079
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1080
56.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_1081
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1082
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1083
57.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1084
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1085
57.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1086
57.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_1087
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1088
57.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1089
57.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1090
57.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_1091
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1092
57.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1093
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1094
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1095
56.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1096
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1097
56.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1098
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1099
56.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_1100
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1101
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1102
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1103
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1104
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1105
58.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1106
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1107
56.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1108
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1109
58.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1110
56.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_1111
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1112
56.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1113
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_1114
56.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1115
57.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1116
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1117
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1118
57.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1119
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1120
57.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1121
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1122
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1123
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1124
58.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1125
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1126
58.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1127
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1128
56.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_1129
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1130
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1131
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1132
conc.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1133
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1134
DfT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1135
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1136
bus

AutoCAD SHX Text_1137
shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1138
pedestrian crossing studs

AutoCAD SHX Text_1139
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1140
(No '2')

AutoCAD SHX Text_1141
pedestrian crossing studs

AutoCAD SHX Text_1142
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1143
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1144
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1145
stone wall h=1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1146
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1147
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1148
(KBBB511)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1149
BX

AutoCAD SHX Text_1150
(11/0963)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1151
small trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_1152
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1153
(KBBB031)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1154
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1155
(KBBB032)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1156
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1157
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1158
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1159
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1160
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1161
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1162
BX

AutoCAD SHX Text_1163
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1164
overgrown bank and trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_1165
SLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_1166
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1167
bench

AutoCAD SHX Text_1168
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1169
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1170
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1171
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1172
stone strip

AutoCAD SHX Text_1173
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1174
(SI_24)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1175
(KBBB033)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1176
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1177
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1178
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1179
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1180
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1181
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1182
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1183
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1184
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1185
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1186
flower bed

AutoCAD SHX Text_1187
sign

AutoCAD SHX Text_1188
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1189
BX

AutoCAD SHX Text_1190
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1191
flower bed

AutoCAD SHX Text_1192
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1193
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1194
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1195
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1196
chevrons

AutoCAD SHX Text_1197
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1198
flower bed

AutoCAD SHX Text_1199
TURN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1200
LEFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1201
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1202
c/l fence 2.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1203
il=64.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_1204
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1205
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1206
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1207
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1208
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1209
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1210
TURN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1211
(SI_27)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1212
NO

AutoCAD SHX Text_1213
RIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1214
(SI_26)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1215
(KBBB040)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1216
BH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1217
62.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1218
(SI_25)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1219
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1220
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1221
BH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1222
62.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1223
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1224
SLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_1225
signs

AutoCAD SHX Text_1226
flower

AutoCAD SHX Text_1227
bed

AutoCAD SHX Text_1228
flower

AutoCAD SHX Text_1229
bed

AutoCAD SHX Text_1230
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1231
(SI_29)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1232
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1233
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1234
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1235
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1236
(KBBB041)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1237
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1238
(SI_28)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1239
p/r fence h=1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1240
dense foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1241
BH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1242
65.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1243
sapling plantation

AutoCAD SHX Text_1244
p/r fence h=1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1245
BH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1246
64.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1247
SLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_1248
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1249
BH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1250
64.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_1251
(MH_5)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1252
stone wall h=1.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1253
(SI_30)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1254
(KBBB033)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1255
DfT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1256
(SI_31)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1257
dense foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1258
sapling plantation

AutoCAD SHX Text_1259
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1260
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1261
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1262
(KNAF520)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1263
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1264
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1265
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1266
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1267
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1268
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1269
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1270
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1271
NP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1272
InteR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1273
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1274
BEARSTED ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1275
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1276
sign

AutoCAD SHX Text_1277
sign

AutoCAD SHX Text_1278
NP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1279
BX

AutoCAD SHX Text_1280
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1281
(KNAF521)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1282
(SI_48)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1283
sapling plantation

AutoCAD SHX Text_1284
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1285
(SI_32)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1286
(KNAF049)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1287
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1288
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_1289
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1290
SSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1291
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1292
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1293
dense foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1294
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1295
(SI_51)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1296
gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_1297
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1298
NP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1299
c/l fence h=1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1300
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1301
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1302
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1303
(KNAF501)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1304
(KNAF048)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1305
(SI_47)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1306
(MH_7)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1307
MH(F)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1308
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1309
(MH_10)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1310
(SI_33)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1311
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1312
(MH_6)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1313
overhead cables

AutoCAD SHX Text_1314
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1315
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1316
chevrons

AutoCAD SHX Text_1317
(SI_43)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1318
(KNAF046)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1319
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1320
gabions

AutoCAD SHX Text_1321
gabions

AutoCAD SHX Text_1322
conc.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1323
gabions

AutoCAD SHX Text_1324
conc.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1325
gabions

AutoCAD SHX Text_1326
dia.=0.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1327
p/r fence h=1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1328
il=

AutoCAD SHX Text_1329
58.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_1330
dia.=0.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1331
il=

AutoCAD SHX Text_1332
58.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_1333
dia.=0.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1334
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1335
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1336
il=53.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1337
box culvert

AutoCAD SHX Text_1338
box culvert

AutoCAD SHX Text_1339
p/r h=1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1340
il= 53.70m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1341
soffit= 54.70m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1342
soffit= 54.72m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1343
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1344
il=53.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_1345
il=54.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1346
i/r h=1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1347
silt

AutoCAD SHX Text_1348
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1349
culvert

AutoCAD SHX Text_1350
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1351
(KNAF503)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1352
dia.=0.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1353
p/r

AutoCAD SHX Text_1354
dia.=0.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1355
dia.=0.37m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1356
c/l fence h=1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1357
overgrown bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_1358
NEW CUT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1359
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1360
(SI_45)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1361
(SI_44)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1362
(KNAF045)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1363
(KNAF502)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1364
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_1365
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1366
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1367
gabions

AutoCAD SHX Text_1368
conc.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1369
il=

AutoCAD SHX Text_1370
58.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_1371
il=

AutoCAD SHX Text_1372
59.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1373
dia.=0.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1374
dia.=0.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1375
dia.=0.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1376
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1377
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1378
p/r ht=1.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1379
gabions

AutoCAD SHX Text_1380
(MH_16)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1381
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1382
il=

AutoCAD SHX Text_1383
59.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_1384
gabions

AutoCAD SHX Text_1385
dia.=0.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1386
dia.=0.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1387
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1388
il=

AutoCAD SHX Text_1389
59.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1390
gabions

AutoCAD SHX Text_1391
(MH_9)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1392
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1393
(Gu_20)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1394
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1395
(Gu_11)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1396
gabions

AutoCAD SHX Text_1397
conc.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1398
MH(F)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1399
gabions

AutoCAD SHX Text_1400
(Gu_4)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1401
(Gu_2)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1402
(Gu_3)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1403
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1404
(Gu_1)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1405
attachment

AutoCAD SHX Text_1406
points

AutoCAD SHX Text_1407
(KNAF044)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1408
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1409
(SI_46)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1410
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1411
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_1412
(KNAF504)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1413
SSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1414
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1415
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1416
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1417
(KNAF043)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1418
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1419
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1420
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1421
car park

AutoCAD SHX Text_1422
extent of tree canopy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1423
RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1424
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1425
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1426
(Gu_5)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1427
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1428
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1429
62.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1430
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1431
stay

AutoCAD SHX Text_1432
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1433
59.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1434
59.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_1435
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1436
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1437
63.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1438
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1439
61.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1440
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1441
61.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1442
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1443
61.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1444
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1445
61.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1446
61.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1447
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1448
64.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1449
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1450
65.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1451
59.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_1452
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1453
59.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_1454
WB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1455
60.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1456
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1457
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1458
60.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1459
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1460
60.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_1461
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1462
60.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1463
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1464
62.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_1465
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1466
    60.248

AutoCAD SHX Text_1467
156903.976 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1468
577986.528 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1469
PSS06

AutoCAD SHX Text_1470
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1471
WC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1472
60.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1473
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1474
60.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1475
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1476
65.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1477
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1478
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1479
61.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1480
60.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_1481
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1482
61.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_1483
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1484
60.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_1485
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1486
60.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_1487
Mkr

AutoCAD SHX Text_1488
61.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_1489
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1490
56.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_1491
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1492
57.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1493
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1494
57.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1495
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1496
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1497
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1498
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1499
57.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1500
    57.533

AutoCAD SHX Text_1501
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1502
156841.842 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1503
578102.837 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1504
PSS07

AutoCAD SHX Text_1505
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1506
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1507
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1508
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1509
57.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1510
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1511
57.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1512
Mkr

AutoCAD SHX Text_1513
57.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_1514
WC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1515
57.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1516
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1517
57.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1518
57.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1519
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1520
57.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1521
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1522
57.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1523
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1524
57.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1525
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1526
57.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1527
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1528
57.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1529
Mkr

AutoCAD SHX Text_1530
57.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1531
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1532
57.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1533
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1534
57.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1535
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1536
57.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1537
57.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1538
57.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1539
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1540
57.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_1541
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1542
57.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1543
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1544
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1545
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1546
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1547
57.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_1548
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1549
stay

AutoCAD SHX Text_1550
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1551
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1552
58.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1553
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1554
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1555
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1556
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1557
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1558
56.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1559
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1560
56.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_1561
WC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1562
57.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1563
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1564
56.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1565
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1566
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1567
55.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1568
Mkr

AutoCAD SHX Text_1569
55.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1570
Mkr

AutoCAD SHX Text_1571
55.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_1572
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1573
56.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1574
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1575
56.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1576
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1577
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1578
61.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_1579
58.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1580
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1581
61.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1582
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1583
59.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_1584
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1585
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1586
59.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_1587
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1588
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1589
59.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1590
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1591
56.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_1592
Mkr

AutoCAD SHX Text_1593
55.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1594
BS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1595
58.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_1596
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1597
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1598
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1599
59.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_1600
WO

AutoCAD SHX Text_1601
59.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1602
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1603
59.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1604
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1605
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1606
56.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_1607
    59.824

AutoCAD SHX Text_1608
156910.916 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1609
578215.718 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1610
PSS13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1611
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1612
59.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_1613
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1614
59.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_1615
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1616
59.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1617
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1618
59.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_1619
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1620
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1621
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1622
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1623
56.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_1624
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1625
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1626
57.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1627
soffit=

AutoCAD SHX Text_1628
54.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_1629
WL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1630
53.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_1631
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1632
57.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1633
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1634
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1635
PSS11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1636
578074.366 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1637
156723.463 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1638
    57.358

AutoCAD SHX Text_1639
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1640
58.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_1641
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1642
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1643
57.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_1644
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1645
59.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_1646
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1647
58.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_1648
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1649
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1650
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1651
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1652
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1653
65.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1654
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1655
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1656
61.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_1657
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1658
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1659
60.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_1660
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1661
65.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1662
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1663
65.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1664
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1665
65.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1666
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1667
65.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1668
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1669
65.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1670
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1671
65.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1672
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1673
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1674
65.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1675
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1676
65.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1677
LP/CCTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1678
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1679
65.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1680
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1681
65.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_1682
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1683
65.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_1684
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1685
65.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1686
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1687
62.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_1688
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1689
RSs

AutoCAD SHX Text_1690
Tap

AutoCAD SHX Text_1691
65.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1692
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1693
65.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_1694
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1695
65.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1696
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1697
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1698
65.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_1699
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1700
65.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1701
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1702
65.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_1703
62.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1704
BS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1705
62.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_1706
66.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1707
stay

AutoCAD SHX Text_1708
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1709
66.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1710
stay

AutoCAD SHX Text_1711
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1712
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1713
65.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_1714
60.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1715
60.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1716
60.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1717
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1718
66.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1719
66.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1720
66.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1721
66.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1722
BEARSTED ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1723
(KBBB028)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1724
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1725
DYL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1726
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1727
(KBBB030)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1728
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1729
(SI_23)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1730
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1731
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1732
(SI_22)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1733
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_1734
overgrown bank and trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_1735
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1736
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1737
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1738
car park

AutoCAD SHX Text_1739
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1740
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1741
RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1742
BX

AutoCAD SHX Text_1743
pedestrian

AutoCAD SHX Text_1744
crossing

AutoCAD SHX Text_1745
overhead

AutoCAD SHX Text_1746
structure

AutoCAD SHX Text_1747
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1748
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1749
SI

AutoCAD SHX Text_1750
BX

AutoCAD SHX Text_1751
(Gu_13)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1752
(Gu_14)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1753
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1754
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1755
(Gu_12)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1756
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1757
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1758
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1759
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1760
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1761
(Gu_7)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1762
SI

AutoCAD SHX Text_1763
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1764
(MH_2)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1765
(Gu_6)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1766
(MH_3)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1767
(MH_4)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1768
(MH_1)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1769
gabions

AutoCAD SHX Text_1770
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1771
il=

AutoCAD SHX Text_1772
59.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_1773
il=

AutoCAD SHX Text_1774
59.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_1775
dia.=0.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1776
(Gu_10)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1777
gabions

AutoCAD SHX Text_1778
dia.=0.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1779
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1780
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1781
66.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1782
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1783
63.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_1784
    63.431

AutoCAD SHX Text_1785
PSS01

AutoCAD SHX Text_1786
156946.509 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1787
577887.272 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1788
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1789
63.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_1790
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1791
63.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1792
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1793
65.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1794
65.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1795
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1796
LP/CCTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1797
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1798
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1799
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1800
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1801
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1802
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1803
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1804
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1805
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1806
65.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_1807
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1808
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1809
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1810
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1811
65.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_1812
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1813
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1814
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1815
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1816
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1817
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1818
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1819
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1820
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1821
ER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1822
62.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1823
62.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1824
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_1825
62.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1826
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1827
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1828
FL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1829
66.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_1830
66.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_1831
66.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_1832
66.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_1833
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1834
66.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_1835
65.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_1836
60.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_1837
(SI_09)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1838
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1839
(SI_10)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1840
(KBBB017)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1841
(SI_07)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1842
cheverons

AutoCAD SHX Text_1843
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1844
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1845
MH(F)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1846
(KBBB019)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1847
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1848
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1849
AV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1850
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1851
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_1852
(KBBB016A)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1853
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1854
BEAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1855
tree canopy extent

AutoCAD SHX Text_1856
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1857
(SI_08)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1858
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1859
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1860
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1861
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1862
MH(F)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1863
(KBBB016)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1864
M20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1865
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1866
DYL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1867
DYL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1868
MH(F)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1869
DOV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1870
M20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1871
LON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1872
MAID

AutoCAD SHX Text_1873
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_1874
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_1875
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1876
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_1877
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1878
concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_1879
base

AutoCAD SHX Text_1880
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1881
kerb drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_1882
M20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1883
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1884
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1885
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1886
(KBBB025)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1887
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_1888
(SI_13)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1889
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1890
(SI_21)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1891
(SI_20)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1892
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_1893
MAID

AutoCAD SHX Text_1894
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1895
(KBBB026)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1896
(SI_19)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1897
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1898
gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_1899
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1900
(KBBB512)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1901
(SI_14)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1902
(SI_15)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1903
MAID

AutoCAD SHX Text_1904
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_1905
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1906
concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_1907
bases

AutoCAD SHX Text_1908
(SI_16)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1909
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1910
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1911
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1912
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1913
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1914
MAID

AutoCAD SHX Text_1915
(KBBB014)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1916
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1917
MAID

AutoCAD SHX Text_1918
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1919
exposed old

AutoCAD SHX Text_1920
road surface

AutoCAD SHX Text_1921
stone wall ht=1.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1922
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_1923
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_1924
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_1925
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1926
M20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1927
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1928
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1929
(KBBB012)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1930
(KBBB018)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1931
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_1932
kerb drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_1933
retaining wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1934
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1935
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1936
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1937
chevrons

AutoCAD SHX Text_1938
(KBBB021)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1939
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1940
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1941
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1942
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1943
(SI_17)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1944
(SI_18)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1945
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1946
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1947
(KBBB022)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1948
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1949
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_1950
overgrown bank and trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_1951
(KBBB029)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1952
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1953
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1954
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1955
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1956
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1957
BX

AutoCAD SHX Text_1958
mesh fence h=0.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1959
c/l fence h=2.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1960
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1961
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1962
car park

AutoCAD SHX Text_1963
SI

AutoCAD SHX Text_1964
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1965
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1966
car park

AutoCAD SHX Text_1967
CAR WASH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1968
f/b fence h=1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1969
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1970
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1971
OVERFLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_1972
CAR PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1973
drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_1974
canopy line

AutoCAD SHX Text_1975
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1976
car park

AutoCAD SHX Text_1977
(No '8')

AutoCAD SHX Text_1978
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1979
i/r

AutoCAD SHX Text_1980
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1981
flower bed

AutoCAD SHX Text_1982
ped. crossing studs

AutoCAD SHX Text_1983
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1984
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1985
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1986
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1987
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1988
sign

AutoCAD SHX Text_1989
car wash

AutoCAD SHX Text_1990
f/b fence h=1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1991
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1992
container

AutoCAD SHX Text_1993
retaining wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1994
car park

AutoCAD SHX Text_1995
(KBBB013)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1996
flower bed

AutoCAD SHX Text_1997
concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_1998
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1999
flower bed

AutoCAD SHX Text_2000
car park

AutoCAD SHX Text_2001
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2002
PTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2003
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2004
asphalt

AutoCAD SHX Text_2005
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2006
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2007
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2008
(MH_13)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2009
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2010
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2011
(MH_14)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2012
SI

AutoCAD SHX Text_2013
(Gu_17)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2014
(Gu_18)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2015
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2016
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2017
(MH_17)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2018
steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_2019
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2020
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2021
(MH_12)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2022
brick setts

AutoCAD SHX Text_2023
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2024
p/r

AutoCAD SHX Text_2025
(Gu_8)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2026
SI

AutoCAD SHX Text_2027
(Gu_9)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2028
brick wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_2029
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2030
(Gu_19)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2031
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2032
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2033
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2034
RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2035
(Gu_16)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2036
(Gu_15)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2037
ramp

AutoCAD SHX Text_2038
RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2039
SI

AutoCAD SHX Text_2040
steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_2041
(MH_15)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2042
(MH_8)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2043
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2044
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_2045
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2046
(No '14')

AutoCAD SHX Text_2047
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2048
(No '12')

AutoCAD SHX Text_2049
tree canopy extent

AutoCAD SHX Text_2050
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2051
(No '13')

AutoCAD SHX Text_2052
(KBBB012)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2053
(11 V 116)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2054
(SI_12)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2055
(SI_11)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2056
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2057
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2058
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_2059
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2060
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2061
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2062
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2063
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2064
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2065
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2066
(No '1')

AutoCAD SHX Text_2067
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_2068
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2069
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2070
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2071
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2072
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2073
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2074
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2075
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2076
pedestrian crossing studs

AutoCAD SHX Text_2077
pedestrian crossing studs

AutoCAD SHX Text_2078
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2079
(No '10')

AutoCAD SHX Text_2080
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2081
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2082
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2083
(No '11')

AutoCAD SHX Text_2084
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2085
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2086
(No '9')

AutoCAD SHX Text_2087
box junction

AutoCAD SHX Text_2088
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_2089
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2090
(SI_06)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2091
(KBBB515)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2092
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2093
i/r

AutoCAD SHX Text_2094
ped. crossing studs

AutoCAD SHX Text_2095
(No '7')

AutoCAD SHX Text_2096
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2097
overhead

AutoCAD SHX Text_2098
gantry

AutoCAD SHX Text_2099
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2100
59/0

AutoCAD SHX Text_2101
659/0/A

AutoCAD SHX Text_2102
MD2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2103
VDPs

AutoCAD SHX Text_2104
steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_2105
VDPs

AutoCAD SHX Text_2106
BX

AutoCAD SHX Text_2107
steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_2108
59/0/A

AutoCAD SHX Text_2109
MD-AM1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2110
659/0/A

AutoCAD SHX Text_2111
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_2112
BX

AutoCAD SHX Text_2113
BX

AutoCAD SHX Text_2114
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2115
(KMDI 037)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2116
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_2117
overgrown french drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_2118
p/r ht=1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2119
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2120
PTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2121
(SI_72)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2122
M20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2123
crash barrier

AutoCAD SHX Text_2124
(P38)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2125
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2126
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_2127
M20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2128
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2129
LON

AutoCAD SHX Text_2130
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2131
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2132
slot drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_2133
M20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2134
crash barrier

AutoCAD SHX Text_2135
no access to verge line

AutoCAD SHX Text_2136
crash barrier

AutoCAD SHX Text_2137
(KMDI 038)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2138
(No '1')

AutoCAD SHX Text_2139
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_2140
SYL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2141
barrier

AutoCAD SHX Text_2142
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2143
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2144
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2145
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_2146
BYL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2147
ped. crossing studs

AutoCAD SHX Text_2148
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_2149
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2150
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2151
barrier

AutoCAD SHX Text_2152
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_2153
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_2154
(No '3')

AutoCAD SHX Text_2155
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2156
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2157
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2158
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2159
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2160
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2161
(SI_03)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2162
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2163
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2164
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2165
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2166
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2167
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2168
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2169
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2170
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2171
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2172
flower bed

AutoCAD SHX Text_2173
car park

AutoCAD SHX Text_2174
(SI_70)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2175
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2176
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2177
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2178
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2179
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2180
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2181
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2182
PTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2183
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2184
overgrown bank and trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_2185
(SI_63)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2186
p/r fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_2187
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2188
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2189
car park

AutoCAD SHX Text_2190
(P41)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2191
BH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2192
66.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_2193
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2194
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2195
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2196
car park

AutoCAD SHX Text_2197
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2198
DYL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2199
pedestrian crossing studs

AutoCAD SHX Text_2200
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2201
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2202
pedestrian crossing studs

AutoCAD SHX Text_2203
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2204
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2205
(No '2')

AutoCAD SHX Text_2206
i/r

AutoCAD SHX Text_2207
(No '5')

AutoCAD SHX Text_2208
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2209
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2210
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2211
car park

AutoCAD SHX Text_2212
BX

AutoCAD SHX Text_2213
(11/1171)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2214
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_2215
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2216
(SI_02)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2217
sign

AutoCAD SHX Text_2218
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2219
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2220
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2221
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2222
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2223
(SI_05)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2224
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2225
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_2226
cheverons

AutoCAD SHX Text_2227
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2228
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2229
ped. crossing studs

AutoCAD SHX Text_2230
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2231
i/r

AutoCAD SHX Text_2232
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2233
BWLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2234
concrete wall h=0.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2235
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2236
p/w fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_2237
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2238
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2239
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2240
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_2241
DYL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2242
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2243
flower bed

AutoCAD SHX Text_2244
(SI_01)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2245
(KUCE503)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2246
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_2247
retaining wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_2248
car park

AutoCAD SHX Text_2249
(SI_62)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2250
car park

AutoCAD SHX Text_2251
MAID

AutoCAD SHX Text_2252
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_2253
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_2254
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2255
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2256
(SI_69)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2257
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2258
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2259
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2260
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2261
MAID

AutoCAD SHX Text_2262
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2263
(SI_65)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2264
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2265
overgrown bank and trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_2266
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2267
crash barrier

AutoCAD SHX Text_2268
PTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2269
crash barrier

AutoCAD SHX Text_2270
retaining wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_2271
car park

AutoCAD SHX Text_2272
overgrown bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_2273
(SI_71)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2274
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2275
barrier

AutoCAD SHX Text_2276
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2277
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2278
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2279
(SI_66)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2280
(NO REF.)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2281
(P40)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2282
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2283
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2284
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2285
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2286
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2287
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2288
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2289
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2290
PTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2291
c/l fence h=2.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2292
mesh fence h=0.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2293
crash barrier

AutoCAD SHX Text_2294
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_2295
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2296
CAM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2297
PTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2298
conc.

AutoCAD SHX Text_2299
steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_2300
BX

AutoCAD SHX Text_2301
DfT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2302
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2303
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2304
(SI_64)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2305
i/r

AutoCAD SHX Text_2306
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2307
BH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2308
68.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2309
SHEER

AutoCAD SHX Text_2310
(P39)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2311
DOV

AutoCAD SHX Text_2312
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_2313
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2314
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2315
BEAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2316
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_2317
(P37)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2318
(SI_111)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2319
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2320
chevrons

AutoCAD SHX Text_2321
(P36)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2322
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2323
(SI_67)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2324
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2325
(OUTER EDGE)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2326
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2327
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2328
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2329
dense foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2330
crash barrier

AutoCAD SHX Text_2331
chevrons

AutoCAD SHX Text_2332
(P34)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2333
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2334
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2335
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2336
dense foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2337
(P35)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2338
overgrown bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_2339
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2340
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2341
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_2342
NRTS cable

AutoCAD SHX Text_2343
p/r ht=1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2344
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2345
overgrown french drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_2346
no access to verge line

AutoCAD SHX Text_2347
conc. marker

AutoCAD SHX Text_2348
(KMDI 039)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2349
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2350
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2351
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2352
crash barrier

AutoCAD SHX Text_2353
(KMDI 040)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2354
no access to verge line

AutoCAD SHX Text_2355
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2356
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2357
Matrix RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2358
(659-M1)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2359
(SI_123)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2360
(SI_124)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2361
dense foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2362
parking  area

AutoCAD SHX Text_2363
(edge obscured)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2364
(SI_122)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2365
concrete slabs

AutoCAD SHX Text_2366
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2367
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_2368
crash barrier

AutoCAD SHX Text_2369
dense foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2370
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2371
(SI_127)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2372
(KMDI 019)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2373
overgrown verge

AutoCAD SHX Text_2374
mesh ht=0.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2375
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2376
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2377
dense foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2378
(SI_93)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2379
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2380
(KMDI 018)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2381
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2382
(SI_94)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2383
BX

AutoCAD SHX Text_2384
(659/4-M-P)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2385
(6594 M2)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2386
Matrix RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2387
NRTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2388
cable

AutoCAD SHX Text_2389
concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_2390
BX

AutoCAD SHX Text_2391
(59/4-M-AMI)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2392
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2393
(SI_121)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2394
(T40)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2395
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2396
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2397
crash barrier

AutoCAD SHX Text_2398
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2399
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2400
(SI_120)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2401
(KMDI 020)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2402
chevrons

AutoCAD SHX Text_2403
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2404
M20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2405
chevrons

AutoCAD SHX Text_2406
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2407
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2408
(SI_100)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2409
mesh fence h=0.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2410
MAID

AutoCAD SHX Text_2411
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_2412
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_2413
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2414
MAID

AutoCAD SHX Text_2415
Mkr x 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2416
Mkr x 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2417
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2418
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2419
SHEER

AutoCAD SHX Text_2420
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2421
LON

AutoCAD SHX Text_2422
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2423
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_2424
chevrons

AutoCAD SHX Text_2425
dense foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2426
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2427
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2428
(KFRE501)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2429
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2430
(SI_73)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2431
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2432
(SI_103)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2433
(SI_101)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2434
(SI_102)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2435
(KFRE505)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2436
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2437
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2438
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2439
(P33)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2440
chevrons

AutoCAD SHX Text_2441
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2442
crash barrier

AutoCAD SHX Text_2443
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2444
(KFRE003)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2445
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2446
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_2447
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2448
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2449
(SI_68)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2450
(KFRE503)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2451
(SI_98)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2452
(SI_97)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2453
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2454
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2455
(SI_99)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2456
chevrons

AutoCAD SHX Text_2457
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_2458
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2459
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2460
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2461
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2462
(SI_92)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2463
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_2464
hatching

AutoCAD SHX Text_2465
(KMDI 017)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2466
(SI_91)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2467
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2468
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2469
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2470
M20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2471
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2472
DOV

AutoCAD SHX Text_2473
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_2474
SHEER

AutoCAD SHX Text_2475
asphalt footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_2476
LON

AutoCAD SHX Text_2477
M20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2478
crash barrier

AutoCAD SHX Text_2479
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2480
dense foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2481
crash barrier

AutoCAD SHX Text_2482
concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_2483
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2484
dense foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2485
asphalt footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_2486
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2487
parking area

AutoCAD SHX Text_2488
chevrons

AutoCAD SHX Text_2489
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2490
dense foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2491
crash barrier

AutoCAD SHX Text_2492
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2493
bushes

AutoCAD SHX Text_2494
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2495
mesh ht=0.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2496
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_2497
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2498
woodland

AutoCAD SHX Text_2499
extent of tree canopy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2500
no access to verge line

AutoCAD SHX Text_2501
dense foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2502
p/r ht=1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2503
mesh ht=0.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2504
NRTS cable

AutoCAD SHX Text_2505
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2506
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2507
overgrown french drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_2508
(KMDI 041)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2509
p/r ht=1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2510
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2511
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2512
(SI_117)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2513
bushes

AutoCAD SHX Text_2514
trees and dense foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2515
mesh ht=0.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2516
conc.

AutoCAD SHX Text_2517
(KMDI 042)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2518
crash barrier

AutoCAD SHX Text_2519
(KMDI 043)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2520
SIGN HT - 78.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2521
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2522
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_2523
MAID

AutoCAD SHX Text_2524
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_2525
(KMDI 015)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2526
(SI_74)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2527
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2528
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2529
MAID

AutoCAD SHX Text_2530
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2531
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2532
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_2533
chevrons

AutoCAD SHX Text_2534
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2535
expansion joint

AutoCAD SHX Text_2536
EC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2537
no access to verge line

AutoCAD SHX Text_2538
SHEER

AutoCAD SHX Text_2539
(KMDI 013)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2540
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2541
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2542
expansion joint

AutoCAD SHX Text_2543
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2544
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2545
P/R fence h=1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2546
dense foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2547
crash barrier h=0.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2548
EC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2549
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2550
(SI_90)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2551
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2552
railings

AutoCAD SHX Text_2553
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2554
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2555
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2556
trees and dense foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2557
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2558
crash barrier

AutoCAD SHX Text_2559
crash barrier

AutoCAD SHX Text_2560
(KMDI 045)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2561
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2562
mesh ht=0.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2563
(KMDI 044)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2564
extent of

AutoCAD SHX Text_2565
new surface

AutoCAD SHX Text_2566
no access to verge line

AutoCAD SHX Text_2567
chevrons

AutoCAD SHX Text_2568
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2569
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2570
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2571
(SI_81)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2572
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2573
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2574
crash barrier h=0.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2575
crash barrier

AutoCAD SHX Text_2576
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2577
overgrown bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_2578
(old LP base)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2579
p/r ht=1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2580
BX

AutoCAD SHX Text_2581
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2582
asphalt footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_2583
overgrown bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_2584
(SI_112)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2585
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2586
MAID

AutoCAD SHX Text_2587
bushes

AutoCAD SHX Text_2588
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2589
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2590
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2591
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2592
(SI_75)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2593
EC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2594
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2595
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2596
railings

AutoCAD SHX Text_2597
expansion joint

AutoCAD SHX Text_2598
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2599
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2600
DOVER

AutoCAD SHX Text_2601
SHEER

AutoCAD SHX Text_2602
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_2603
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2604
M20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2605
concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_2606
P/R fence h=1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2607
trees and dense foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2608
mesh ht=0.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2609
attachment

AutoCAD SHX Text_2610
points

AutoCAD SHX Text_2611
(SI_116)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2612
BX

AutoCAD SHX Text_2613
PYLON

AutoCAD SHX Text_2614
attachment

AutoCAD SHX Text_2615
points

AutoCAD SHX Text_2616
PT2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2617
overgrown bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_2618
steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_2619
(659/3/A)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2620
(FP6)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2621
BX

AutoCAD SHX Text_2622
BX

AutoCAD SHX Text_2623
(59/3/E)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2624
mesh ht=0.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2625
(KMDI 047)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2626
(T82)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2627
concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_2628
overgrown bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_2629
dense foliage and trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_2630
(SI_80)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2631
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2632
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2633
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2634
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2635
LON

AutoCAD SHX Text_2636
MAID

AutoCAD SHX Text_2637
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_2638
DOV

AutoCAD SHX Text_2639
M20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2640
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_2641
M20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2642
mesh ht=0.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2643
(KMDI 049)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2644
crash barrier

AutoCAD SHX Text_2645
BX

AutoCAD SHX Text_2646
expansion joint

AutoCAD SHX Text_2647
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2648
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_2649
retaining wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_2650
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2651
(SI_119)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2652
asphalt footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_2653
crash barrier h=0.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2654
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2655
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2656
(SI_89)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2657
P/W fence h=1.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2658
mesh ht=0.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2659
hatching

AutoCAD SHX Text_2660
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2661
chevrons

AutoCAD SHX Text_2662
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2663
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2664
(KMDI 053)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2665
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2666
(KMDI 051)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2667
chevrons

AutoCAD SHX Text_2668
(KMDI 048)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2669
(SI_115)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2670
(SI_77)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2671
(6596K2)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2672
Matrix RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2673
(59/6/K-P)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2674
BX

AutoCAD SHX Text_2675
Anti skid

AutoCAD SHX Text_2676
surface

AutoCAD SHX Text_2677
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2678
(SI_82)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2679
(SI_76)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2680
Mkrs

AutoCAD SHX Text_2681
Mkrs

AutoCAD SHX Text_2682
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2683
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2684
MAID

AutoCAD SHX Text_2685
crash barrier

AutoCAD SHX Text_2686
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2687
Matrix RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2688
(6596K1)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2689
(SI_78)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2690
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2691
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2692
crash barrier

AutoCAD SHX Text_2693
asphalt

AutoCAD SHX Text_2694
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2695
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2696
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_2697
chevrons

AutoCAD SHX Text_2698
(SI_83)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2699
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_2700
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2701
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2702
(T90)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2703
(SI_79)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2704
M20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2705
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2706
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2707
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2708
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_2709
MAID

AutoCAD SHX Text_2710
MAID

AutoCAD SHX Text_2711
MAID

AutoCAD SHX Text_2712
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_2713
LON

AutoCAD SHX Text_2714
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2715
(SI_96)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2716
(SI_95)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2717
(KFRE502)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2718
(SI_110)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2719
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2720
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2721
(659/4/J P)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2722
(659/4/J EB)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2723
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2724
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2725
(SI_118)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2726
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2727
(T86)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2728
hatching

AutoCAD SHX Text_2729
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_2730
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_2731
NRTS cable

AutoCAD SHX Text_2732
MAID

AutoCAD SHX Text_2733
(KMDI 050)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2734
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2735
overgrown track

AutoCAD SHX Text_2736
trees and dense foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2737
extent of tree canopy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2738
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2739
M20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2740
manhole cover

AutoCAD SHX Text_2741
not fixed

AutoCAD SHX Text_2742
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2743
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2744
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2745
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2746
LON

AutoCAD SHX Text_2747
(SI_107)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2748
(SI_104)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2749
(SI_106)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2750
crash barrier h=0.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2751
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2752
(SI_105)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2753
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2754
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2755
DOV

AutoCAD SHX Text_2756
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2757
MAID

AutoCAD SHX Text_2758
LON

AutoCAD SHX Text_2759
M20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2760
M20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2761
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_2762
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2763
Anti skid

AutoCAD SHX Text_2764
surface

AutoCAD SHX Text_2765
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2766
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2767
crash barrier h=0.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2768
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2769
MAID

AutoCAD SHX Text_2770
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2771
(SI_84)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2772
p/r ht=1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2773
crash barrier h=0.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2774
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_2775
(SI_114)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2776
(T85)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2777
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2778
conc.

AutoCAD SHX Text_2779
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2780
BX

AutoCAD SHX Text_2781
i/r

AutoCAD SHX Text_2782
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2783
BX

AutoCAD SHX Text_2784
BX

AutoCAD SHX Text_2785
dense foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2786
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2787
SHEER

AutoCAD SHX Text_2788
(SI_113)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2789
asphalt track

AutoCAD SHX Text_2790
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2791
(SI_108)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2792
asphalt footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_2793
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2794
mesh ht=0.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2795
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_2796
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2797
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_2798
(KMDI 052)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2799
trees and dense foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2800
p/r ht=1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2801
p/r

AutoCAD SHX Text_2802
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2803
p/r

AutoCAD SHX Text_2804
cl ht=2.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2805
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2806
Anti skid

AutoCAD SHX Text_2807
surface

AutoCAD SHX Text_2808
M20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2809
DOV

AutoCAD SHX Text_2810
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2811
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2812
(SI_109)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2813
hatching

AutoCAD SHX Text_2814
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2815
M20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2816
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_2817
(SI_88)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2818
MAID

AutoCAD SHX Text_2819
(SI_86)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2820
(SI_87)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2821
LON

AutoCAD SHX Text_2822
(P11)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2823
(SI_85A)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2824
(SI_85)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2825
asphalt footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_2826
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2827
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2828
(P17)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2829
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2830
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2831
M20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2832
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2833
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_2834
mesh fence h=0.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2835
dense foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2836
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2837
mesh ht=0.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2838
dense foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2839
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_2840
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_2841
DOV

AutoCAD SHX Text_2842
MAID

AutoCAD SHX Text_2843
MAID

AutoCAD SHX Text_2844
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2845
crash barrier

AutoCAD SHX Text_2846
dense foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2847
hatching

AutoCAD SHX Text_2848
overgrown

AutoCAD SHX Text_2849
mesh fence h=0.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2850
hatching

AutoCAD SHX Text_2851
(SI_126)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2852
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2853
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2854
(SI_125)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2855
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2856
overgrown steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_2857
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2858
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2859
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2860
59.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_2861
59.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_2862
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_2863
59.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_2864
Mkr duct

AutoCAD SHX Text_2865
59.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_2866
MP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2867
59.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2868
59.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2869
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2870
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2871
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2872
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_2873
72.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_2874
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2875
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2876
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_2877
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_2878
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_2879
72.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2880
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2881
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2882
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_2883
72.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_2884
    61.223

AutoCAD SHX Text_2885
157489.538 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_2886
577601.034 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2887
PSS30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2888
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2889
Mkr duct

AutoCAD SHX Text_2890
61.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_2891
62.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_2892
Mkr duct

AutoCAD SHX Text_2893
64.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_2894
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_2895
72.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_2896
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_2897
72.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_2898
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_2899
72.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_2900
    72.443

AutoCAD SHX Text_2901
157577.794 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_2902
578162.820 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2903
PSS22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2904
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2905
70.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2906
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_2907
72.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_2908
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_2909
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_2910
72.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2911
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_2912
72.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_2913
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_2914
72.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_2915
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2916
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_2917
72.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_2918
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_2919
72.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_2920
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2921
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_2922
72.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_2923
72.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2924
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2925
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_2926
73.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_2927
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2928
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2929
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2930
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2931
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2932
578047.283 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2933
157525.744 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_2934
    74.030

AutoCAD SHX Text_2935
PSS21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2936
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_2937
73.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2938
73.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_2939
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2940
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2941
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2942
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2943
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_2944
72.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_2945
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_2946
72.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2947
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2948
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_2949
72.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_2950
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_2951
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2952
74.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_2953
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2954
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_2955
74.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2956
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2957
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_2958
74.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2959
69.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_2960
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_2961
74.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2962
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2963
74.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_2964
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2965
75.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2966
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2967
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2968
75.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2969
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2970
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_2971
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_2972
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_2973
74.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_2974
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2975
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_2976
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_2977
75.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_2978
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_2979
75.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_2980
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_2981
65.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_2982
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2983
66.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_2984
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_2985
67.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_2986
Mkr duct

AutoCAD SHX Text_2987
68.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_2988
    68.828

AutoCAD SHX Text_2989
157458.853 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_2990
577727.475 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2991
PSS29

AutoCAD SHX Text_2992
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2993
73.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_2994
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_2995
69.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_2996
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2997
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_2998
71.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2999
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3000
73.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_3001
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3002
74.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_3003
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3004
74.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3005
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3006
74.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_3007
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3008
74.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_3009
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3010
74.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_3011
74.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_3012
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3013
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3014
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3015
74.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3016
74.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_3017
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3018
74.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3019
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3020
74.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_3021
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3022
74.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_3023
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3024
74.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_3025
Mkr duct

AutoCAD SHX Text_3026
74.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_3027
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3028
577811.302 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3029
    73.061

AutoCAD SHX Text_3030
157449.780 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3031
72.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_3032
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3033
72.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_3034
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3035
PSS28

AutoCAD SHX Text_3036
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3037
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3038
73.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_3039
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3040
73.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_3041
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3042
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3043
74.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_3044
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3045
74.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_3046
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3047
74.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_3048
stile

AutoCAD SHX Text_3049
70.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_3050
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3051
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3052
72.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_3053
Mkr

AutoCAD SHX Text_3054
74.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_3055
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3056
74.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_3057
74.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_3058
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3059
74.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_3060
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3061
74.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_3062
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3063
74.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_3064
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3065
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3066
74.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_3067
    74.763

AutoCAD SHX Text_3068
157468.193 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3069
577957.659 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3070
PSS20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3071
74.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_3072
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3073
75.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_3074
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3075
75.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_3076
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3077
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3078
74.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3079
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3080
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3081
74.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_3082
74.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_3083
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3084
75.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_3085
75.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3086
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3087
75.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_3088
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3089
75.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3090
CAM

AutoCAD SHX Text_3091
75.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3092
Mkr duct

AutoCAD SHX Text_3093
74.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_3094
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3095
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3096
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3097
74.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_3098
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3099
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3100
75.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_3101
577896.394 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3102
    74.859

AutoCAD SHX Text_3103
157451.846 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3104
PSS27

AutoCAD SHX Text_3105
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3106
75.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_3107
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3108
75.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3109
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3110
75.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3111
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3112
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3113
74.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_3114
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_3115
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3116
64.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_3117
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_3118
64.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_3119
Mkr

AutoCAD SHX Text_3120
64.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_3121
    64.555

AutoCAD SHX Text_3122
157020.411 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3123
577870.877 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3124
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3125
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3126
64.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3127
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3128
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3129
64.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3130
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_3131
66.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_3132
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3133
64.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_3134
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3135
64.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_3136
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3137
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3138
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3139
64.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_3140
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3141
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3142
MH(F)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3143
64.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_3144
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3145
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3146
64.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_3147
63.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_3148
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3149
63.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_3150
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3151
TFC

AutoCAD SHX Text_3152
64.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_3153
MH(F)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3154
66.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_3155
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3156
66.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_3157
MH(F)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3158
66.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_3159
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_3160
63.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_3161
64.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3162
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3163
63.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_3164
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_3165
ER

AutoCAD SHX Text_3166
64.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3167
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_3168
63.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_3169
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3170
63.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_3171
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3172
63.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_3173
63.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_3174
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_3175
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3176
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3177
66.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_3178
64.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_3179
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3180
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3181
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3182
64.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3183
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3184
67.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3185
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_3186
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3187
63.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_3188
64.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_3189
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3190
64.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_3191
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3192
64.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_3193
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3194
63.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_3195
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_3196
64.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_3197
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_3198
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3199
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3200
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3201
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3202
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3203
64.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_3204
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3205
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3206
64.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_3207
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3208
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3209
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3210
66.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_3211
64.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_3212
156984.326 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3213
577785.087 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3214
    64.052

AutoCAD SHX Text_3215
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3216
64.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3217
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3218
63.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_3219
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_3220
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3221
62.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_3222
62.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_3223
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3224
62.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_3225
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3226
62.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_3227
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3228
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3229
62.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_3230
63.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_3231
MH(F)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3232
63.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_3233
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3234
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3235
63.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_3236
TFC

AutoCAD SHX Text_3237
63.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_3238
PSS02

AutoCAD SHX Text_3239
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_3240
65.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_3241
66.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3242
66.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_3243
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3244
66.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_3245
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3246
FL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3247
66.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3248
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_3249
Tap

AutoCAD SHX Text_3250
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3251
66.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_3252
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3253
66.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_3254
Tap

AutoCAD SHX Text_3255
66.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_3256
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_3257
Tap

AutoCAD SHX Text_3258
66.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_3259
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_3260
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_3261
Tap

AutoCAD SHX Text_3262
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3263
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_3264
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3265
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_3266
Tap

AutoCAD SHX Text_3267
66.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_3268
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_3269
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_3270
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_3271
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_3272
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_3273
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_3274
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_3275
65.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_3276
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_3277
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_3278
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3279
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3280
Tap

AutoCAD SHX Text_3281
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3282
66.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3283
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3284
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3285
TFC

AutoCAD SHX Text_3286
61.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_3287
61.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_3288
61.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_3289
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3290
61.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_3291
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3292
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3293
61.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_3294
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3295
61.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_3296
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3297
61.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3298
61.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_3299
62.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_3300
61.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_3301
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3302
61.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_3303
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3304
61.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_3305
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3306
61.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_3307
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3308
62.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3309
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3310
61.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_3311
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3312
61.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_3313
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3314
61.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_3315
61.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_3316
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3317
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3318
62.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_3319
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3320
61.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_3321
61.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_3322
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3323
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3324
61.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_3325
62.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_3326
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3327
62.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_3328
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3329
61.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_3330
61.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_3331
MH(F)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3332
61.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_3333
62.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_3334
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3335
62.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_3336
62.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3337
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3338
62.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_3339
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3340
62.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3341
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3342
61.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_3343
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3344
61.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_3345
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3346
61.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_3347
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3348
61.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_3349
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3350
61.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_3351
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3352
62.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_3353
BS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3354
61.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_3355
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_3356
61.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_3357
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3358
61.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_3359
61.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3360
61.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_3361
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3362
61.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_3363
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_3364
61.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_3365
61.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_3366
61.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_3367
61.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_3368
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3369
61.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_3370
61.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_3371
61.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_3372
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_3373
BS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3374
61.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_3375
TFC

AutoCAD SHX Text_3376
61.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_3377
WC

AutoCAD SHX Text_3378
61.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_3379
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3380
65.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3381
60.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_3382
66.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_3383
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3384
66.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_3385
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3386
66.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_3387
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3388
66.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_3389
66.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_3390
66.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_3391
66.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_3392
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3393
62.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_3394
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3395
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3396
73.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_3397
157307.462 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3398
577977.434 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3399
PSS18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3400
    73.967

AutoCAD SHX Text_3401
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_3402
73.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_3403
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3404
73.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_3405
Mkr duct

AutoCAD SHX Text_3406
73.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_3407
73.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_3408
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3409
74.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_3410
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3411
73.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_3412
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3413
74.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3414
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3415
73.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_3416
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3417
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3418
73.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_3419
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3420
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3421
73.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_3422
73.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_3423
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3424
73.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_3425
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_3426
73.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_3427
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3428
73.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_3429
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3430
73.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_3431
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3432
73.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_3433
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3434
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_3435
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3436
73.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_3437
stile

AutoCAD SHX Text_3438
73.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_3439
stile

AutoCAD SHX Text_3440
73.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_3441
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3442
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3443
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3444
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3445
73.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_3446
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_3447
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_3448
75.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_3449
AV

AutoCAD SHX Text_3450
75.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_3451
AV

AutoCAD SHX Text_3452
75.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_3453
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3454
    74.874

AutoCAD SHX Text_3455
157392.001 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3456
578121.600 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3457
PSS26

AutoCAD SHX Text_3458
74.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_3459
74.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_3460
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_3461
74.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_3462
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_3463
74.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_3464
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_3465
74.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_3466
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_3467
74.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_3468
74.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_3469
75.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_3470
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3471
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_3472
74.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_3473
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3474
74.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_3475
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_3476
75.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_3477
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_3478
74.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_3479
Mkr

AutoCAD SHX Text_3480
75.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3481
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_3482
75.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_3483
75.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3484
    75.244

AutoCAD SHX Text_3485
157430.660 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3486
578114.959 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3487
PSS25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3488
75.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3489
74.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3490
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3491
74.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_3492
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_3493
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3494
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3495
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3496
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3497
73.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_3498
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3499
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3500
stile

AutoCAD SHX Text_3501
74.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_3502
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3503
74.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3504
74.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_3505
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3506
74.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_3507
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3508
73.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_3509
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3510
73.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_3511
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3512
73.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_3513
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3514
73.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_3515
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3516
73.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_3517
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3518
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3519
73.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_3520
74.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3521
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3522
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3523
73.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_3524
73.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_3525
73.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_3526
73.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_3527
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_3528
73.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_3529
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_3530
73.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_3531
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_3532
73.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_3533
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_3534
73.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_3535
stile

AutoCAD SHX Text_3536
73.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_3537
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3538
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3539
74.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_3540
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3541
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3542
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3543
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3544
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3545
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3546
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3547
73.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_3548
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3549
73.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_3550
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3551
73.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_3552
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3553
FL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3554
71.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_3555
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3556
71.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_3557
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3558
FL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3559
72.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3560
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3561
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3562
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3563
Mkr

AutoCAD SHX Text_3564
74.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3565
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3566
74.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_3567
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3568
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3569
74.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3570
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3571
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3572
73.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_3573
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3574
74.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_3575
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3576
74.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_3577
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3578
74.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_3579
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3580
74.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_3581
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3582
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3583
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3584
74.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_3585
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3586
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3587
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3588
74.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_3589
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3590
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3591
74.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_3592
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3593
74.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_3594
74.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_3595
74.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_3596
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3597
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3598
74.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_3599
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3600
74.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3601
74.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_3602
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3603
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3604
74.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_3605
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_3606
74.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3607
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_3608
74.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_3609
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3610
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3611
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_3612
74.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_3613
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_3614
74.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_3615
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_3616
74.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_3617
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_3618
75.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_3619
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_3620
75.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3621
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3622
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_3623
72.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_3624
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3625
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3626
74.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_3627
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3628
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3629
75.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3630
157418.337 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3631
577936.760 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3632
    75.458

AutoCAD SHX Text_3633
PSS19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3634
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3635
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3636
ER

AutoCAD SHX Text_3637
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3638
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3639
75.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_3640
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3641
75.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3642
75.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_3643
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3644
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3645
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3646
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3647
75.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3648
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3649
75.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3650
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3651
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_3652
157036.682 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3653
    64.637

AutoCAD SHX Text_3654
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3655
64.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_3656
SI

AutoCAD SHX Text_3657
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3658
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_3659
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_3660
64.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_3661
577844.787 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3662
PSS04

AutoCAD SHX Text_3663
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_3664
64.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_3665
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3666
64.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3667
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3668
63.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_3669
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_3670
64.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_3671
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3672
63.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_3673
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3674
64.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_3675
PSS05

AutoCAD SHX Text_3676
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3677
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_3678
64.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_3679
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3680
63.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3681
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3682
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3683
62.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_3684
    62.378

AutoCAD SHX Text_3685
WC

AutoCAD SHX Text_3686
62.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_3687
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_3688
62.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_3689
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3690
62.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_3691
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3692
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_3693
63.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_3694
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3695
62.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_3696
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3697
62.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_3698
157031.762 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3699
577743.331 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3700
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3701
62.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_3702
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3703
62.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_3704
PSS03

AutoCAD SHX Text_3705
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3706
TFC

AutoCAD SHX Text_3707
62.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_3708
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3709
65.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_3710
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3711
65.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_3712
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3713
62.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_3714
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3715
62.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_3716
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3717
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_3718
64.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_3719
stile

AutoCAD SHX Text_3720
65.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_3721
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3722
62.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3723
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3724
62.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_3725
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3726
62.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_3727
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3728
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3729
62.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_3730
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3731
65.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_3732
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3733
65.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3734
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_3735
65.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3736
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_3737
64.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3738
72.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_3739
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3740
71.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_3741
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3742
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3743
72.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_3744
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3745
73.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_3746
stile

AutoCAD SHX Text_3747
73.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_3748
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3749
72.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_3750
    72.350

AutoCAD SHX Text_3751
157245.574 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3752
PSS16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3753
577989.406 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3754
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3755
72.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_3756
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3757
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3758
72.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_3759
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3760
72.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_3761
    73.146

AutoCAD SHX Text_3762
157274.824 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3763
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3764
73.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3765
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3766
73.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_3767
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3768
73.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3769
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3770
73.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3771
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3772
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3773
72.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_3774
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3775
577995.524 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3776
PSS17

AutoCAD SHX Text_3777
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3778
73.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3779
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3780
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3781
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3782
    66.260

AutoCAD SHX Text_3783
577895.656 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3784
157102.382 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3785
PSS14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3786
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3787
67.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3788
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_3789
64.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_3790
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_3791
64.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_3792
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_3793
65.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_3794
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3795
157097.101 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3796
577922.212 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3797
    66.677

AutoCAD SHX Text_3798
PSS23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3799
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3800
65.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_3801
66.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_3802
66.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_3803
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3804
66.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3805
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3806
70.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_3807
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3808
71.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_3809
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3810
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3811
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3812
PTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3813
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3814
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3815
67.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_3816
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3817
    69.779

AutoCAD SHX Text_3818
157178.877 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3819
577947.922 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3820
PSS15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3821
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3822
70.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_3823
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3824
69.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_3825
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3826
67.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_3827
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3828
68.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3829
PTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3830
68.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_3831
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_3832
66.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_3833
CAM

AutoCAD SHX Text_3834
68.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_3835
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_3836
68.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_3837
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_3838
157154.523 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3839
577967.758 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3840
PSS24

AutoCAD SHX Text_3841
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3842
    69.611

AutoCAD SHX Text_3843
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3844
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3845
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3846
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3847
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3848
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3849
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3850
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3851
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3852
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3853
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3854
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3855
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3856
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3857
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3858
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3859
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3860
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3861
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3862
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3863
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3864
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3865
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3866
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3867
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3868
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3869
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3870
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3871
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3872
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3873
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3874
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3875
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3876
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3877
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3878
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3879
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3880
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3881
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3882
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3883
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3884
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3885
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3886
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3887
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3888
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3889
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3890
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3891
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3892
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3893
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3894
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3895
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3896
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3897
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3898
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3899
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3900
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3901
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3902
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3903
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3904
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3905
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3906
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3907
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3908
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3909
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3910
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3911
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3912
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3913
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3914
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3915
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3916
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3917
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3918
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3919
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3920
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3921
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3922
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3923
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3924
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3925
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3926
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3927
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3928
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3929
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3930
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3931
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3932
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3933
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3934
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3935
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3936
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3937
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3938
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3939
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3940
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3941
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3942
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3943
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3944
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3945
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3946
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3947
CE x 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3948
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3949
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3950
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3951
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3952
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3953
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3954
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3955
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3956
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3957
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3958
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3959
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3960
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3961
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3962
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3963
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3964
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3965
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3966
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3967
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3968
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3969
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3970
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3971
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3972
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3973
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3974
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3975
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3976
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3977
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3978
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3979
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3980
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3981
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3982
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3983
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3984
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3985
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3986
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3987
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3988
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3989
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3990
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3991
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3992
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3993
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3994
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3995
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3996
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3997
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3998
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3999
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4000
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4001
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4002
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4003
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4004
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4005
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4006
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4007
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4008
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4009
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4010
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4011
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4012
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4013
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4014
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4015
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4016
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4017
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4018
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4019
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4020
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4021
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4022
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4023
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4024
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4025
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4026
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4027
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4028
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4029
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4030
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4031
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4032
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4033
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4034
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4035
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4036
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4037
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4038
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4039
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4040
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4041
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4042
il=54.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_4043
il=53.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_4044
dia.=0.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4045
dia.=0.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4046
il=54.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_4047
il=54.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_4048
il=54.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_4049
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4050
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4051
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4052
(SI_49)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4053
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4054
il=58.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4055
il=58.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_4056
(KBBB027)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4057
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4058
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4059
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4060
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4061
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4062
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4063
MH(CP)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4064
MH(CP)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4065
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4066
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_4067
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_4068
MH(F)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4069
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_4070
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_4071
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_4072
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_4073
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_4074
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_4075
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_4076
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_4077
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_4078
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_4079
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_4080
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_4081
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_4082
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_4083
MHs

AutoCAD SHX Text_4084
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4085
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4086
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4087
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4088
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4089
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_4090
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_4091
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_4092
il=55.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_4093
(KNAF527)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4094
railings

AutoCAD SHX Text_4095
(SI_04)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4096
il=53.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_4097
il=65.48 dia.= 0.10m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4098
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_4099
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_4100
asp

AutoCAD SHX Text_4101
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_4102
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_4103
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_4104
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_4105
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_4106
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_4107
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_4108
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_4109
asphalt

AutoCAD SHX Text_4110
asphalt

AutoCAD SHX Text_4111
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_4112
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_4113
T=0.41m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4114
S=10m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4115
brick wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_4116
dense foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_4117
T=0.40m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4118
S=9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4119
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4120
69.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4121
T=0.44m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4122
S=10m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4123
S=6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4124
T=0.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4125
T=0.40m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4126
S=10m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4127
T=0.39m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4128
S=10m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4129
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_4130
S=8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4131
T=0.36m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4132
578064.86 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4133
TS01

AutoCAD SHX Text_4134
156636.64 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4135
    63.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_4136
S=10m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4137
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_4138
63.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_4139
T=0.42m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4140
T=0.47m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4141
S=10m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4142
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4143
67.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_4144
brick wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_4145
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_4146
extent of tree canopy

AutoCAD SHX Text_4147
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_4148
small trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_4149
brick wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_4150
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_4151
    67.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_4152
TS02

AutoCAD SHX Text_4153
578061.75 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4154
156566.94 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4155
DfT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4156
67.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_4157
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_4158
small trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_4159
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_4160
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4161
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_4162
66.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_4163
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_4164
Mkr

AutoCAD SHX Text_4165
67.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_4166
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_4167
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_4168
67.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_4169
S=6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4170
T=0.20m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4171
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4172
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4173
70.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_4174
(KNAF040)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4175
InteR

AutoCAD SHX Text_4176
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4177
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4178
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4179
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4180
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_4181
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4182
conc

AutoCAD SHX Text_4183
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4184
WB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4185
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text_4186
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text_4187
InteR

AutoCAD SHX Text_4188
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text_4189
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text_4190
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4191
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4192
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text_4193
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_4194
hedge bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_4195
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text_4196
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text_4197
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_4198
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4199
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_4200
MS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4201
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_4202
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4203
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_4204
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4205
summer

AutoCAD SHX Text_4206
house

AutoCAD SHX Text_4207
b/w ht 1.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4208
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4209
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4210
panal fence ht=2.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4211
wall ht=0.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4212
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4213
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4214
hedge bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_4215
dense

AutoCAD SHX Text_4216
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_4217
stone wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_4218
p/r fence ht=1.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4219
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_4220
BT cover buried 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4221
PSS12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4222
156791.861 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4223
578302.003 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4224
    57.411

AutoCAD SHX Text_4225
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4226
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4227
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4228
57.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_4229
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4230
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4231
56.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_4232
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4233
59.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_4234
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4235
56.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_4236
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4237
57.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_4238
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_4239
57.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_4240
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_4241
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_4242
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4243
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4244
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4245
stays

AutoCAD SHX Text_4246
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4247
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4248
57.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4249
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4250
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4251
55.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_4252
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4253
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_4254
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_4255
58.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4256
57.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_4257
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_4258
58.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_4259
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_4260
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_4261
57.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_4262
(NO REF) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4263
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text_4264
p/w    h=1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4265
p/w

AutoCAD SHX Text_4266
stone wall h=1.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4267
stone wall h=1.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4268
stone wall h=1.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4269
stone wall h=1.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4270
stone wall h=1.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4271
stone wall h=1.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4272
kerb drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_4273
kerb drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_4274
kerb drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_4275
kerb drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_4276
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_4277
asphalt

AutoCAD SHX Text_4278
asphalt

AutoCAD SHX Text_4279
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_4280
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_4281
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_4282
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_4283
asphalt

AutoCAD SHX Text_4284
asphalt

AutoCAD SHX Text_4285
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_4286
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_4287
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_4288
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_4289
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_4290
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_4291
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_4292
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_4293
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_4294
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_4295
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_4296
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_4297
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_4298
Gas Mkr

AutoCAD SHX Text_4299
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4300
Gas Pressure Pressure Monitoring cabinet

AutoCAD SHX Text_4301
Hole

AutoCAD SHX Text_4302
Mkr 57.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_4303
BH (Monitoring Point)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4304
Tap

AutoCAD SHX Text_4305
(No '1')

AutoCAD SHX Text_4306
stile

AutoCAD SHX Text_4307
Mkr

AutoCAD SHX Text_4308
(No '4')

AutoCAD SHX Text_4309
(No '6')

AutoCAD SHX Text_4310
stile

AutoCAD SHX Text_4311
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_4312
gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_4313
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4314
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4315
il

AutoCAD SHX Text_4316
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_4317
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_4318
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_4319
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_4320
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_4321
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_4322
66.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_4323
69.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_4324
69.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_4325
69.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_4326
69.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_4327
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4328
69.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_4329
69.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_4330
69.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_4331
69.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_4332
69.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_4333
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4334
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4335
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4336
(Gu_25)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4337
(UTL)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4338
(MH_31)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4339
(Gu_24)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4340
(MH_24)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4341
(MH_23)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4342
(MH_25)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4343
(MH_32)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4344
(MH_28)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4345
(MH_30)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4346
(MH_22)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4347
(MH_26)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4348
(MH_19)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4349
(MH_20)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4350
(MH_29)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4351
(Gu_22)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4352
(Gu_23)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4353
(MH_27)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4354
(MH_21)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4355
(Gu_21)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4356
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_4357
69.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_4358
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_4359
69.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_4360
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_4361
69.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_4362
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_4363
69.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_4364
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_4365
69.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_4366
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4367
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4368
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4369
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4370
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4371
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4372
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4373
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4374
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4375
69.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_4376
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4377
69.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_4378
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4379
69.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_4380
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4381
69.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_4382
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4383
69.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_4384
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4385
69.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_4386
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4387
69.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_4388
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4389
POINT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4390
OFF

AutoCAD SHX Text_4391
DROP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4392
RE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4393
69.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_4394
RE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4395
69.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_4396
WB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4397
CCTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_4398
69.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_4399
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4400
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4401
578087.185 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4402
157075.638 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4403
PSS34

AutoCAD SHX Text_4404
    68.991

AutoCAD SHX Text_4405
PSS33

AutoCAD SHX Text_4406
    68.884

AutoCAD SHX Text_4407
578150.140 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4408
157041.746 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4409
PSS32

AutoCAD SHX Text_4410
578136.663 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4411
157004.137 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4412
    68.075

AutoCAD SHX Text_4413
578146.901 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4414
157147.530 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4415
    71.037

AutoCAD SHX Text_4416
PSS35

AutoCAD SHX Text_4417
PSS31

AutoCAD SHX Text_4418
578109.340 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4419
156936.331 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4420
Stump

AutoCAD SHX Text_4421
ramp

AutoCAD SHX Text_4422
Tap

AutoCAD SHX Text_4423
69.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_4424
yellow hatching

AutoCAD SHX Text_4425
ramp

AutoCAD SHX Text_4426
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4427
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4428
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4429
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4430
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4431
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_4432
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4433
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4434
panel fence ht=1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4435
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4436
panel fence ht=1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4437
parking

AutoCAD SHX Text_4438
bays

AutoCAD SHX Text_4439
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4440
concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_4441
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4442
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4443
ramp

AutoCAD SHX Text_4444
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4445
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4446
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4447
p/r fence ht=1.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4448
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4449
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_4450
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_4451
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4452
extent of

AutoCAD SHX Text_4453
tree canopy

AutoCAD SHX Text_4454
soil heap

AutoCAD SHX Text_4455
p/w ht=1.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4456
gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_4457
soil heap

AutoCAD SHX Text_4458
p/w ht=1.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4459
p/w ht=1.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4460
parking

AutoCAD SHX Text_4461
bays

AutoCAD SHX Text_4462
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4463
p/r ht=1.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4464
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4465
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4466
parking

AutoCAD SHX Text_4467
bays

AutoCAD SHX Text_4468
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4469
extent of

AutoCAD SHX Text_4470
tree canopy

AutoCAD SHX Text_4471
p/w fence ht=1.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4472
BH (Monitoring Point)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4473
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_4474
60.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_4475
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_4476
60.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_4477
Mkr

AutoCAD SHX Text_4478
64.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4479
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4480
64.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_4481
(MH_40)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4482
(MH_47)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4483
(MH_46)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4484
(MH_48)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4485
(MH_45)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4486
(MH_41)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4487
(MH_44)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4488
MH(F)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4489
66.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_4490
(MH_49)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4491
(MH_50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4492
(MH_43)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4493
(MH_42)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4494
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4495
(SI_128)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4496
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_4497
57.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_4498
post & rail ht=1.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4499
soil

AutoCAD SHX Text_4500
concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_4501
steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_4502
post & rail ht=1.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4503
asphalt

AutoCAD SHX Text_4504
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4505
earth bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_4506
AC units on

AutoCAD SHX Text_4507
concrete base

AutoCAD SHX Text_4508
area obscured by

AutoCAD SHX Text_4509
materials at time

AutoCAD SHX Text_4510
of survey

AutoCAD SHX Text_4511
p/r ht=1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4512
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_4513
offices

AutoCAD SHX Text_4514
asphalt

AutoCAD SHX Text_4515
concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_4516
p/r ht=1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4517
container

AutoCAD SHX Text_4518
MH(F)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4519
rough ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_4520
panel fence ht=1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4521
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_4522
outline of building

AutoCAD SHX Text_4523
container

AutoCAD SHX Text_4524
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4525
EC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4526
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4527
outline of building

AutoCAD SHX Text_4528
WC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4529
WC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4530
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4531
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_4532
EC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4533
concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_4534
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_4535
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4536
70.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_4537
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4538
70.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_4539
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4540
70.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_4541
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4542
70.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_4543
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4544
70.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_4545
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4546
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4547
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4548
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4549
(MH_33)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4550
(UTL)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4551
(MH_34)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4552
(MH_35)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4553
(MH_36)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4554
(MH_37)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4555
(MH_38)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4556
(MH_39)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4557
71.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_4558
71.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_4559
71.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4560
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_4561
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_4562
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_4563
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_4564
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4565
SI

AutoCAD SHX Text_4566
SI

AutoCAD SHX Text_4567
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4568
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_4569
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_4570
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_4571
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_4572
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_4573
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_4574
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_4575
BX

AutoCAD SHX Text_4576
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4577
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4578
Buried IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4579
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4580
p/r fence h=1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4581
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_4582
70.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_4583
MH(F)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4584
70.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_4585
MH(F)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4586
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4587
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4588
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_4589
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_4590
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_4591
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_4592
(buried soakaway)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4593
construction site (unfinished surface)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4594
AC units

AutoCAD SHX Text_4595
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4596
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4597
Gas pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_4598
dia.=0.225m il=54.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_4599
drain pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_4600
stump

AutoCAD SHX Text_4601
p/w h=1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4602
p/r

AutoCAD SHX Text_4603
p/r fence ht=1.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4604
(exposed) (duct)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4605
(exposed) (duct)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4606
Recorded top of Gas Pipe  ~68.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_4607
Recorded top of Gas Pipe  ~69.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_4608
stairs

AutoCAD SHX Text_4609
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_4610
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_4611
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_4612
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_4613
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_4614
gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_4615
asphalt footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_4616
asphalt footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_4617
panel fence ht=1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4618
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_4619
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_4620
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_4621
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_4622
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_4623
overhead structure

AutoCAD SHX Text_4624
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_4625
DYL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4626
DYL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4627
DYL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4628
DYL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4629
DYL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4630
DYL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4631
DYL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4632
DYL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4633
DYL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4634
DYL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4635
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4636
DYL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4637
DYL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4638
DYL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4639
DYL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4640
il=59.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_4641
barn

AutoCAD SHX Text_4642
panel fence ht=1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4643
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_4644
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4645
RG

AutoCAD SHX Text_4646
RG

AutoCAD SHX Text_4647
69.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_4648
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4649
Dog Bin

AutoCAD SHX Text_4650
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_4651
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_4652
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_4653
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4654
69.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_4655
IL 68.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_4656
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4657
69.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_4658
WO

AutoCAD SHX Text_4659
SVs

AutoCAD SHX Text_4660
bench

AutoCAD SHX Text_4661
Sign

AutoCAD SHX Text_4662
RG

AutoCAD SHX Text_4663
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_4664
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_4665
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_4666
Mkr

AutoCAD SHX Text_4667
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4668
panel fence ht=1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4669
panel fence ht=1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4670
asphalt

AutoCAD SHX Text_4671
rail fence ht=0.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4672
p/w ht=1.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4673
p/w ht=1.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4674
p/w ht=1.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4675
    66.551

AutoCAD SHX Text_4676
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_4677
(SI_212)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4678
(SI_213)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4679
(SI_217)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4680
(SI_201)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4681
(SI_202)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4682
(SI_207)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4683
(SI_206)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4684
(SI_205)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4685
(SI_204)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4686
(SI_203)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4687
(SI_209)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4688
(SI_208)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4689
(SI_211)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4690
(SI_210)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4691
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_4692
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_4693
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4694
55.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_4695
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_4696
55.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_4697
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4698
54.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_4699
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4700
54.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_4701
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4702
54.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_4703
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_4704
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_4705
WL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4706
52.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4707
silted pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_4708
dense foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_4709
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_4710
soffit=54.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_4711
il=53.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_4712
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_4713
footbridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_4714
PG

AutoCAD SHX Text_4715
53.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_4716
PG

AutoCAD SHX Text_4717
53.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_4718
156798.70 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4719
    56.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_4720
BX

AutoCAD SHX Text_4721
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_4722
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_4723
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_4724
578038.41 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4725
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4726
55.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_4727
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4728
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_4729
56.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_4730
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4731
55.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_4732
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4733
56.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_4734
car park

AutoCAD SHX Text_4735
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4736
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4737
56.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_4738
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4739
56.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4740
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_4741
56.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_4742
T200

AutoCAD SHX Text_4743
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4744
BX

AutoCAD SHX Text_4745
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4746
stump

AutoCAD SHX Text_4747
58.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_4748
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4749
57.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4750
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4751
57.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_4752
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4753
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4754
58.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_4755
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4756
T201

AutoCAD SHX Text_4757
577984.46 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4758
156840.79 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4759
    58.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_4760
il=52.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_4761
soffit=52.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_4762
il=52.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_4763
rough stone lined channel

AutoCAD SHX Text_4764
silted culvert

AutoCAD SHX Text_4765
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_4766
Gidd's Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_4767
Gidd's Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_4768
Gidd's Pond Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_4769
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4770
BEARSTED ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4771
NEW CUT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4772
Freshwoods

AutoCAD SHX Text_4773
Dawn Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_4774
Fenwynd

AutoCAD SHX Text_4775
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4776
Newnham Court Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_4777
Newnham Court Inn (PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4778
Lodge Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_4779
Crematorium

AutoCAD SHX Text_4780
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4781
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4782
Lower Fullingpits Wood

AutoCAD SHX Text_4783
Vinters Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_4784
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_4785
Towergate House

AutoCAD SHX Text_4786
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4787
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_4788
Veterinary

AutoCAD SHX Text_4789
The Oasts

AutoCAD SHX Text_4790
Clinic

AutoCAD SHX Text_4791
GIDDS POND WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4792
NEWNHAM COURT WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4793
(KNAF526)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4794
(SI_42)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4795
french drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_4796
(KNAF047)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4797
(SI_41)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4798
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_4799
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4800
DfT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4801
kerb drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_4802
SSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4803
DfT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4804
SSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4805
french drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_4806
remains of fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_4807
NP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4808
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4809
woodland

AutoCAD SHX Text_4810
dia.=0.25m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4811
conc.

AutoCAD SHX Text_4812
conc.

AutoCAD SHX Text_4813
i/r

AutoCAD SHX Text_4814
il=

AutoCAD SHX Text_4815
54.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_4816
kerb drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_4817
overgrown

AutoCAD SHX Text_4818
drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_4819
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_4820
(SI_39)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4821
rw

AutoCAD SHX Text_4822
il=

AutoCAD SHX Text_4823
55.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_4824
culvert

AutoCAD SHX Text_4825
woodland

AutoCAD SHX Text_4826
kerb drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_4827
BEARSTED ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4828
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_4829
track

AutoCAD SHX Text_4830
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_4831
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4832
woodland

AutoCAD SHX Text_4833
gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_4834
kerb drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_4835
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_4836
56.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_4837
WL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4838
54.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_4839
soffit=

AutoCAD SHX Text_4840
55.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_4841
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_4842
56.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_4843
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_4844
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_4845
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_4846
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_4847
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_4848
56.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_4849
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_4850
56.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_4851
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_4852
56.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_4853
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4854
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_4855
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_4856
56.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_4857
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_4858
56.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_4859
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_4860
56.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_4861
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4862
56.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_4863
LP/CCTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_4864
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_4865
56.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_4866
56.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_4867
    57.012

AutoCAD SHX Text_4868
PSS10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4869
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4870
156795.417 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4871
578119.226 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4872
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4873
(SI_50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4874
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_4875
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4876
(SI_56)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4877
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4878
(KNAF518)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4879
(SI_55)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4880
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4881
(SI_52)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4882
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4883
(SI_53)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4884
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4885
SI

AutoCAD SHX Text_4886
(SI_54)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4887
(KNAF518A)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4888
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4889
(KNAF522)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4890
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_4891
(SI_35)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4892
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_4893
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4894
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4895
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_4896
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4897
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_4898
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_4899
(KNAF523)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4900
(SI_34)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4901
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_4902
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4903
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4904
MH(CP)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4905
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4906
chevrons

AutoCAD SHX Text_4907
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4908
MH(F)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4909
p/r fence h=1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4910
DfT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4911
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4912
InteR

AutoCAD SHX Text_4913
NP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4914
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4915
BX

AutoCAD SHX Text_4916
WO(F)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4917
BX

AutoCAD SHX Text_4918
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4919
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4920
NP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4921
(KNAF050)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4922
(SI_40)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4923
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4924
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_4925
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4926
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4927
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_4928
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4929
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4930
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_4931
(SI_37)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4932
(KNAF524)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4933
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4934
(SI_61)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4935
(KNAF519)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4936
(SI_57)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4937
(SI_58)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4938
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4939
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4940
(SI_59)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4941
(KNAF517)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4942
(SI_60)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4943
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4944
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4945
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4946
(LFAV702)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4947
(SI_38)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4948
chevrons

AutoCAD SHX Text_4949
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_4950
DfT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4951
NP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4952
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_4953
p/w h=1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4954
(SI_36)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4955
(KNAF049A)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4956
InteR

AutoCAD SHX Text_4957
DfT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4958
NP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4959
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4960
gabions

AutoCAD SHX Text_4961
p/r fence h=1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4962
sign

AutoCAD SHX Text_4963
dia.=

AutoCAD SHX Text_4964
0.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4965
il=

AutoCAD SHX Text_4966
55.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_4967
il=

AutoCAD SHX Text_4968
55.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_4969
il=

AutoCAD SHX Text_4970
55.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_4971
gabions

AutoCAD SHX Text_4972
conc.

AutoCAD SHX Text_4973
gabions

AutoCAD SHX Text_4974
gabions

AutoCAD SHX Text_4975
dia.=0.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4976
NEWNHAM COURT WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4977
il=

AutoCAD SHX Text_4978
57.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4979
il=

AutoCAD SHX Text_4980
57.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4981
conc.

AutoCAD SHX Text_4982
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4983
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_4984
kerb drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_4985
BEARSTED ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4986
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4987
drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_4988
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4989
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4990
InteR

AutoCAD SHX Text_4991
(KNAF051)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4992
gabion r/w

AutoCAD SHX Text_4993
dia.=0.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4994
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4995
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4996
attachment

AutoCAD SHX Text_4997
points

AutoCAD SHX Text_4998
(MH_11)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4999
gabions

AutoCAD SHX Text_5000
remains of fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_5001
overgrown bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_5002
il=

AutoCAD SHX Text_5003
54.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_5004
box culvert

AutoCAD SHX Text_5005
i/r

AutoCAD SHX Text_5006
il=

AutoCAD SHX Text_5007
54.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_5008
il=

AutoCAD SHX Text_5009
55.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_5010
dia.=0.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5011
sapling plantation

AutoCAD SHX Text_5012
dia.=0.30m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5013
dia.=0.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5014
concrete base

AutoCAD SHX Text_5015
(MH_18)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5016
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_5017
56.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_5018
soffit=

AutoCAD SHX Text_5019
55.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5020
WL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5021
54.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_5022
soffit=

AutoCAD SHX Text_5023
55.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_5024
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_5025
56.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_5026
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_5027
56.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_5028
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5029
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5030
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_5031
56.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_5032
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_5033
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_5034
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_5035
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_5036
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_5037
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_5038
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_5039
WC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5040
56.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_5041
    56.622

AutoCAD SHX Text_5042
156806.597 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_5043
578162.037 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_5044
PSS09

AutoCAD SHX Text_5045
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5046
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_5047
56.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_5048
stay

AutoCAD SHX Text_5049
56.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_5050
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_5051
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5052
56.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_5053
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_5054
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_5055
56.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_5056
    57.322

AutoCAD SHX Text_5057
156844.709 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_5058
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5059
57.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5060
578147.995 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_5061
PSS08

AutoCAD SHX Text_5062
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5063
57.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_5064
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5065
57.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_5066
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5067
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5068
56.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_5069
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5070
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5071
57.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_5072
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5073
57.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_5074
57.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_5075
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5076
57.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_5077
57.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_5078
57.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_5079
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5080
57.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5081
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5082
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5083
56.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_5084
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5085
56.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_5086
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5087
56.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_5088
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5089
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5090
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5091
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5092
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5093
58.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_5094
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5095
56.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_5096
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5097
58.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_5098
56.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_5099
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5100
56.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_5101
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_5102
56.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_5103
57.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_5104
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5105
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5106
57.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5107
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5108
57.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5109
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_5110
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5111
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5112
58.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_5113
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5114
58.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_5115
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5116
56.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_5117
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5118
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5119
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5120
conc.

AutoCAD SHX Text_5121
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5122
DfT

AutoCAD SHX Text_5123
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5124
bus

AutoCAD SHX Text_5125
shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_5126
pedestrian crossing studs

AutoCAD SHX Text_5127
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5128
(No '2')

AutoCAD SHX Text_5129
pedestrian crossing studs

AutoCAD SHX Text_5130
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5131
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_5132
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5133
stone wall h=1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5134
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_5135
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5136
(KBBB511)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5137
BX

AutoCAD SHX Text_5138
(11/0963)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5139
small trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_5140
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5141
(KBBB031)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5142
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5143
(KBBB032)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5144
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5145
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_5146
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5147
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_5148
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_5149
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_5150
BX

AutoCAD SHX Text_5151
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5152
overgrown bank and trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_5153
SLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_5154
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_5155
bench

AutoCAD SHX Text_5156
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5157
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5158
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_5159
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5160
stone strip

AutoCAD SHX Text_5161
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5162
(SI_24)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5163
(KBBB033)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5164
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5165
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5166
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5167
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5168
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5169
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5170
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5171
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5172
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5173
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5174
flower bed

AutoCAD SHX Text_5175
sign

AutoCAD SHX Text_5176
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_5177
BX

AutoCAD SHX Text_5178
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_5179
flower bed

AutoCAD SHX Text_5180
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5181
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_5182
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5183
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_5184
chevrons

AutoCAD SHX Text_5185
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5186
flower bed

AutoCAD SHX Text_5187
TURN

AutoCAD SHX Text_5188
LEFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_5189
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5190
c/l fence 2.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5191
il=64.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_5192
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5193
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5194
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5195
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5196
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5197
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5198
TURN

AutoCAD SHX Text_5199
(SI_27)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5200
NO

AutoCAD SHX Text_5201
RIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text_5202
(SI_26)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5203
(KBBB040)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5204
BH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5205
62.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_5206
(SI_25)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5207
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5208
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5209
BH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5210
62.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_5211
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5212
SLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_5213
signs

AutoCAD SHX Text_5214
flower

AutoCAD SHX Text_5215
bed

AutoCAD SHX Text_5216
flower

AutoCAD SHX Text_5217
bed

AutoCAD SHX Text_5218
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5219
(SI_29)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5220
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5221
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5222
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5223
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_5224
(KBBB041)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5225
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5226
(SI_28)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5227
p/r fence h=1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5228
dense foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_5229
BH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5230
65.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_5231
sapling plantation

AutoCAD SHX Text_5232
p/r fence h=1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5233
BH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5234
64.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_5235
SLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_5236
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5237
BH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5238
64.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_5239
(MH_5)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5240
stone wall h=1.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5241
(SI_30)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5242
(KBBB033)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5243
DfT

AutoCAD SHX Text_5244
(SI_31)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5245
dense foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_5246
sapling plantation

AutoCAD SHX Text_5247
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_5248
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5249
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5250
(KNAF520)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5251
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5252
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5253
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_5254
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5255
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5256
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5257
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_5258
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_5259
NP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5260
InteR

AutoCAD SHX Text_5261
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5262
BEARSTED ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_5263
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5264
sign

AutoCAD SHX Text_5265
sign

AutoCAD SHX Text_5266
NP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5267
BX

AutoCAD SHX Text_5268
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_5269
(KNAF521)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5270
(SI_48)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5271
sapling plantation

AutoCAD SHX Text_5272
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5273
(SI_32)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5274
(KNAF049)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5275
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_5276
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_5277
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_5278
SSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5279
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5280
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_5281
dense foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_5282
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5283
(SI_51)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5284
gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_5285
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5286
NP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5287
c/l fence h=1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5288
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5289
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5290
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_5291
(KNAF501)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5292
(KNAF048)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5293
(SI_47)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5294
(MH_7)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5295
MH(F)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5296
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5297
(MH_10)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5298
(SI_33)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5299
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5300
(MH_6)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5301
overhead cables

AutoCAD SHX Text_5302
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5303
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_5304
chevrons

AutoCAD SHX Text_5305
(SI_43)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5306
(KNAF046)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5307
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_5308
gabions

AutoCAD SHX Text_5309
gabions

AutoCAD SHX Text_5310
conc.

AutoCAD SHX Text_5311
gabions

AutoCAD SHX Text_5312
conc.

AutoCAD SHX Text_5313
gabions

AutoCAD SHX Text_5314
dia.=0.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5315
p/r fence h=1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5316
il=

AutoCAD SHX Text_5317
58.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_5318
dia.=0.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5319
il=

AutoCAD SHX Text_5320
58.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_5321
dia.=0.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5322
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5323
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5324
il=53.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_5325
box culvert

AutoCAD SHX Text_5326
box culvert

AutoCAD SHX Text_5327
p/r h=1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5328
il= 53.70m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5329
soffit= 54.70m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5330
soffit= 54.72m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5331
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5332
il=53.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_5333
il=54.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_5334
i/r h=1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5335
silt

AutoCAD SHX Text_5336
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_5337
culvert

AutoCAD SHX Text_5338
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_5339
(KNAF503)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5340
dia.=0.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5341
p/r

AutoCAD SHX Text_5342
dia.=0.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5343
dia.=0.37m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5344
c/l fence h=1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5345
overgrown bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_5346
NEW CUT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_5347
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_5348
(SI_45)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5349
(SI_44)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5350
(KNAF045)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5351
(KNAF502)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5352
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_5353
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_5354
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5355
gabions

AutoCAD SHX Text_5356
conc.

AutoCAD SHX Text_5357
il=

AutoCAD SHX Text_5358
58.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_5359
il=

AutoCAD SHX Text_5360
59.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_5361
dia.=0.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5362
dia.=0.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5363
dia.=0.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5364
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5365
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5366
p/r ht=1.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5367
gabions

AutoCAD SHX Text_5368
(MH_16)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5369
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5370
il=

AutoCAD SHX Text_5371
59.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_5372
gabions

AutoCAD SHX Text_5373
dia.=0.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5374
dia.=0.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5375
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_5376
il=

AutoCAD SHX Text_5377
59.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_5378
gabions

AutoCAD SHX Text_5379
(MH_9)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5380
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5381
(Gu_20)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5382
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_5383
(Gu_11)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5384
gabions

AutoCAD SHX Text_5385
conc.

AutoCAD SHX Text_5386
MH(F)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5387
gabions

AutoCAD SHX Text_5388
(Gu_4)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5389
(Gu_2)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5390
(Gu_3)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5391
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5392
(Gu_1)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5393
attachment

AutoCAD SHX Text_5394
points

AutoCAD SHX Text_5395
(KNAF044)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5396
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_5397
(SI_46)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5398
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_5399
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_5400
(KNAF504)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5401
SSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5402
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_5403
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_5404
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_5405
(KNAF043)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5406
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_5407
car park

AutoCAD SHX Text_5408
extent of tree canopy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5409
RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5410
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5411
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5412
(Gu_5)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5413
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5414
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5415
62.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_5416
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5417
stay

AutoCAD SHX Text_5418
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5419
59.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_5420
59.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_5421
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5422
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5423
63.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_5424
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5425
61.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_5426
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5427
61.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_5428
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5429
61.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_5430
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5431
61.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_5432
61.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_5433
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5434
64.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_5435
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5436
65.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_5437
59.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_5438
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5439
59.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_5440
WB

AutoCAD SHX Text_5441
60.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_5442
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5443
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5444
60.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_5445
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5446
60.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_5447
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5448
60.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_5449
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5450
62.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_5451
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_5452
    60.248

AutoCAD SHX Text_5453
156903.976 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_5454
577986.528 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_5455
PSS06

AutoCAD SHX Text_5456
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5457
WC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5458
60.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_5459
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5460
60.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_5461
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_5462
65.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_5463
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_5464
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5465
61.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_5466
60.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_5467
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5468
61.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_5469
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5470
60.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_5471
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5472
60.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_5473
Mkr

AutoCAD SHX Text_5474
61.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_5475
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5476
56.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_5477
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5478
57.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5479
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5480
57.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_5481
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_5482
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_5483
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_5484
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_5485
57.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_5486
    57.533

AutoCAD SHX Text_5487
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5488
156841.842 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_5489
578102.837 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_5490
PSS07

AutoCAD SHX Text_5491
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5492
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5493
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5494
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5495
57.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_5496
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5497
57.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_5498
Mkr

AutoCAD SHX Text_5499
57.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_5500
WC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5501
57.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_5502
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_5503
57.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_5504
57.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_5505
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_5506
57.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_5507
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_5508
57.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_5509
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_5510
57.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_5511
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_5512
57.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_5513
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_5514
57.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_5515
Mkr

AutoCAD SHX Text_5516
57.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_5517
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_5518
57.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_5519
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_5520
57.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_5521
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_5522
57.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_5523
57.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_5524
57.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_5525
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5526
57.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_5527
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5528
57.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_5529
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5530
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5531
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5532
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5533
57.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_5534
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5535
stay

AutoCAD SHX Text_5536
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5537
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5538
58.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_5539
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5540
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5541
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5542
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5543
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5544
56.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_5545
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5546
56.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_5547
WC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5548
57.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_5549
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5550
56.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_5551
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5552
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_5553
55.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_5554
Mkr

AutoCAD SHX Text_5555
55.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_5556
Mkr

AutoCAD SHX Text_5557
55.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_5558
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_5559
56.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_5560
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_5561
56.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_5562
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5563
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5564
61.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_5565
58.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_5566
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5567
61.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_5568
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5569
59.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_5570
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5571
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5572
59.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_5573
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5574
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5575
59.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_5576
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_5577
56.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_5578
Mkr

AutoCAD SHX Text_5579
55.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_5580
BS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5581
58.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_5582
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5583
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5584
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5585
59.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_5586
WO

AutoCAD SHX Text_5587
59.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_5588
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5589
59.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_5590
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5591
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_5592
56.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_5593
    59.824

AutoCAD SHX Text_5594
156910.916 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_5595
578215.718 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_5596
PSS13

AutoCAD SHX Text_5597
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5598
59.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_5599
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5600
59.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_5601
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5602
59.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_5603
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5604
59.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_5605
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5606
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5607
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5608
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5609
56.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_5610
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5611
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5612
57.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_5613
soffit=

AutoCAD SHX Text_5614
54.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_5615
WL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5616
53.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_5617
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5618
57.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_5619
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5620
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5621
PSS11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5622
578074.366 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_5623
156723.463 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_5624
    57.358

AutoCAD SHX Text_5625
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5626
58.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_5627
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5628
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5629
57.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_5630
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5631
59.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_5632
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5633
58.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_5634
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5635
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5636
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5637
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5638
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5639
65.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_5640
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5641
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5642
61.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_5643
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5644
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5645
60.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_5646
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5647
65.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_5648
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5649
65.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_5650
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5651
65.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_5652
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5653
65.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_5654
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5655
65.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_5656
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5657
65.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_5658
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_5659
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_5660
65.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_5661
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5662
65.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_5663
LP/CCTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_5664
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_5665
65.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_5666
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5667
65.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_5668
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5669
65.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_5670
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5671
65.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_5672
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5673
62.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_5674
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5675
RSs

AutoCAD SHX Text_5676
Tap

AutoCAD SHX Text_5677
65.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_5678
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5679
65.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_5680
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5681
65.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_5682
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_5683
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5684
65.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_5685
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5686
65.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_5687
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5688
65.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_5689
62.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_5690
BS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5691
62.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_5692
66.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_5693
stay

AutoCAD SHX Text_5694
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5695
66.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_5696
stay

AutoCAD SHX Text_5697
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5698
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5699
65.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_5700
60.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_5701
60.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_5702
60.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_5703
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5704
66.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_5705
66.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_5706
66.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_5707
66.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_5708
BEARSTED ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_5709
(KBBB028)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5710
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_5711
DYL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5712
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_5713
(KBBB030)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5714
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5715
(SI_23)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5716
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5717
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5718
(SI_22)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5719
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_5720
overgrown bank and trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_5721
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5722
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5723
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5724
car park

AutoCAD SHX Text_5725
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5726
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5727
RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5728
BX

AutoCAD SHX Text_5729
pedestrian

AutoCAD SHX Text_5730
crossing

AutoCAD SHX Text_5731
overhead

AutoCAD SHX Text_5732
structure

AutoCAD SHX Text_5733
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5734
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5735
SI

AutoCAD SHX Text_5736
BX

AutoCAD SHX Text_5737
(Gu_13)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5738
(Gu_14)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5739
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5740
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_5741
(Gu_12)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5742
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_5743
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5744
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_5745
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_5746
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5747
(Gu_7)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5748
SI

AutoCAD SHX Text_5749
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_5750
(MH_2)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5751
(Gu_6)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5752
(MH_3)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5753
(MH_4)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5754
(MH_1)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5755
gabions

AutoCAD SHX Text_5756
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5757
il=

AutoCAD SHX Text_5758
59.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_5759
il=

AutoCAD SHX Text_5760
59.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_5761
dia.=0.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5762
(Gu_10)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5763
gabions

AutoCAD SHX Text_5764
dia.=0.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5765
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_5766
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5767
66.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_5768
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5769
63.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_5770
    63.431

AutoCAD SHX Text_5771
PSS01

AutoCAD SHX Text_5772
156946.509 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_5773
577887.272 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_5774
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_5775
63.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_5776
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5777
63.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_5778
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5779
65.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_5780
65.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_5781
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5782
LP/CCTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_5783
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5784
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_5785
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_5786
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_5787
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5788
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5789
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5790
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_5791
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_5792
65.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_5793
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5794
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_5795
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5796
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5797
65.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_5798
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_5799
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5800
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5801
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_5802
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_5803
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5804
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5805
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_5806
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_5807
ER

AutoCAD SHX Text_5808
62.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_5809
62.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_5810
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_5811
62.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_5812
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5813
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5814
FL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5815
66.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_5816
66.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_5817
66.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_5818
66.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_5819
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5820
66.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_5821
65.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_5822
60.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_5823
(SI_09)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5824
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5825
(SI_10)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5826
(KBBB017)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5827
(SI_07)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5828
cheverons

AutoCAD SHX Text_5829
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5830
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5831
MH(F)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5832
(KBBB019)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5833
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_5834
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5835
AV

AutoCAD SHX Text_5836
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5837
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_5838
(KBBB016A)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5839
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5840
BEAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_5841
tree canopy extent

AutoCAD SHX Text_5842
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_5843
(SI_08)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5844
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5845
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5846
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5847
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5848
MH(F)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5849
(KBBB016)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5850
M20

AutoCAD SHX Text_5851
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5852
DYL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5853
DYL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5854
MH(F)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5855
DOV

AutoCAD SHX Text_5856
M20

AutoCAD SHX Text_5857
LON

AutoCAD SHX Text_5858
MAID

AutoCAD SHX Text_5859
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_5860
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_5861
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5862
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_5863
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_5864
concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_5865
base

AutoCAD SHX Text_5866
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5867
kerb drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_5868
M20

AutoCAD SHX Text_5869
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5870
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5871
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5872
(KBBB025)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5873
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_5874
(SI_13)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5875
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5876
(SI_21)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5877
(SI_20)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5878
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_5879
MAID

AutoCAD SHX Text_5880
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5881
(KBBB026)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5882
(SI_19)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5883
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5884
gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_5885
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_5886
(KBBB512)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5887
(SI_14)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5888
(SI_15)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5889
MAID

AutoCAD SHX Text_5890
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_5891
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5892
concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_5893
bases

AutoCAD SHX Text_5894
(SI_16)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5895
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_5896
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5897
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5898
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5899
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5900
MAID

AutoCAD SHX Text_5901
(KBBB014)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5902
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5903
MAID

AutoCAD SHX Text_5904
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5905
exposed old

AutoCAD SHX Text_5906
road surface

AutoCAD SHX Text_5907
stone wall ht=1.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5908
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_5909
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_5910
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_5911
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_5912
M20

AutoCAD SHX Text_5913
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5914
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5915
(KBBB012)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5916
(KBBB018)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5917
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_5918
kerb drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_5919
retaining wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_5920
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_5921
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5922
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_5923
chevrons

AutoCAD SHX Text_5924
(KBBB021)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5925
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5926
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_5927
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5928
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_5929
(SI_17)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5930
(SI_18)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5931
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5932
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5933
(KBBB022)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5934
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5935
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_5936
overgrown bank and trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_5937
(KBBB029)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5938
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5939
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5940
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5941
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5942
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5943
BX

AutoCAD SHX Text_5944
mesh fence h=0.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5945
c/l fence h=2.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5946
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5947
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5948
car park

AutoCAD SHX Text_5949
SI

AutoCAD SHX Text_5950
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5951
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5952
car park

AutoCAD SHX Text_5953
CAR WASH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5954
f/b fence h=1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5955
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5956
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5957
OVERFLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_5958
CAR PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text_5959
drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_5960
canopy line

AutoCAD SHX Text_5961
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5962
car park

AutoCAD SHX Text_5963
(No '8')

AutoCAD SHX Text_5964
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5965
i/r

AutoCAD SHX Text_5966
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_5967
flower bed

AutoCAD SHX Text_5968
ped. crossing studs

AutoCAD SHX Text_5969
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_5970
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5971
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5972
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_5973
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_5974
sign

AutoCAD SHX Text_5975
car wash

AutoCAD SHX Text_5976
f/b fence h=1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5977
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5978
container

AutoCAD SHX Text_5979
retaining wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_5980
car park

AutoCAD SHX Text_5981
(KBBB013)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5982
flower bed

AutoCAD SHX Text_5983
concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_5984
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_5985
flower bed

AutoCAD SHX Text_5986
car park

AutoCAD SHX Text_5987
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5988
PTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5989
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5990
asphalt

AutoCAD SHX Text_5991
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_5992
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5993
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5994
(MH_13)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5995
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5996
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5997
(MH_14)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5998
SI

AutoCAD SHX Text_5999
(Gu_17)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6000
(Gu_18)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6001
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_6002
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6003
(MH_17)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6004
steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_6005
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6006
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6007
(MH_12)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6008
brick setts

AutoCAD SHX Text_6009
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6010
p/r

AutoCAD SHX Text_6011
(Gu_8)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6012
SI

AutoCAD SHX Text_6013
(Gu_9)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6014
brick wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_6015
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6016
(Gu_19)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6017
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6018
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6019
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6020
RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6021
(Gu_16)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6022
(Gu_15)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6023
ramp

AutoCAD SHX Text_6024
RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6025
SI

AutoCAD SHX Text_6026
steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_6027
(MH_15)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6028
(MH_8)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6029
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6030
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_6031
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_6032
(No '14')

AutoCAD SHX Text_6033
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6034
(No '12')

AutoCAD SHX Text_6035
tree canopy extent

AutoCAD SHX Text_6036
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6037
(No '13')

AutoCAD SHX Text_6038
(KBBB012)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6039
(11 V 116)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6040
(SI_12)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6041
(SI_11)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6042
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6043
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6044
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_6045
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6046
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6047
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6048
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6049
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6050
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6051
(No '1')

AutoCAD SHX Text_6052
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_6053
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6054
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6055
pedestrian crossing studs

AutoCAD SHX Text_6056
pedestrian crossing studs

AutoCAD SHX Text_6057
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6058
(No '10')

AutoCAD SHX Text_6059
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6060
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_6061
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6062
(No '11')

AutoCAD SHX Text_6063
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6064
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6065
(No '9')

AutoCAD SHX Text_6066
box junction

AutoCAD SHX Text_6067
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_6068
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6069
(SI_06)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6070
(KBBB515)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6071
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6072
i/r

AutoCAD SHX Text_6073
ped. crossing studs

AutoCAD SHX Text_6074
(No '7')

AutoCAD SHX Text_6075
PTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6076
(SI_72)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6077
M20

AutoCAD SHX Text_6078
crash barrier

AutoCAD SHX Text_6079
(P38)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6080
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_6081
M20

AutoCAD SHX Text_6082
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6083
LON

AutoCAD SHX Text_6084
(No '1')

AutoCAD SHX Text_6085
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_6086
barrier

AutoCAD SHX Text_6087
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6088
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6089
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6090
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_6091
ped. crossing studs

AutoCAD SHX Text_6092
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_6093
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6094
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6095
barrier

AutoCAD SHX Text_6096
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_6097
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_6098
(No '3')

AutoCAD SHX Text_6099
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6100
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_6101
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6102
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_6103
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6104
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6105
(SI_03)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6106
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6107
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_6108
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6109
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6110
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6111
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6112
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6113
flower bed

AutoCAD SHX Text_6114
car park

AutoCAD SHX Text_6115
(SI_70)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6116
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6117
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6118
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6119
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6120
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6121
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6122
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6123
PTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6124
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6125
overgrown bank and trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_6126
(SI_63)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6127
p/r fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_6128
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6129
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6130
car park

AutoCAD SHX Text_6131
(P41)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6132
BH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6133
66.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_6134
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_6135
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_6136
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6137
car park

AutoCAD SHX Text_6138
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_6139
DYL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6140
pedestrian crossing studs

AutoCAD SHX Text_6141
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6142
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6143
pedestrian crossing studs

AutoCAD SHX Text_6144
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6145
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6146
(No '2')

AutoCAD SHX Text_6147
i/r

AutoCAD SHX Text_6148
(No '5')

AutoCAD SHX Text_6149
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6150
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_6151
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6152
car park

AutoCAD SHX Text_6153
BX

AutoCAD SHX Text_6154
(11/1171)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6155
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_6156
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6157
(SI_02)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6158
sign

AutoCAD SHX Text_6159
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6160
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6161
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6162
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6163
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6164
(SI_05)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6165
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6166
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_6167
cheverons

AutoCAD SHX Text_6168
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6169
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6170
ped. crossing studs

AutoCAD SHX Text_6171
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6172
i/r

AutoCAD SHX Text_6173
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6174
BWLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6175
concrete wall h=0.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6176
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6177
p/w fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_6178
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6179
VDP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6180
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6181
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_6182
DYL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6183
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_6184
flower bed

AutoCAD SHX Text_6185
(SI_01)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6186
(KUCE503)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6187
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_6188
retaining wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_6189
car park

AutoCAD SHX Text_6190
(SI_62)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6191
car park

AutoCAD SHX Text_6192
MAID

AutoCAD SHX Text_6193
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_6194
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_6195
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6196
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6197
(SI_69)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6198
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6199
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6200
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6201
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_6202
MAID

AutoCAD SHX Text_6203
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6204
(SI_65)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6205
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6206
overgrown bank and trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_6207
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6208
crash barrier

AutoCAD SHX Text_6209
PTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6210
crash barrier

AutoCAD SHX Text_6211
retaining wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_6212
car park

AutoCAD SHX Text_6213
overgrown bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_6214
(SI_71)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6215
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6216
barrier

AutoCAD SHX Text_6217
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6218
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6219
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6220
(SI_66)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6221
(NO REF.)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6222
(P40)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6223
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6224
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6225
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6226
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6227
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6228
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6229
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6230
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6231
PTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6232
c/l fence h=2.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6233
mesh fence h=0.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6234
crash barrier

AutoCAD SHX Text_6235
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_6236
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6237
CAM

AutoCAD SHX Text_6238
PTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6239
conc.

AutoCAD SHX Text_6240
steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_6241
BX

AutoCAD SHX Text_6242
DfT

AutoCAD SHX Text_6243
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_6244
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6245
(SI_64)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6246
i/r

AutoCAD SHX Text_6247
(NO REF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6248
BH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6249
68.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_6250
SHEER

AutoCAD SHX Text_6251
(P39)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6252
DOV

AutoCAD SHX Text_6253
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_6254
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6255
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_6256
BEAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_6257
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_6258
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_6259
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6260
64.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_6261
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_6262
64.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_6263
Mkr

AutoCAD SHX Text_6264
64.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_6265
    64.555

AutoCAD SHX Text_6266
157020.411 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_6267
577870.877 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_6268
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6269
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6270
64.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_6271
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6272
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6273
64.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6274
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6275
66.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_6276
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6277
64.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_6278
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6279
64.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_6280
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6281
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6282
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6283
64.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_6284
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6285
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6286
MH(F)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6287
64.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_6288
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6289
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_6290
64.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_6291
63.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_6292
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6293
63.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_6294
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6295
TFC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6296
64.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_6297
MH(F)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6298
66.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_6299
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6300
66.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_6301
MH(F)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6302
66.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_6303
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_6304
63.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_6305
64.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_6306
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6307
63.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_6308
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_6309
ER

AutoCAD SHX Text_6310
64.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6311
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_6312
63.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_6313
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6314
63.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_6315
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6316
63.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_6317
63.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_6318
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_6319
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6320
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6321
66.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_6322
64.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_6323
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6324
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6325
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6326
64.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_6327
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6328
67.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_6329
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_6330
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6331
63.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_6332
64.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_6333
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6334
64.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_6335
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6336
64.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_6337
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6338
63.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_6339
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6340
64.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_6341
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_6342
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6343
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6344
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6345
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6346
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6347
64.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_6348
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6349
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6350
64.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_6351
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6352
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6353
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6354
66.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_6355
64.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_6356
156984.326 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_6357
577785.087 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_6358
    64.052

AutoCAD SHX Text_6359
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6360
64.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_6361
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6362
63.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_6363
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_6364
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6365
62.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_6366
62.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_6367
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6368
62.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_6369
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6370
62.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_6371
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6372
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6373
62.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_6374
63.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_6375
MH(F)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6376
63.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_6377
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6378
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6379
63.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_6380
TFC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6381
63.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_6382
PSS02

AutoCAD SHX Text_6383
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_6384
65.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_6385
66.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_6386
66.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_6387
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6388
66.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_6389
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6390
FL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6391
66.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_6392
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_6393
Tap

AutoCAD SHX Text_6394
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6395
66.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_6396
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6397
66.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_6398
Tap

AutoCAD SHX Text_6399
66.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_6400
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_6401
Tap

AutoCAD SHX Text_6402
66.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_6403
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_6404
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_6405
Tap

AutoCAD SHX Text_6406
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6407
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_6408
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6409
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_6410
Tap

AutoCAD SHX Text_6411
66.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_6412
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_6413
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_6414
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_6415
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_6416
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_6417
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_6418
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_6419
65.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_6420
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_6421
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_6422
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6423
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6424
Tap

AutoCAD SHX Text_6425
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6426
66.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6427
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6428
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6429
TFC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6430
61.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_6431
61.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_6432
61.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_6433
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6434
61.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_6435
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6436
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6437
61.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_6438
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6439
61.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_6440
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6441
61.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_6442
61.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_6443
62.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_6444
61.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_6445
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6446
61.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_6447
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6448
61.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_6449
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6450
61.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_6451
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6452
62.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6453
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6454
61.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_6455
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6456
61.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_6457
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6458
61.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_6459
61.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_6460
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6461
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6462
62.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_6463
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6464
61.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_6465
61.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_6466
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6467
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6468
61.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_6469
62.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_6470
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6471
62.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_6472
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6473
61.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_6474
61.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_6475
MH(F)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6476
61.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_6477
62.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_6478
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6479
62.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_6480
62.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_6481
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6482
62.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_6483
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6484
62.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_6485
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6486
61.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_6487
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6488
61.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_6489
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6490
61.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_6491
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6492
61.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_6493
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6494
61.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_6495
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6496
61.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_6497
61.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_6498
61.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_6499
61.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_6500
61.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_6501
65.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_6502
60.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_6503
66.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_6504
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6505
66.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_6506
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_6507
66.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_6508
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6509
66.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_6510
66.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_6511
66.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_6512
66.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_6513
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6514
62.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_6515
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6516
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6517
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_6518
157036.682 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_6519
    64.637

AutoCAD SHX Text_6520
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6521
64.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_6522
SI

AutoCAD SHX Text_6523
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6524
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_6525
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_6526
64.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_6527
577844.787 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_6528
PSS04

AutoCAD SHX Text_6529
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6530
64.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_6531
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6532
64.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_6533
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6534
63.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_6535
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_6536
64.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_6537
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6538
63.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_6539
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6540
64.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_6541
PSS05

AutoCAD SHX Text_6542
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6543
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_6544
64.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_6545
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6546
63.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6547
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6548
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6549
62.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_6550
    62.378

AutoCAD SHX Text_6551
WC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6552
62.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_6553
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_6554
62.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_6555
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6556
62.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_6557
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6558
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_6559
63.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_6560
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6561
62.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_6562
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_6563
62.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_6564
157031.762 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_6565
577743.331 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_6566
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6567
62.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_6568
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6569
62.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_6570
PSS03

AutoCAD SHX Text_6571
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6572
TFC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6573
62.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_6574
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6575
65.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_6576
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6577
65.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_6578
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6579
62.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_6580
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6581
62.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_6582
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6583
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_6584
64.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_6585
stile

AutoCAD SHX Text_6586
65.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_6587
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6588
62.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_6589
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6590
62.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_6591
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6592
62.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_6593
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6594
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6595
62.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_6596
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6597
65.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_6598
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6599
65.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6600
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6601
65.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6602
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_6603
64.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_6604
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6605
71.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_6606
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6607
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6608
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6609
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6610
    66.260

AutoCAD SHX Text_6611
577895.656 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_6612
157102.382 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_6613
PSS14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6614
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6615
67.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6616
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_6617
64.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_6618
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_6619
64.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_6620
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_6621
65.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_6622
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6623
157097.101 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_6624
577922.212 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_6625
    66.677

AutoCAD SHX Text_6626
PSS23

AutoCAD SHX Text_6627
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6628
65.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_6629
66.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_6630
66.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_6631
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6632
66.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_6633
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6634
70.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_6635
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6636
71.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_6637
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6638
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6639
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6640
PTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6641
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6642
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6643
67.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_6644
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6645
    69.779

AutoCAD SHX Text_6646
157178.877 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_6647
577947.922 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_6648
PSS15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6649
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6650
70.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_6651
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6652
69.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_6653
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6654
67.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_6655
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6656
68.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_6657
PTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6658
68.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_6659
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6660
66.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_6661
CAM

AutoCAD SHX Text_6662
68.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_6663
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6664
68.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_6665
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_6666
157154.523 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_6667
577967.758 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_6668
PSS24

AutoCAD SHX Text_6669
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6670
    69.611

AutoCAD SHX Text_6671
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6672
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6673
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6674
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6675
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6676
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6677
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6678
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6679
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6680
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6681
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6682
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6683
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6684
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6685
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6686
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6687
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6688
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6689
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6690
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6691
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6692
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6693
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6694
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6695
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6696
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6697
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6698
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6699
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6700
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6701
CE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6702
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6703
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6704
il=54.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_6705
il=53.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_6706
dia.=0.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6707
dia.=0.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6708
il=54.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_6709
il=54.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_6710
il=54.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_6711
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6712
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6713
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6714
(SI_49)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6715
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6716
il=58.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6717
il=58.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_6718
(KBBB027)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6719
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6720
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6721
MH(CP)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6722
MH(CP)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6723
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6724
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6725
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6726
MH(F)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6727
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6728
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6729
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6730
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6731
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6732
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6733
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6734
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6735
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6736
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6737
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6738
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6739
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6740
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6741
MHs

AutoCAD SHX Text_6742
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6743
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6744
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6745
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6746
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6747
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6748
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6749
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6750
il=55.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_6751
(KNAF527)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6752
(SI_04)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6753
il=53.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_6754
il=65.48 dia.= 0.10m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6755
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_6756
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_6757
asp

AutoCAD SHX Text_6758
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_6759
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_6760
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_6761
InteR

AutoCAD SHX Text_6762
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_6763
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6764
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6765
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6766
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6767
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6768
conc

AutoCAD SHX Text_6769
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6770
WB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6771
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text_6772
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text_6773
InteR

AutoCAD SHX Text_6774
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text_6775
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text_6776
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6777
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6778
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text_6779
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_6780
hedge bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_6781
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text_6782
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text_6783
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_6784
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6785
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_6786
MS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6787
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_6788
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6789
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_6790
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_6791
summer

AutoCAD SHX Text_6792
house

AutoCAD SHX Text_6793
b/w ht 1.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6794
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6795
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6796
panal fence ht=2.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6797
wall ht=0.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6798
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6799
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6800
hedge bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_6801
dense

AutoCAD SHX Text_6802
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_6803
stone wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_6804
p/r fence ht=1.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6805
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_6806
BT cover buried 

AutoCAD SHX Text_6807
PSS12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6808
156791.861 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_6809
578302.003 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_6810
    57.411

AutoCAD SHX Text_6811
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_6812
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6813
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6814
57.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_6815
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6816
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6817
56.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_6818
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6819
59.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_6820
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6821
56.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_6822
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6823
57.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_6824
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_6825
57.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_6826
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_6827
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_6828
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6829
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_6830
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_6831
stays

AutoCAD SHX Text_6832
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_6833
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_6834
57.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6835
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6836
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6837
55.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_6838
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6839
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_6840
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_6841
58.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6842
57.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_6843
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_6844
58.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_6845
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_6846
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_6847
57.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_6848
(NO REF) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_6849
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text_6850
p/w    h=1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6851
p/w

AutoCAD SHX Text_6852
stone wall h=1.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6853
stone wall h=1.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6854
stone wall h=1.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6855
stone wall h=1.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6856
stone wall h=1.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6857
stone wall h=1.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6858
kerb drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_6859
kerb drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_6860
kerb drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_6861
kerb drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_6862
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_6863
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_6864
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_6865
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_6866
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_6867
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_6868
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_6869
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_6870
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_6871
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_6872
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_6873
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_6874
Gas Mkr

AutoCAD SHX Text_6875
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6876
Gas Pressure Pressure Monitoring cabinet

AutoCAD SHX Text_6877
Hole

AutoCAD SHX Text_6878
Mkr 57.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_6879
BH (Monitoring Point)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6880
Tap

AutoCAD SHX Text_6881
(No '1')

AutoCAD SHX Text_6882
stile

AutoCAD SHX Text_6883
Mkr

AutoCAD SHX Text_6884
(No '4')

AutoCAD SHX Text_6885
(No '6')

AutoCAD SHX Text_6886
stile

AutoCAD SHX Text_6887
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_6888
gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_6889
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6890
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6891
il

AutoCAD SHX Text_6892
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_6893
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_6894
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_6895
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_6896
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_6897
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_6898
66.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_6899
69.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_6900
69.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_6901
69.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_6902
69.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_6903
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6904
69.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_6905
69.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_6906
69.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_6907
69.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_6908
69.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_6909
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6910
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6911
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6912
(Gu_25)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6913
(UTL)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6914
(MH_31)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6915
(Gu_24)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6916
(MH_24)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6917
(MH_23)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6918
(MH_25)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6919
(MH_32)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6920
(MH_28)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6921
(MH_30)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6922
(MH_22)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6923
(MH_26)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6924
(MH_19)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6925
(MH_20)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6926
(MH_29)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6927
(Gu_22)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6928
(Gu_23)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6929
(MH_27)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6930
(MH_21)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6931
(Gu_21)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6932
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6933
69.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_6934
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6935
69.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_6936
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6937
69.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_6938
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6939
69.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_6940
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_6941
69.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_6942
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6943
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6944
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6945
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6946
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6947
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6948
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6949
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6950
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6951
69.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_6952
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6953
69.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_6954
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6955
69.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_6956
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6957
69.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_6958
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6959
69.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_6960
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6961
69.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_6962
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6963
69.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_6964
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6965
POINT

AutoCAD SHX Text_6966
OFF

AutoCAD SHX Text_6967
DROP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6968
RE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6969
69.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_6970
RE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6971
69.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_6972
WB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6973
CCTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_6974
69.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_6975
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6976
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6977
578087.185 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_6978
157075.638 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_6979
PSS34

AutoCAD SHX Text_6980
    68.991

AutoCAD SHX Text_6981
PSS33

AutoCAD SHX Text_6982
    68.884

AutoCAD SHX Text_6983
578150.140 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_6984
157041.746 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_6985
PSS32

AutoCAD SHX Text_6986
578136.663 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_6987
157004.137 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_6988
    68.075

AutoCAD SHX Text_6989
578146.901 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_6990
157147.530 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_6991
    71.037

AutoCAD SHX Text_6992
PSS35

AutoCAD SHX Text_6993
PSS31

AutoCAD SHX Text_6994
578109.340 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_6995
156936.331 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_6996
Stump

AutoCAD SHX Text_6997
ramp

AutoCAD SHX Text_6998
Tap

AutoCAD SHX Text_6999
69.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_7000
yellow hatching

AutoCAD SHX Text_7001
ramp

AutoCAD SHX Text_7002
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7003
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7004
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7005
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7006
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7007
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_7008
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7009
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7010
panel fence ht=1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7011
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7012
panel fence ht=1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7013
parking

AutoCAD SHX Text_7014
bays

AutoCAD SHX Text_7015
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7016
concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_7017
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_7018
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7019
ramp

AutoCAD SHX Text_7020
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7021
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7022
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7023
p/r fence ht=1.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7024
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7025
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_7026
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_7027
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7028
extent of

AutoCAD SHX Text_7029
tree canopy

AutoCAD SHX Text_7030
soil heap

AutoCAD SHX Text_7031
p/w ht=1.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7032
gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_7033
soil heap

AutoCAD SHX Text_7034
p/w ht=1.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7035
p/w ht=1.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7036
parking

AutoCAD SHX Text_7037
bays

AutoCAD SHX Text_7038
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7039
p/r ht=1.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7040
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7041
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_7042
parking

AutoCAD SHX Text_7043
bays

AutoCAD SHX Text_7044
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7045
extent of

AutoCAD SHX Text_7046
tree canopy

AutoCAD SHX Text_7047
p/w fence ht=1.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7048
BH (Monitoring Point)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7049
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_7050
60.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_7051
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_7052
60.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_7053
Mkr

AutoCAD SHX Text_7054
64.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_7055
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7056
64.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_7057
(MH_40)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7058
(MH_47)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7059
(MH_46)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7060
(MH_48)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7061
(MH_45)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7062
(MH_41)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7063
(MH_44)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7064
MH(F)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7065
66.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_7066
(MH_49)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7067
(MH_50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7068
(MH_43)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7069
(MH_42)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7070
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7071
(SI_128)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7072
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_7073
57.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_7074
post & rail ht=1.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7075
soil

AutoCAD SHX Text_7076
concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_7077
steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_7078
post & rail ht=1.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7079
asphalt

AutoCAD SHX Text_7080
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7081
earth bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_7082
AC units on

AutoCAD SHX Text_7083
concrete base

AutoCAD SHX Text_7084
area obscured by

AutoCAD SHX Text_7085
materials at time

AutoCAD SHX Text_7086
of survey

AutoCAD SHX Text_7087
p/r ht=1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7088
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_7089
offices

AutoCAD SHX Text_7090
asphalt

AutoCAD SHX Text_7091
concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_7092
p/r ht=1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7093
container

AutoCAD SHX Text_7094
MH(F)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7095
rough ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_7096
panel fence ht=1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7097
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_7098
outline of building

AutoCAD SHX Text_7099
container

AutoCAD SHX Text_7100
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7101
EC

AutoCAD SHX Text_7102
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7103
outline of building

AutoCAD SHX Text_7104
WC

AutoCAD SHX Text_7105
WC

AutoCAD SHX Text_7106
SWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7107
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_7108
EC

AutoCAD SHX Text_7109
concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_7110
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_7111
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7112
70.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_7113
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7114
70.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_7115
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7116
70.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_7117
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7118
70.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_7119
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7120
70.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_7121
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7122
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7123
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7124
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7125
(MH_33)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7126
(UTL)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7127
(MH_34)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7128
(MH_35)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7129
(MH_36)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7130
(MH_37)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7131
(MH_38)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7132
(MH_39)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7133
71.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_7134
71.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_7135
71.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7136
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_7137
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_7138
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_7139
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7140
SI

AutoCAD SHX Text_7141
SI

AutoCAD SHX Text_7142
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_7143
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_7144
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_7145
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_7146
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_7147
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_7148
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_7149
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_7150
BX

AutoCAD SHX Text_7151
Buried IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_7152
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7153
p/r fence h=1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7154
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_7155
70.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_7156
MH(F)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7157
70.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_7158
MH(F)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7159
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7160
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7161
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_7162
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_7163
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_7164
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_7165
(buried soakaway)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7166
construction site (unfinished surface)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7167
AC units

AutoCAD SHX Text_7168
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7169
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7170
Gas pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_7171
dia.=0.225m il=54.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_7172
drain pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_7173
stump

AutoCAD SHX Text_7174
p/w h=1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7175
p/r

AutoCAD SHX Text_7176
p/r fence ht=1.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7177
(exposed) (duct)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7178
(exposed) (duct)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7179
Recorded top of Gas Pipe  ~68.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_7180
Recorded top of Gas Pipe  ~69.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_7181
stairs

AutoCAD SHX Text_7182
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_7183
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_7184
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_7185
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_7186
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_7187
gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_7188
asphalt footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_7189
asphalt footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_7190
panel fence ht=1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7191
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_7192
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_7193
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_7194
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_7195
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_7196
overhead structure

AutoCAD SHX Text_7197
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_7198
DYL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7199
DYL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7200
DYL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7201
DYL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7202
DYL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7203
DYL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7204
DYL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7205
DYL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7206
DYL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7207
DYL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7208
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7209
DYL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7210
DYL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7211
DYL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7212
DYL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7213
il=59.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_7214
barn

AutoCAD SHX Text_7215
panel fence ht=1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7216
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_7217
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7218
RG

AutoCAD SHX Text_7219
RG

AutoCAD SHX Text_7220
69.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_7221
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_7222
Dog Bin

AutoCAD SHX Text_7223
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_7224
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_7225
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_7226
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7227
69.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_7228
IL 68.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_7229
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7230
69.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_7231
WO

AutoCAD SHX Text_7232
SVs

AutoCAD SHX Text_7233
bench

AutoCAD SHX Text_7234
Sign

AutoCAD SHX Text_7235
RG

AutoCAD SHX Text_7236
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_7237
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_7238
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_7239
Mkr

AutoCAD SHX Text_7240
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_7241
panel fence ht=1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7242
panel fence ht=1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7243
asphalt

AutoCAD SHX Text_7244
rail fence ht=0.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7245
p/w ht=1.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7246
p/w ht=1.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7247
p/w ht=1.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7248
    66.551

AutoCAD SHX Text_7249
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_7250
(SI_212)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7251
(SI_213)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7252
(SI_217)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7253
(SI_201)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7254
(SI_202)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7255
(SI_207)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7256
(SI_206)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7257
(SI_205)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7258
(SI_204)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7259
(SI_203)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7260
(SI_209)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7261
(SI_208)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7262
(SI_211)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7263
(SI_210)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7264
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7265
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7266
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7267
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7268
BEAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_7269
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_7270
MAID

AutoCAD SHX Text_7271
BEAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_7272
BEAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_7273
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_7274
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_7275
MAID

AutoCAD SHX Text_7276
MAID

AutoCAD SHX Text_7277
BEAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_7278
BEAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_7279
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_7280
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_7281
MAID

AutoCAD SHX Text_7282
MAID

AutoCAD SHX Text_7283
BEAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_7284
BEAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_7285
SHEER

AutoCAD SHX Text_7286
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_7287
M20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7288
SHEER

AutoCAD SHX Text_7289
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_7290
M20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7291
M20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7292
M20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7293
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_7294
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_7295
SHEER

AutoCAD SHX Text_7296
SHEER

AutoCAD SHX Text_7297
BEAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_7298
M20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7299
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_7300
SHEER

AutoCAD SHX Text_7301
M20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7302
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_7303
SHEER

AutoCAD SHX Text_7304
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_7305
MAID

AutoCAD SHX Text_7306
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_7307
MAID

AutoCAD SHX Text_7308
MAID

AutoCAD SHX Text_7309
MAID

AutoCAD SHX Text_7310
M20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7311
SHEER

AutoCAD SHX Text_7312
M20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7313
SHEER

AutoCAD SHX Text_7314
RETAIL 

AutoCAD SHX Text_7315
RETAIL 

AutoCAD SHX Text_7316
RETAIL 

AutoCAD SHX Text_7317
BEAR 

AutoCAD SHX Text_7318
A20 

AutoCAD SHX Text_7319
A20 

AutoCAD SHX Text_7320
RETAIL 

AutoCAD SHX Text_7321
BEAR 

AutoCAD SHX Text_7322
BEAR 

AutoCAD SHX Text_7323
A20 

AutoCAD SHX Text_7324
A20 

AutoCAD SHX Text_7325
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_7326
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_7327
A20 

AutoCAD SHX Text_7328
A20 

AutoCAD SHX Text_7329
CREM 

AutoCAD SHX Text_7330
CREM

AutoCAD SHX Text_7331
CREM

AutoCAD SHX Text_7332
CREM

AutoCAD SHX Text_7333
RETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7334
CREM 

AutoCAD SHX Text_7335
M20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7336
A249

AutoCAD SHX Text_7337
CREM

AutoCAD SHX Text_7338
BEAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_7339
RETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7340
A20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7341
A20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7342
AVONDALE COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_7343
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7344
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7345
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_7346
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_7347
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_7348
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_7349
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_7350
NEW CUT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7351
SSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7352
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_7353
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_7354
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_7355
(KNAF043)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7356
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_7357
BWL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7358
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_7359
59.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_7360
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7361
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_7362
T=0.41m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7363
S=10m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7364
brick wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_7365
dense foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_7366
T=0.40m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7367
S=9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7368
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_7369
69.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_7370
T=0.44m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7371
S=10m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7372
S=6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7373
T=0.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7374
T=0.40m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7375
S=10m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7376
T=0.39m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7377
S=10m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7378
foliage

AutoCAD SHX Text_7379
S=8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7380
T=0.36m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7381
578064.86 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_7382
TS01

AutoCAD SHX Text_7383
156636.64 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_7384
    63.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_7385
S=10m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7386
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_7387
63.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_7388
T=0.42m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7389
T=0.47m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7390
S=10m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7391
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_7392
67.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_7393
brick wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_7394
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_7395
extent of tree canopy

AutoCAD SHX Text_7396
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_7397
small trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_7398
brick wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_7399
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_7400
    67.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_7401
TS02

AutoCAD SHX Text_7402
578061.75 E

AutoCAD SHX Text_7403
156566.94 N

AutoCAD SHX Text_7404
DfT

AutoCAD SHX Text_7405
67.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_7406
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_7407
small trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_7408
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_7409
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_7410
Gu

AutoCAD SHX Text_7411
66.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_7412
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_7413
Mkr

AutoCAD SHX Text_7414
67.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_7415
footway

AutoCAD SHX Text_7416
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_7417
67.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_7418
S=6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7419
T=0.20m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7420
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7421
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_7422
70.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_7423
(KNAF040)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7424
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text_7425
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7426
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_7427
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text_7428
CHK

AutoCAD SHX Text_7429
APP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7430
P01

AutoCAD SHX Text_7431
23/02/2022

AutoCAD SHX Text_7432
RA

AutoCAD SHX Text_7433
ISSUED FOR DISCUSSION

AutoCAD SHX Text_7434
JH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7435
DC

AutoCAD SHX Text_7436
Crown Copyright and database right 2022. Ordnance Survey 100019238



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL – PROPOSED RECORD OF DECISION 
 

DECISION TO BE TAKEN BY: 

David Brazier, Cabinet Member for Highways & Transport 

   
DECISION NO: 

22/00025 

 

For publication [Do not include information which is exempt from publication under schedule 12a of 
the Local Government Act 1972] 
 

Key decision: YES  
 
 

Subject Matter / Title of Decision 
Bearsted Road Improvement Scheme, Maidstone 
 

Decision:  
As Cabinet Member for Highways and Transportation, I give approval for the County Council to: 
 

i.   adopt the Bearsted Road dualling scheme shown on Drg. No. 70040984-SK-0086 for 
development control, land charge disclosures and implementation; 

ii.   retain the current scheme for widening Bearsted Road to three lanes scheme shown on Drg. 
No. 70040984-SK-0087; 

iii.   delegate the decision to decide which of the two scheme options (Drg. No. 70040984-SK-
0086 or Drg. No.70040984-SK-0087) is delivered to the Corporate Director of Growth, 
Environment & Transport under the Officer Scheme of Delegations following the views of this 
Committee and after prior consultation with the Cabinet Member; 

iv.   give authority to enter into the appropriate land, development and funding agreements and 
the award of the construction contract, and all other acts and consents and any subsidiary 
contracts required to allow the scheme to be implemented; 

v.   delegate to the Corporate Director of Growth, Environment & Transport, under the Officer 
Scheme of Delegations following prior consultation with the Cabinet Member, any further or 
other decisions as may be appropriate to deliver the Bearsted Road scheme; 

  vi.     confirm that other decisions in Record of Decision 18/00026 remain extant.  
 

Reason(s) for decision: 
Report to the Environment & Transport Cabinet Committee 17/3/2022 refers. 
 
The A249 Bearsted Road scheme is an important infrastructure improvement which aims to address 
congestion in Maidstone. It has been successful in unlocking external funding from the Department 
for Transport under the National Productivity Investment Fund (NPIF). 
 
This decision will enable the construction contract to be awarded, necessary funding and land 
agreements to be signed and subsequently for construction to commence in Spring 2022.   
 
There are many improvement schemes planned for Maidstone in the coming years, including the 
Keep Maidstone Moving programme funded through the Local Growth Fund; and delays to the 
Bearsted Road construction would influence the delivery of these schemes.  

Cabinet Committee recommendations and other consultation:  
There was extensive public consultation in 2019. 

 

Page 53



01/decision/glossaries/FormC 2 

Any alternatives considered and rejected: 
Do Nothing – discarded as congestion needs to be addressed to cater for future growth in this 
location.  Doing nothing would result in £2.27m of abortive costs and reputational risk given the 
planning consents have been achieved, and the capacity and active travel benefits of the preferred 
scheme would not be realised. 
 
Do Something - To signalise the A249 Bearsted Road (Next roundabout) and enlarge and signalise 
the Bearsted Road/New Cut Road roundabouts and widen Bearsted Road to provide 3 lanes 
between the roundabouts.  The estimated cost to deliver this option is £13.4m. 
 
 Do Maximum - This would deliver all of the improvements from Option 3, plus signalisation and 
capacity enhancements at the A249 junction with the M20 Junction 7.   Improvements to M20 J7 
have been a longstanding ambition and although can be funded through developer contributions, 
these will not be received in time to enable delivery alongside the Bearsted Road scheme. Although 
the developers have entered into S106 agreements, their payments are linked to key trigger dates, 
therefore several external funding bids have previously been submitted to Central Government. KCC 
will continue to develop the proposals alongside MBC and future grant and loan opportunities will be 
explored, but this Do Maximum option is not currently viable.  

Any interest declared when the decision was taken and any dispensation granted by the 

Proper Officer:  
 
 
 
 

 
.........................................................................  .................................................................. 

 signed   date 
   
 

 

Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



From:  Susan Carey, Cabinet Member for Environment  
    
   Simon Jones, Corporate Director of Growth, Environment and 

Transport 
 

To:   Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee 17 March 2022  
 

Subject:  Heritage Conservation Strategy – revised following consultation 
                          
Key Decision: 22/00026 
 
Classification: Unrestricted 
 
Past Pathway of report:   N/A 
 
Future Pathway of report:  N/A 
 

Electoral Division:  All 
 

Summary: This report sets out a revised Heritage Conservation Strategy further to 
the consultation draft presented to the Environment and Transport Cabinet 
Committee in September 2021.  The public consultation revealed high overall support 
for the Heritage Conservation Strategy with 94% in favour of the proposed vision. A 
new Strategic Aim 5, on the service’s contribution to KCC’s action to address the 
Climate Emergency, which brings the strategy in line with corporate policy, has been 
added. Other minor amendments have also been made in response to comments 
from the consultation. It is requested that the revised strategy should be adopted by 
the County Council. 
 
Recommendation(s):   
The Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee is asked to consider and  
endorse or make recommendations to the Cabinet for Environment to agree to adopt 
the revised Heritage Conservation Strategy as shown at Appendix A. 

 
1. Introduction 

  
1.1 This report presents the Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee with a 

revised Heritage Conservation Strategy following an eight-week public 
consultation which closed on 13 December 2021.  The draft Strategy follows a 
report to Cabinet Committee in January 2021 where a draft vision, strategic 
aims and objectives were all endorsed and a report to Cabinet committee in 
September 2021 which agreed the consultation draft of the strategy.   
 

1.2 The revised Heritage Conservation Strategy which has had minor amendments 
following the consultation is included as part of the Background Documents 
(Section 7). The draft strategy was informed and reviewed by a Member 
Working Group. 

 
 
 

Page 57

Agenda Item 12



2.    Heritage Conservation Strategy 
 

2.1 In October 2019, the Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee was 
presented with a report setting out the priorities and future direction of the 
Heritage Conservation Service at Kent County Council, with an opportunity for 
Members to make comments to the Cabinet Member on priorities and strategic 
direction.  It was resolved that a Member Working Group be established to help 
inform the drafting of a Heritage Conservation Strategy. 
 

2.2 The Member Working Group initially comprised Susan Carey, Matthew Balfour, 
Tony Hills, Michael Payne, Alan Ridgers and Martin Whybrow.  The Working 
Group met on three occasions and agreed the scope and structure of the 
Heritage Conservation Strategy whilst commenting on its emerging content.  
The draft vision and strategic aims were presented to Cabinet Committee in 
January 2021 and endorsed.  The Member Working Group later comprised 
Susan Carey, Alan Ridgers, Tony Hills, Neil Baker, Mike Baldock, Cameron 
Deart and Mike Dendor. The group discussed and agreed the consultation draft 
in August 2021. 

 
2.3 The public consultation received 2.66k total visits, 1.15k downloads and 277 

responses. There was high overall support for the Heritage Conservation 
Strategy with 94% in favour of the proposed vision and similarly high 
percentages in favour of most of the Strategic Aims and Objectives (see below 
Extract from draft Consultation Report by Lake Consulting).  

 

Overall agreement for the proposed vision for Heritage Conservation is high 

with the vast majority of consultees agreeing (94%). Only 2% disagreed with 

the proposed vision. 

Overall agreement with each of the strategic aims proposed is as follows: 

 Strategic aim 1 – Continue to improve the high quality and timely historic 
environment advice provided to KCC, local authorities and other bodies involved 
in growth and change based on accessible and up to date information and 
understanding (90%) 

 Strategic aim 2 – Ensure, working with new and existing partners, that KCC’s 
historic assets are conserved, enhanced, enjoyed and valued by Kent’s residents 
and visitors (93%) 

 Strategic aim 3 – Increase awareness, knowledge and understanding of Kent’s 
rich heritage and increase involvement in heritage activities amongst its local 
communities (92%) 

 Strategic aim 4 – Work towards the service becoming financially self-sustaining 
(66%) 

Overall agreement with each of the objectives proposed is as follows: 

Archaeology and development  

 Objective two – Explore and determine the potential for requiring 
archaeological contractors who undertake archaeological assessments on 
KCC projects to be Registered Archaeological Organisations (93%) 

 
KCC-owned heritage assets 

 Objective five – Work across KCC to coordinate information on heritage 

Page 58



assets and finalise the Kent Highways Heritage Protocol (89%) 
 
Windmills 

 Objective six - Follow a management approach to KCC-owned windmills, so 
that mills capable of milling flour remain able to do so (98%), the 
weatherproofing programme will be continued across the timeframe of this 
plan (98%), static mills will be returned to visual completeness subject to 
funding (94%) and static mills will be made active wherever possible (88%) 

 Objective eight - Explore alternative funding mechanisms for the windmills, 
including setting up a Charitable Trust to oversee management (84%) 

 
Archaeological archives 

 Objective nine - Assess options for the display and long-term storage of 
archaeological archives and ensure the KCC-held archives are placed in an 
appropriate repository (94%) 

 
Community archaeology 

 Objective ten - Promote understanding and enjoyment of Kent’s heritage using 
multiple media channels including digital media, print media and through direct 
experience (97%) 

 Objective eleven - Develop and deliver a community engagement strategy and 
communication plan for the Heritage Conservation team (95%) 

 
Metal detecting searching and chance discoveries 

 Objective twelve – Agree and adopt a policy that metal detecting and ‘by eye’ 
searches will only be undertaken on KCC owned land as part of an approved 
project (63%) 

 Objective thirteen – Agree and adopt a policy that KCC should retain 
ownership of all finds found on its properties in perpetuity unless special 
exemptions apply (65%) 

 Objective fourteen – Agree and adopt a policy that magnet fishing will not be 
allowed on KCC owned land (56%) 

 Objective fifteen – KCC will work with coastal landowners to consider the 
benefits of a permit system for metal detecting in coastal and riverine 
foreshore areas (63%) 

 
Supporting the development of robust heritage strategies 

 Objective sixteen – Explore developing a county level Kent Heritage Strategy 
to assist district authorities who could draw upon it as a framework for their 
own strategies as many issues and themes are commonly held (95%) 

 
Benchmarking and resourcing 

 Objective seventeen – Develop a cost recovery strategy for providing 
archaeological advice to developers for major planning applications and 
Nationally Significant Infrastructure Project proposal (94%) 

 Objective eighteen – Develop a cost recovery strategy for the creation of 
Historic Environment Record records as a result of development related 
fieldwork (82%) 

 Objective nineteen – Determine and secure a funded approach to built historic 

environment advice (81%). 

 

Page 59



2.4 The strategy remains in essence as presented to Cabinet Committee in 
September 2021, except for the following changes. A new Strategic Aim 5, on 
the service’s contribution to KCC’s action to address the Climate Emergency, 
which brings the strategy in line with corporate policy, has been added. Other 
minor amendments have also been made in response to comments during the 
consultation. The revised Heritage Conservation Strategy is included as part of 
the Background Documents.  The strategy is now being designed ready for final 
public release.   
 

2.5 It is proposed that the revised Heritage Conservation Strategy is adopted by the 
County Council and is designed and printed ready for public and stakeholder 
circulation during Spring 2022.   

 
3. Financial Implications 

 
3.1 The Kent County Council Heritage Conservation Service has a base revenue 

budget of £223,500 for the current 2021/22 financial year.  It also has a capital 
allocation for windmill weatherproofing of £584,000 for 2021/22 - 2023/24. 
 

3.2 The Service generates an income of approximately £192,000 in a typical year to 
deliver a wide range of activities relating to the historic environment.   

 
3.3 One of the objectives (no. 20) supporting the strategic aims is to develop a 

strategy to systematically review and monitor progress towards greater financial 
sustainability. 
 

4.    Equalities implications  
 

4.1 An Equality Impact Assessment has informed the preparation of the draft 
Strategy and is included as part of the Background Documents.  
 

5. Conclusions 
 
5.1 Kent has a rich and varied historic environment and the Heritage Conservation 

Strategy has been prepared to create a clear and measurable approach to how 
Kent County Council will protect, sustain, and celebrate this.  
 

5.2 The Strategy has been prepared with the engagement of the Environment and 
Transport Cabinet Committee and support of the Member Working Group.  The 
strategy has been subject to public consultation and has undergone minor 
revision following the consultation responses. 

 
6.    Recommendation(s) 
 

Recommendation(s):   
 
6.1  The Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee is asked to consider and  

endorse or make recommendations to the Cabinet for Environment to agree to 
adopt the revised Heritage Conservation Strategy as shown at Appendix A 

 

Page 60



7. Background Documents 
 

 Appendix A: Proposed Record of Decision 

 Appendix 1: Revised Heritage Conservation Strategy 
 Heritage Conservation Strategy Consultation Report - 

https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/documents/s109776/HeritageConservationStrat
egyConsultationReport.pdf  

 Heritage Conservation Strategy EqIA - 
https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/documents/s109777/HeritageConservationStrat
egyEqIA.doc.pdf  

 
8. Contact details 
 
Report Author:  
Lis Dyson 
Heritage Conservation Manager 
03000 413364 
lis.dyson@kent.gov.uk  

Relevant Director: 
Stephanie Holt-Castle 
 Director of Growth and Communities 
03000 412064  
stephanie.holt-castle@kent.gov.uk 
 

 

Page 61

https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.kent.gov.uk%2Fdocuments%2Fs109776%2FHeritageConservationStrategyConsultationReport.pdf&data=04%7C01%7Ctheresa.warford%40kent.gov.uk%7Cfd314dc956cd43e2d9f308d9fdc44a14%7C3253a20dc7354bfea8b73e6ab37f5f90%7C0%7C0%7C637819841764548932%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=cLUQQC2hvhshSGK1slffUo7LHWsiT2n3VcoGXbbRVec%3D&reserved=0
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.kent.gov.uk%2Fdocuments%2Fs109776%2FHeritageConservationStrategyConsultationReport.pdf&data=04%7C01%7Ctheresa.warford%40kent.gov.uk%7Cfd314dc956cd43e2d9f308d9fdc44a14%7C3253a20dc7354bfea8b73e6ab37f5f90%7C0%7C0%7C637819841764548932%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=cLUQQC2hvhshSGK1slffUo7LHWsiT2n3VcoGXbbRVec%3D&reserved=0
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.kent.gov.uk%2Fdocuments%2Fs109777%2FHeritageConservationStrategyEqIA.doc.pdf&data=04%7C01%7Ctheresa.warford%40kent.gov.uk%7Cfd314dc956cd43e2d9f308d9fdc44a14%7C3253a20dc7354bfea8b73e6ab37f5f90%7C0%7C0%7C637819841764548932%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=JqnorZTjUAgTFOO7PpDs7NUG4%2Fh0lPRj1I3UPtt4A6w%3D&reserved=0
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.kent.gov.uk%2Fdocuments%2Fs109777%2FHeritageConservationStrategyEqIA.doc.pdf&data=04%7C01%7Ctheresa.warford%40kent.gov.uk%7Cfd314dc956cd43e2d9f308d9fdc44a14%7C3253a20dc7354bfea8b73e6ab37f5f90%7C0%7C0%7C637819841764548932%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=JqnorZTjUAgTFOO7PpDs7NUG4%2Fh0lPRj1I3UPtt4A6w%3D&reserved=0


This page is intentionally left blank



 

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL – PROPOSED RECORD OF DECISION 
 

DECISION TO BE TAKEN BY: 

Susan Carey, Cabinet Member for Environment  

   
DECISION NO: 

22/00026 

 

For publication  
 

Key decision: YES  
 
 

Subject Matter / Title of Decision: Heritage Strategy 
 

Decision:  
As Cabinet Member for Environment, I agree to adopt the revised Heritage Conservation Strategy . 
 

Reason(s) for decision: 
In October 2019, the Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee was presented with a report 
setting out the priorities and future direction of the Heritage Conservation Service at Kent County 
Council. Members agreed to establish a Member Working Group to take forward a strategy.  

Cabinet Committee recommendations and other consultation:  
Yes: link to consultation page: https://letstalk.kent.gov.uk/heritage-conservation-strategy  
 
Cabinet Committee consultation planned:   
The draft vision was reported to and endorsed by the Environment and Transport Cabinet 
Committee in January 2021. The consultation draft was reported and endorsed in September 2021. 
 
The final Strategy will be discussed by members at their meeting on 17 March 2022.  

Any alternatives considered and rejected: 
The option of not preparing a Heritage Conservation Strategy was considered but rejected due to 
member and senior management support 

Any interest declared when the decision was taken and any dispensation granted by the 

Proper Officer:  
 
 
 
 

 

 
.........................................................................  .................................................................. 

 signed   date 
   
 

 

Page 63

https://letstalk.kent.gov.uk/heritage-conservation-strategy


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 65



 
 

 
 

Heritage Conservation Strategy  
March 2022 

Contents 
Foreword ........................................................................................................................... 1 

1 Introduction .................................................................................................................... 2 

Legislative and policy background ............................................................................................4 

Proposed Vision and Strategic Aims ....................................................................................... 6 

2 Our Heritage Achievements........................................................................................... 7 

3 Our Opportunities .................................................................................................................... 8 

4 Our Challenges ................................................................................................................... 10 

5 Strategic Aim 1 – Continue to improve the high quality and timely historic environment 

advice provided to KCC, local authorities and other bodies involved in growth and change 

based on accessible and up to date information and understanding ................................... 13 

Archaeology and development ............................................................................................ 13 

Historic built environment advice ....................................................................................... 133 

The Kent Historic Environment Record ............................................................................. 14 

6 Strategic Aim 2 - Ensure, working with new and existing partners, that KCC’s historic 

assets are conserved, enhanced, enjoyed and valued by Kent’s residents and visitors..... 15 

KCC-owned heritage assets .................................................................................................. 15 

Windmills ...................................................................................................................................  166 

Archaeological archives ......................................................................................................... 18 

7 Strategic Aim 3 - Increase awareness, knowledge and understanding of Kent’s rich 

heritage and increase involvement in heritage activities amongst its local communities.... 20 

Community archaeology ........................................................................................................ 20 

Metal detecting searching and chance discoveries ........................................................ 22 

Supporting the development of robust heritage strategies .......................................... 244 

8 Strategic Aim 4 - Work towards the service becoming more financially self-sustaining  255 

Benchmarking and resourcing ............................................................................................. 255 

9 Strategic Aim 5 - Contribute to KCC’s action to address the Climate Emergency ......... 26 

9 Our objectives at a glance ...................................................................................................... 277 

10 How we will deliver this strategy – our medium-term plan ...................................... 299 

 

 

Page 66



1 
 

Foreword       
 

Kent is blessed with a rich and varied historic environment. Our heritage assets 
range from the internationally important Canterbury Cathedral and Swanscombe 
Skull Site to undesignated street furniture or forgotten Anderson shelters in people’s 
gardens, and in date from the Palaeolithic to the Cold War period. All of these assets 
whether designated or not add character and time-depth to our landscapes and 
towns and reveal the lived experiences of former residents. 

 
Kent faces unprecedented growth but major development pressure also gives rise 
to fantastic archaeological discoveries. In my own Elham Valley Division the works 
for the High Speed 1 Rail Link uncovered prehistoric and Anglo-Saxon finds 
including a beautiful composite disc brooch now known as the Saltwood brooch. The 
people who occupied the land regarded the local barrows as important features in 
their landscape even though they were not descendants of those who had lived 
there.  

 
This seems to me to point to a truth that still exists. The people who lived in Kent 
before us may not have been our blood ancestors but in a very real sense they are 
nevertheless our ancestors. The heritage they left has shaped our landscape, our 
language and our culture. This is our heritage, whether we’ve lived in Kent all our 
lives or just moved here. It is something we can all share and something we should 
all value and help care for. 

 
Kent County Council has a key strategic role in helping to safeguard, manage and 
make accessible our heritage for present and future generations. I’m delighted to be 
supported in my responsibility for this strategy by my fellow Kent County Councillor 
Alan Ridgers, KCC’s Heritage Champion. Together with the support of KCC’s 
small but excellent team of specialists we are working to deliver the objectives set 
out in this strategy. 

 

 
 
Susan Carey 
Kent County Council Cabinet Member for Environment 
 

Page 67



2 
 

1 Introduction 
 

1.1 This strategy sets out a vision for the future direction of Kent County Council’s 

approach to heritage conservation as implemented by the Heritage Conservation 

Service. It presents the context within which KCC operates, our strategic aims and 

objectives for the service, and the means by which we propose these will be 

delivered.  Public consultation on the strategy was undertaken in autumn 2021. The 

strategy will be reviewed and updated annually. 

 

 

 

 

1.2 Our heritage can be defined as “all that has been passed to us by previous 

generations. It is all around us. It is in the houses we live in, our places of work, the 

transport we use, our places of worship, our parks and gardens, the places we go to 

for our sport and social life, in the ground beneath our feet, in the shape of our 

landscape and in the placing and arrangement of our fields, villages, towns and 

cities. Heritage is also found in our moveable possessions, from our national 

treasures in our museums, to our own family heirlooms, and in the intangible such as 

our history, traditions, legends and language.” (Historic England 

https://historicengland.org.uk/advice/hpg/generalintro/heritage-conservation-

defined/). The aspect of heritage primarily dealt with by the County Council’s 

Figure 1 Canterbury World Heritage Site (Courtesy of Chapter of 
Canterbury Cathedral  David King Photographer) 

Page 68

https://historicengland.org.uk/advice/hpg/generalintro/heritage-conservation-defined/
https://historicengland.org.uk/advice/hpg/generalintro/heritage-conservation-defined/


3 
 

Heritage Conservation Service is the historic environment which is defined in the 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) as “All aspects of the environment 

resulting from the interaction between people and places through time, including all 

surviving physical remains of past human activity, whether visible, buried or 

submerged, and landscaped and planted or managed flora”. 

In order to manage our heritage effectively and pragmatically we need to understand 

its significance and agree policies to guide decision-making. 

 
1.3 Kent, named after the Roman term for its Iron Age inhabitants “the Cantiaci”, has 

an extremely rich and varied heritage (also known as the historic environment). In 

such a lowland county the physical environment is substantially the product of 

human activity, shaped by agriculture, industry, and settlement over the millennia, 

including reclaimed marshland, grazed downs, and managed woodland. Kent has 

featured prominently in the history of England and its close proximity to the 

continental mainland has resulted in it having a special place in our understanding of 

how England has related to Europe since prehistoric times, which continues to the 

present day. Heritage assets within the county range from the internationally 

important, such as the Swanscombe Skull site (the oldest such remains found in 

Britain), Canterbury Cathedral and St Augustine’s Abbey World Heritage Site and 

Dover Castle (known as the ‘key to the kingdom’), to undesignated milestones or 

historic lamp posts. All of these assets whether designated or not add character to 

our landscapes and towns and reveal the lived experiences of former residents of 

Kent. For some periods of our past, before written records were routinely kept, and 

for people who are underrepresented in recorded history, material culture is the only 

means of understanding how people lived and changed the environment around 

them. 

1.4 Natural erosion and ploughing and other agricultural processes can harm 

archaeological sites and historic landscapes, but conservation is possible through 

sensitive management, often delivered through environmental stewardship 

agreements. Kent’s growth agenda gives rise to major development pressure but 

also fantastic archaeological discoveries and opportunities to conserve outstanding 

historic buildings. Careful management of this often fragile and vulnerable resource 

is needed and opportunities for heritage-led regeneration and development-related 

benefits for heritage assets must be seized. The character of Kent’s historic 

environment can contribute greatly to the development of Kent’s sense of place and 

identity to underpin successful growth, and forms an important resource for 

education, leisure, and tourism. KCC’s Heritage Conservation Service has a key 

strategic role in helping to safeguard, manage and make accessible this heritage for 

present and future generations. 

 

 

 

Page 69



4 
 

World Heritage Site 1 

Scheduled Monuments 352 

Listed Buildings 17,342 

Registered Park and Gardens 61 

Conservation Areas 503 

Historic Parks and Gardens 407 

Historic Environment Record monuments 87,612 

Table 1 Table showing designated and non-designated heritage assets in Kent. 

 

1.5 KCC has a key role to play in the conservation of Kent’s heritage but we are far 

from the only actor. Historic England is the government’s statutory advisor on the 

historic environment; it is responsible for identifying and designating heritage assets 

of national significance and manages change at such sites.  It also supports local 

partners with specialist advice and guidance. Local authorities are responsible for 

implementing planning law and policy. KCC’s Heritage Conservation Service advises 

Kent local authorities on the impact of development proposals on Kent’s heritage 

(primarily on archaeological and landscape matters). Local planning authorities also 

designate and manage Conservation Areas and develop heritage management 

policies and strategies in their Local Plans. Landowners and householders manage 

their own heritage assets in accordance with national legislation and national and 

local policies. A host of community groups support the conservation of Kent’s 

heritage with projects and initiatives of their own.  

1.6 Within this network of stakeholders and partners, KCC’s main role is to manage 

heritage assets in our ownership, provide an advice service to other stakeholders (in 

particular local planning authorities), manage the Historic Environment Record 

(HER) - the main strategic information resource for Kent’s historic environment and 

help the wider community access and enjoy Kent's heritage through a range of 

community initiatives. 

  

Legislative and policy background 
 

1.7 The Heritage Conservation Service operates within conventions, legislation and 

policy at international, national and local levels. 

 The UK is a signatory of the 1992 Valletta Treaty (European Convention on 
the Protection of the Archaeological Heritage (Revised), which aims to protect 
European archaeological heritage. 

 The work of the service is carried out within the general legislative framework 
of the UK. The main relevant legislation covering the team’s historic 
environment advice and the management of KCC’s own heritage assets is the 

Page 70



5 
 

Town and Country Planning Act 1990, the Planning (Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990, the Ancient Monuments and Archaeological 
Areas Act 1979, the Protection of Wrecks Act 1973 and the Protection of 
Military Remains Act 1986. Its work in relation to the Treasure process is 
covered by the Treasure Act 1996.  

   Work carried out at the windmills is also covered by the Health and Safety at 
Work Act 1974. 

 The team operates under the National Planning Policy Framework (updated 
2021) and in particular chapter 16 ‘Conserving and enhancing the historic 
environment’ and the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact 
Assessment) Regulations 2017. 

1.8 At the time of preparing this Strategy, Kent County Council is engaged in a 
Strategic Reset – a re-evaluation of its services in light of the COVID-19 crisis. The 
Reset will connect better what is already going on across KCC, identify priority 
projects that need to be connected to maximize impact, and shape the organisation 
through its people, technology and infrastructure to deliver its ambitions. 

The Reset includes the following Shared Ambitions which have informed preparation 

and will inform delivery of the Heritage Conservation Strategy: 

Service delivery and improving the experience of residents and service users: 

Serve our residents. We listen to our residents’ feedback and use their insight 
to design, deliver and invest in our services. 
Work together with and for our communities. We are clear about KCC's 
community leadership role, understanding and responding to the diversity and 
needs of our different communities. 
Deliver services to be proud of. We use our services as a combined force to 
face our big challenges and maximise our impact. 
 

How we operate and the tools we need to keep improving: 

Empower our staff and leadership. Everyone is equipped, trusted and 
supported to use their talents and skills to deliver the best outcomes for Kent. 
Make the most of our assets and commercial opportunities. We use our 
assets to their maximum potential, making sure that they work together and 
support us to serve our residents.  
Think digital-first and maximise our data. We use our existing and future 
investment in digital and technology infrastructure to design and create 
solutions that make residents’ lives better and easier. 

 

 

Page 71



6 
 

 

Figure 2 Volunteers excavating Randall Manor medieval manor house within Shorne Woods Country Park 

 

Proposed Vision and Strategic Aims 
 

1.9 The proposed Vision for Heritage Conservation is to: 

Realise the substantial benefits and opportunities of Kent’s rich heritage 

through its conservation, enhancement, and enjoyment by all.   

1.10 Underpinning this are five proposed Strategic Aims: 

Strategic Aim 1 - Continue to improve the high quality and timely historic 
environment advice, based on accessible and up to date information and 
understanding, provided to KCC, local authorities and other bodies involved in 
growth and change. 
 
Strategic Aim 2 - Ensure, working with new and existing partners, that KCC’s 
historic assets are conserved, enhanced, enjoyed and valued by Kent’s 
residents and visitors. 
 
Strategic Aim 3 - Increase awareness, knowledge and understanding of Kent’s 
rich heritage and increase involvement in heritage activities amongst its local 
communities . 
 
Strategic Aim 4 - Work towards the service becoming more financially self-
sustaining. 
 
Strategic Aim 5 – contribute to KCC’s action to address the Climate 
Emergency. 

Page 72



7 
 

 

1.11 In order to further the Strategic Aims, each is accompanied by Objectives. In 

several cases the objectives relate to more than one Aim, so they have been placed 

under one aim with cross references to the others where relevant. 

 

2 Our Heritage Achievements 
 

2.1 Achievements of the Heritage Conservation service include: 

Completion of the Dover Heritage Strategy (winner of RTPI South East award 

for Excellence in Planning for Built Heritage), used by DDC to help secure 

£4.27 million NLHF funding,  

Completion of the consultation draft of the Folkestone and Hythe Heritage 

Strategy, 

Dover Urban Archaeological Database and archaeological characterisation 

completed and highly praised as excellent by Historic England,  

An innovative Archaeological Notification Areas project, which will help 

developers and planners by providing information up front and digitally, 

notification area datasets now delivered to seven Local Planning Authorities,  

Continuing to deliver archaeological advice service to planners and developers 

as construction continues at pace including development of protocols to enable 

site visits during COVID,  

Delivering community archaeology programmes in innovative ways and 

modelling good practice for local groups,  

Substantial capital works undertaken at KCC’s historic windmills, 

Successful recent Historic England audit of the Historic Environment Record 

(HER). 

Page 73



8 
 

 

Figure 3 Heritage Conservation officer monitoring Lower Thames Crossing fieldwork during the Covid lockdown 2021 
(Oxford Archaeology) 

 

3 Our Opportunities 
 

3.1 The historic environment in Kent offers a great resource for sustaining and 

enhancing the quality of life in the county. Heritage can  inspire the regeneration of 

an area, complementing and supporting economic development. This can help 

produce higher quality and more sustainable development that is successfully 

integrated into the life of the county. The historic environment can also play a key 

role in social regeneration, well-being and in Kent’s arts and cultural scene. 

3.2 Key opportunities offered by Kent’s heritage include: 

Creating a sense of place. Whether in an urban or rural environment, the 

historic environment creates a ‘sense of place’. The buildings, open spaces, 

historic features and patterns of roads and lanes are what ultimately define the 

character of settlements. It is therefore important that any change is sensitive to 

this character, adding to and developing distinctiveness rather than diminishing 

it and creating uniformity or blandness. The historic environment can hold 

meanings and memories for a community that go beyond the architectural, 

archaeological or historical importance of designated assets. 

Re-use of heritage assets. Re-using existing heritage assets (most commonly 

historic buildings) can provide an effective way to retain historic character while 

conserving building resources and achieving sustainability. Guidance (see 4.2 

below) demonstrates that historic structures, settlements and landscapes can in 

fact be more resilient in the face of climate change, and more energy efficient 

than more modern structures and settlements. This has also been considered 

Page 74



9 
 

in the Historic England report ‘There’s no Place Like Old Homes : re-use and 

Recycle to Reduce Carbon’ (Historic England 2019). 

 

 

Figure 4 Visitors enjoying the Tudor castle at Deal (English Heritage) 

 

Attracting business and commercial activities. Heritage and a historic 

sense of place help to attract investment, businesses and commercial activity. 

Research quoted by Heritage Counts 2016 found that of 100 businesses 

surveyed one in four agreed that the historic environment is an important factor 

in deciding where to locate and was as important as road access. Research by 

the Heritage Lottery Fund in 2013 confirmed that innovative new businesses 

flourish in places that possess a good stock of historic distinctive buildings 

(https://www.heritagefund.org.uk/sites/default/files/media/research/new_ideas_

old_buildings_2013.pdf). It also found that independent retail and leisure 

businesses seek to cluster in historic areas of towns and cities thereby adding 

to the distinctive sense of place and attracting more successful businesses. 

The HLF also found that businesses which occupy listed buildings generate 

£13,000 extra Gross Valued Added per business per year. Creative and cultural 

industries are particularly attracted to historic buildings because they are 

smaller, more flexible and cost-effective: they are 29% more likely to be found 

in a Listed Building than in a non-listed building (Heritage Counts 2016 and 

HLF 2013). 

Adding value to new development. Heritage-led regeneration adds value to 

development projects. It is striking that in most towns it is the heritage-led 

developments that are among the most prestigious and financially valuable 

(Dover Heritage Strategy 2013). 

In areas that had received investment in the historic environment, 

approximately one in five visitors in a survey of 1,000 stated they spent more in 

an area after investment in the historic environment than they did before. One 

in four businesses stated that the historic environment investment had directly 

led to an increase in business turnover (AMION and Locum Consulting 2010) 

Page 75

https://www.heritagefund.org.uk/sites/default/files/media/research/new_ideas_old_buildings_2013.pdf
https://www.heritagefund.org.uk/sites/default/files/media/research/new_ideas_old_buildings_2013.pdf


10 
 

Durability of regeneration. Where new development is effectively integrated 

into existing settlement, by complementing existing character and materials, it 

is likely to prove more economically and socially durable. Retaining existing 

buildings among new build breaks up monotony and can permit a wider range 

of occupiers; retaining historic features helps connect older people with the new 

community by providing reference points in space and memory. 

Heritage contribution to the economy. In the year before the COVID-19 

pandemic the heritage sector directly or indirectly supported more than 89,000 

jobs in south-east England. Heritage employment grew almost twice as fast as 

the rest of the economy between 2011 and 2019. England’s heritage sector 

generated a GVA greater than the security industry, defence industry, 

aerospace industry and the arts and culture industry in the UK (Source: Historic 

England). 

The role of tourism in Kent's economy. The tourism industry is an important 

sector providing 67,000 jobs and contributing over £1.4 billion to the Kent 

economy (Kent County Council 2020). 

Heritage tourism generates benefits in the local economy (Historic England 

2016). A TNS study estimates that 32 per cent (£15.3bn) of the average annual 

spend from domestic and international tourism in the UK between 2011 and 

2014 is attributable to activities broadly defined as heritage-related activities 

(TNS 2015). 

 Visiting heritage generates money for the local economy – for every £1 spent 

as part of a heritage visit, 32p is spent on site and the remaining 68p is spent in 

local businesses: restaurants, cafés, hotels and shops (HLF 2010)  

Improved public health and well-being. The link between heritage and well-

being is now well established (e.g. ‘Wellbeing and the Historic Environment, 

Historic England 2018). There is presently an ongoing shift from an acute and 

hospital-centred, illness-based system to a person-centric, health-based 

system that will rely upon individual and community assets. As such, heritage 

can play an important role in the contribution of the arts to person-centred, 

place-based care through means such as arts-on-prescription activities, cultural 

venues and community programmes. The historic environment, archaeology 

and heritage form part of our experience of being human and can provide 

individual as well as collective opportunities to engage with arts and culture 

whilst having positive effects on our physical and mental health and wellbeing 

in the process. 

 

4 Our Challenges 
 

4.1 Kent’s heritage is vulnerable in a number of different ways. Some of these are a 

result of natural processes but most are due to human action or inaction. The 

Page 76



11 
 

vulnerability of an asset is not only related to direct impacts  but also to actions that 

affect the setting of the asset.  

4.2 Key challenges facing Kent’s historic environment include: 

 

Figure 5 Chillenden windmill, blown down in 2003, now re-built 

 

Natural Processes. Heritage assets can be highly vulnerable to coastal 

erosion as many were specifically located for their access to the sea e.g. sea 

defences, military sites or quays and ‘hards’ for landing boats. The vulnerability 

can be in the form of direct erosion of the monument or the burying of the 

monument by material deposition. Sea level change leading to inundation or 

salt level changes also threatens heritage assets as do changes in hydrology.  

Climate change The effect of humans on the environment can be traced over 

millennia but the unprecedented rate of recent change will inevitably impact on 

Kent’s heritage with increased flash flooding, sea-level rise, rapid soaking and 

drying of waterlogged deposits, wind and lightning strikes impacting our fragile 

historic structures. Historic England has produced guidance (‘Climate Change 

and the Historic Environment’, 2008) that reviews the threats to the historic 

environment posed by climate change. More recent guidance can also be found 

in ‘Climate Change Adaptation Report’ (Historic England, 2016). Assessment of 

the impacts of climate change on Kent’s heritage assets will be needed. 

Rural activities. A range of rural activities have the potential to impact on 

heritage assets including ploughing (especially deep ploughing), machinery 

Page 77



12 
 

movement, changes in the local farming regime (e.g. a change from pasture to 

arable cultivation, removal of hedgerows or construction of new infrastructure). 

The increased leisure use of the countryside can also damage heritage sites, 

particularly when this involves increased vehicle access (e.g. mountain biking, 

motorbikes or off-road vehicles). 

New infrastructure. The increasing population of Kent and the new 

development required to house it requires ever more support in the form of 

pipelines and sewers, roads, rail, power and water infrastructure. The impact of 

this on the historic environment will be assessed and mitigated and a balance 

sought between essential construction and conservation of important assets. 

Development. The greatest impact on Kent’s heritage arises from new 

development. KCC estimates that between 2019 and 2039 approximately 

225,000 new dwellings will be built in Kent and Medway. In addition to this, 

commercial, leisure, minerals and waste and other development must be 

considered. Construction activities can directly affect buried archaeological 

remains through the excavation of new foundations, services, remodelling of 

land, removal of topsoil in advance of development, piling works and from the 

operation of plant. Permitted development rights have the further potential for 

un-noticed impacts on heritage assets. 

 

 

Figure 6 Placed deposits of animal bones, including cattle skulls, in the ditch 
of the Ramsgate causewayed enclosure 

Page 78



13 
 

Policy weaknesses and changes. Current approaches to protecting heritage 

concentrate on nationally important assets meaning that regionally or locally 

important assets can remain vulnerable. At the time of writing this strategy, 

planning reforms have been proposed that may leave Kent’s heritage more 

vulnerable, due to a process of zoning land that may not have been assessed 

for its heritage potential. It is important that local people continue to be involved 

in decision-making and that a strong evidence base informs any zoning of land. 

Crime. Heritage assets are vulnerable to a range of types of criminal activity 

including arson, theft by metal detecting (known as ‘night-hawking’), vandalism 

and graffiti, trespass and anti-social activities.  

 

5 Strategic Aim 1 – Continue to improve the high quality and 

timely historic environment advice provided to KCC, local 

authorities and other bodies involved in growth and change 

based on accessible and up to date information and 

understanding. 
 

Archaeology and development 
 

5.1 Through its Archaeology and Development team, Heritage Conservation 

provides archaeological advice services to all of Kent’s Local Planning Authorities 

(LPAs) including Medway Council and Ebbsfleet Development Corporation, via 

Service Level Agreements (SLAs).  

5.2 The Archaeology and Development team carries out more than 2,000 appraisals 

each year. Most of these are for planning applications and many require ongoing 

archaeological support. In addition, the team provides heritage support to Nationally 

Significant Infrastructure Projects (NSIPs) and ‘Garden Town’ developments, and on 

local plan allocations. Monitoring the standard of archaeological work on 

development sites can be a time-consuming element of the process. 

Objective 1. Continue to provide an archaeological service to Kent’s planning 

authorities, developers and householders [also Strategic Aim 3] 

Objective 2. Explore and determine the potential for requiring archaeological 

contractors who undertake archaeological assessments or fieldwork on KCC 

development-related projects to be Registered Archaeological Organisations 

 

Historic built environment advice 

5.3 As most districts have their own Conservation Officer covering built heritage, the 

Heritage Conservation Service provides advice on the historic built environment only 

Page 79



14 
 

to the County Council. The KCC Conservation Officer advises on key strategic 

infrastructure projects and developments relating to school buildings to ensure that 

heritage assets are protected and enhanced where possible. This advice is most 

effective when given at an early stage in the design process. 

Objective 3. Continue to provide a historic built environment advice service on 

County Council and strategic matters in Kent. [also Strategic Aim 3] 

 

The Kent Historic Environment Record 

5.4 The Kent Historic Environment Record (HER) is a database of almost 90,000 

heritage assets and features in Kent linked to a GIS mapping system. It includes 

designated assets such as Listed Buildings and Scheduled Monuments as well as 

non-designated assets such as archaeological sites, historic non-listed buildings, 

parks, and gardens etc. It is used for development management, research, 

education, and tourism purposes. The HER (formerly known as the Sites and 

Monuments Record before historic buildings were added to the record) was formally 

adopted by KCC in 1995.  

5.5 The HER is identified in the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) as the 

prime source of heritage information. The Kent HER is the only HER for the whole 

county and is used by all local authorities, Medway Council and Ebbsfleet 

Development Corporation.  

Objective 4: Continue to maintain and enhance the Kent HER, to meet the 

requirements of the NPPF and underpin decision-making in planning and 

development management. [also Strategic Aim 2, Strategic Aim 3] 

 

Case Study: The Kent Historic Environment Record (HER) 

The Kent HER is a database of almost 90,000 historic buildings, 

archaeological sites and discoveries and landscapes across Kent. It 

contains discoveries dating from the Palaeolithic period (up to 1m years 

ago) to the Cold War and is used by researchers, developers, 

community projects and the public to learn more about Kent’s 

outstanding heritage. It is available to view online at 

www.kent.gov.uk/HER where it is accompanied by historic maps and 

aerial photographs as well as pages on different themes in Kent’s past, 

some written by the HER volunteer team. During the COVID 2020 

lockdown period, the website had 176,000 page views – its highest ever 

and another 103,000 via the Heritage Gateway. 

 

Page 80

http://www.kent.gov.uk/HER


15 
 

 

 

 

6 Strategic Aim 2 - Ensure, working with new and existing 

partners, that KCC’s historic assets are conserved, enhanced, 

enjoyed and valued by Kent’s residents and visitors.  
 

KCC-owned heritage assets 
 

6.1 Kent County Council owns and is responsible for a large number of diverse 

heritage assets including historic school buildings, archaeological monuments, 

milestones, war memorials and historic street paving. These play a vital role in the 

character of Kent. Information about the important heritage assets which KCC owns 

is spread amongst several databases (HER, K2 and Highways service owned) and 

the assets are under day-to-day management of different parts of the County 

Council. Information on the location and significance of heritage assets is not always 

available to relevant KCC officers or contractors and it is possible for heritage assets 

to be accidentally damaged. We will work with other departments in KCC to 

coordinate information on heritage assets and increase awareness of this fragile 

resource.  

6.2 The Kent Highways Heritage Protocol is a document jointly produced by KCC 

Heritage Conservation and Highways officers, the Kent Conservation Officers Group, 

and Kent Design. Originally adopted in 2001, it was updated in 2011 and is currently 

being revised. It looks beyond the statutory requirement to conserve individual 

assets to consider Heritage Sensitive Situations, defined as buildings, monuments, 

sites, places, areas or landscapes positively identified as having a degree of 

significance meriting consideration in planning decisions. It is thus a source of 

guidance for Kent’s Highways officers, developers, and others engaged in designing 

and maintaining Kent’s current and future highway assets. 

Page 81



16 
 

Kent County Council’s approach to managing the county’s highway network is set 

out in its Highways Asset Management Plan (HAMP). This includes, at Action 1.17, 

Completing work with district conservation teams to refine and finalise the Kent 

Highways Heritage Protocol, to ensure that we strike the right balance between 

conservation, affordability, lifecycle cost and future maintainability considerations in 

highway maintenance. In addition, the recently-introduced Technical Approval 

Process referenced in the HAMP applies the same principles to new and renewed 

highway assets. 

Objective 5: Work across KCC to coordinate information on heritage assets 

and finalise the Kent Highways Heritage protocol. 

 

Windmills 

6.3 Kent County Council owns and is responsible for the preservation of eight 

historic windmills which are exceptional in terms of their high listing grades, their 

historic and regional significance, their architectural and technological excellence, 

and their mechanical completeness. 

Location, Name Type Constructed Designation Date listed Acquired 

by KCC 

Chillenden Mill Post 1868 (rebuilt 

2005) 

Grade II* 11/10/1963 1958 

Cranbrook, 

Union Mill 

Smock 1814 Grade I 09/06/1952 1960 

Herne Mill Smock Inscribed 

1789 

Grade I 29/09/1951 1984 

Margate, Drapers 

Mill 

Smock 1845 Grade II 22/02/1973 1968 

Meopham Mill 

 

Smock c1819 Grade II* 22/08/1952 1958 

Stelling Minnis, 

Davison’s Mill 

Smock 1866 Grade I 29/12/1966 1970 

West Kingsdown 

Mill 

Smock 1805? 

Moved here 

1880 

Grade II 01/06/1967 1958 

Wittersham, 

Stocks Mill 

Post Inscribed 

1781 

Grade II 04/06/1952 1979 

 

Page 82



17 
 

6.4 Kent County Council’s approach to the management of its windmills is set out 

below: 

 To maintain in full working order those mills that are in the best 
condition. 

 To make all eight mills weatherproof and watertight so that those which 
are incomplete can be returned to working order over the long term, as 
funds become available. 

 To keep those that are visually complete in an intact condition for as long 
as possible. 

 To ensure all the windmills and their sites are made safe for the visiting 
public, adjacent residents, passers-by, and the volunteer teams and 
members of staff who use them. 

 

Case Study: Windmills conservation programme 

 

The Kent Windmills Programme was developed in 2019 to weatherproof and 

safeguard the eight historic windmills owned by Kent County Council. Each 

windmill is managed by a locally based team of volunteers who ensure the 

buildings are accessible to visitors during the spring and summer months. In 2020, 

KCC’s capital works programme funded a comprehensive scheme of repairs at 

West Kingsdown Mill which was featured on ITV Meridian News in March 2021. 

Page 83



18 
 

 

 

6.5 Four of the mills are ‘active’ in that their sweeps and fantails turn regularly, and 

four are ‘static’ with no regularly working parts. The active mills are Union Mill, 

Cranbrook; Drapers Mill, Margate; Chillenden Mill and Stelling Minnis Mill. The static 

mills are Herne; Wittersham; Meopham and West Kingsdown. 

6.6 A management approach of stabilisation has been implemented very 

successfully. Management of the mills is only possible with the help of many 

volunteers in the windmill groups who assist with maintenance tasks and open the 

mills to the public. 

 

Objective 6: Follow a management approach to KCC-owned windmills, so that: 

i) Mills capable of milling flour (Drapers Mill, Margate, and Cranbrook 
Mill) remain able to do so.  

ii) The weatherproofing programme will be undertaken as needed on 
a rolling cycle. 

iii) Static mills will be returned to visual completeness subject to 
funding 

iv) Static mills will be made active wherever possible.  
[also Strategic Aim 3] 

Objective 7: KCC’s relationship with the windmill volunteer groups will be 

strengthened. [also Strategic Aim 3] 

Objective 8: Explore alternative funding mechanisms for the windmills, 

including setting up a charitable Trust to oversee management, and develop a 

funding strategy. [also SA3] 

 

Archaeological archives 
 

6.7 Archaeological archives are produced during archaeological fieldwork. They 

consist of a small sample of the material that was recovered – the pottery, 

metalwork, stone, bone, environmental samples and so on – and are retained 

permanently to act as a resource for further research. The research may be carried 

out to check the conclusions of the original excavators or to research new aspects of 

archaeology that were not considered during the original project. They include 

important objects which would be displayed in museums or galleries. 

Repair works in progress include the construction of a new reefing stage at 

Meopham Green Mill, supported by a £25,000 grant from Historic England’s Heritage 

at Risk Emergency Fund. KCC’s capital programme is funding major repairs at 

Cranbrook’s Grade I listed Union Windmill (see image), involving the construction 

of a new 8-bladed fantail and four new sweeps. The aim is for Cranbrook Mill to be 

capable of milling flour by wind power again by the end of 2021. 

Page 84



19 
 

 

 

6.8 In Kent, most archaeological archives will be generated by projects required as 

part of the development management process, but they will also include community 

excavations. Traditionally, archaeological archives are deposited in museums but in 

Kent almost all the museums are full and will no longer accept them. The archives 

are now therefore mostly retained by the original excavators. 

6.9 KCC is the owner of more than 2,500 boxes of archive material deriving primarily 

from the High Speed 1 Channel Tunnel Rail Link project and has a direct 

responsibility to find a home for them. KCC is also responsible for the long-term 

deposition of archives from KCC road schemes and other development. KCC is keen 

to continue working with partners to develop a solution for all Kent’s archives, as the 

retention and deposition of archaeological archives is regarded as national good 

practice and KCC also requires this in its archaeological specifications. As the main 

archaeological curator for Kent, KCC has a responsibility to help find a solution to the 

archives problem and improve access to information. 

 

Figure 7 Archaeological archives: Roman vessels found during A2 widening 

Page 85



20 
 

6.10 An assessment of archaeological archives has been undertaken – in 2020 this 

consists of approximately 23,000 boxes of material from Kent and Medway (based 

on a detailed 2015 assessment with a multiplier applied for time passed). Options for 

storage and display have been considered. The most cost-effective system (at time 

of writing) available for bulk archives is the Deepstore facility in Cheshire. However, 

conditions there are not currently suitable for specialist materials e.g. metalwork, 

textiles etc. so a separate facility would be needed for these materials. Discussions 

will be held with neighbouring authorities and Kent’s museums and archaeological 

contractors to identify an approach to the specialist store. A project will be developed 

to make information on artefacts available on line including a virtual gallery. 

Objective 9: Assess options for the display and long-term storage of 

archaeological archives and ensure the KCC-held archives are placed in an 

appropriate repository. [also SA3] 

 

7 Strategic Aim 3 - Increase awareness, knowledge and 

understanding of Kent’s rich heritage and increase involvement 

in heritage activities amongst its local communities. 
 

Community archaeology 
 

7.1 Since 2006 the Heritage Conservation team has employed a community 

archaeologist usually through external funding. Highly successful Heritage Lottery 

projects have been carried out at Shorne Woods Country Park (Shorne Heritage 

Project and Shorne HubCAP) and around Cobham (Cobham Landscape Detectives). 

The Community Archaeologist has been involved in a number of other projects 

across the county, some developed through the Heritage Conservation Service and 

some developed by others with the service providing community archaeology 

expertise. These have included: 

 

 Footsteps of Caesar Project – survey and excavation with the University 
of Leicester at Ebbsfleet (Thanet) and Worth. Focused on a site 
discovered on KCC’s East Kent Access Road that is considered to 
connect with the invasion by Caesar.  

 Command of the Heights – community excavation at Fort Amherst, 
Chatham for Medway Council. 

 Rose Hill House – excavation of a 18th to 20th century house in 
Sittingbourne that involved direct participation of more than 300 primary 
school children from the adjacent school (as part of the Woodland 
Wildlife Hidden Histories project).  

 Royal Military Canal – survey works to support advance work for a new 
cycle path with Ashford Borough Council.     

Page 86



21 
 

 Boxley Warren Heritage project – running archaeology activities for the 
project for the Mid Kent Downs Countryside Partnership. 

 Valley of Visions (Medway Valley), Darent Valley and Fifth Continent 
(Romney Marsh) – providing community archaeology support and 
activities for three landscape partnership schemes. 

 Repton pond project at Cobham Hall – survey and excavation of a 
Reptonian pond feature at Cobham Hall, working on behalf of the 
Cobham Hall Heritage Trust 

7.2 There are enormous benefits from community archaeology for participants in 

terms of well-being and health but there are problems in securing sustainable 

funding to facilitate activities. It is also important to realise the public benefit of 

development-led archaeological work through improved information sharing and 

heritage interpretation, including local display of artefacts and public art. Similarly, 

the online HER, well-managed social media channels and publications allow a wide 

range of people to be aware of and contribute to knowledge of Kent’s heritage. 

Case Study: The ‘Fifth Continent’ 

Landscape Partnership Scheme 

Project  

Since 2017 KCC has been 

providing community archaeology 

activities for the ‘Fifth Continent’ 

landscape partnership project, 

managed by the Kent Wildlife 

Trust and supported by the 

National Lottery Heritage Fund. 

Three projects are being carried 

out that involve working with 

volunteers – studying the original 

location of the port of Romney, 

researching the history of 

churches on the Marsh, and 

helping landowners to manage 

their heritage assets. Over 100 

volunteers have taken part in the 

heritage activities which include 

excavation, surveys and research. 

 

 

 

Objective 10: Promote understanding and enjoyment of Kent’s heritage using 

multiple media channels including digital media (the online HER, KCC website 

and social media), print media (publications and press releases), with partners 

and through direct experience (community archaeology) [also Strategic Aim 2] 

Page 87



22 
 

Objective 11: Develop and deliver a community engagement strategy and 

communication plan for the Heritage Conservation team. [also Strategic Aim 2] 

 

Metal detecting searching and chance discoveries 
 

7.3 Since the 1990s, metal detecting has become a widely adopted hobby in 

England. It is covered by the legal requirements of the Treasure Act 1996 

(https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1996/24/contents) and also a voluntary 

recording scheme, the Portable Antiquities Scheme (https://finds.org.uk/). The 

Portable Antiquities Scheme (PAS) is overseen by the British Museum and run by 

Finds Liaison Officers (FLOs), who are hosted mainly by county councils, or county 

museums where they exist. Funding for this service is provided by a grant from the 

British Museum. The service is discretionary in terms of recording finds on the PAS 

database but there is a statutory role, alongside the Coroners service, in relation to 

reporting finds of Treasure under the Treasure Act.  Additionally, in recent years, two 

other collecting hobbies have gained popularity; ‘mudlarking’, where riverine 

foreshore or estuary areas are searched with or without detecting equipment, and 

magnet fishing where magnets are used to collect mostly iron objects from 

waterways. 

 

 

 

Page 88

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1996/24/contents
https://finds.org.uk/


23 
 

 

Figure 8 Objects discovered in Kent (Elham Cross, Matilda of Cornhill seal matrix) and recorded by the KCC finds Liaison 
Officer 

7.4 Such hobbies can foster physical health, engagement with heritage, and in some 

cases provide valuable archaeological information. However, they also provide 

challenges that must be considered. All the hobbies mentioned above risk 

inadvertently, and occasionally deliberately, breaching the requirements of the 

Treasure Act and also legal requirements for access to land, particularly where 

members of the public are not aware of restrictions. Many finds of historical interest 

can go unreported and are sometimes sold. There can also be significant safety 

concerns such as the obstruction of waterways by magnet fishing or the discovery of 

unexploded ordinance (UXO) in the pursuit of artefact recovery. 

7.5 Extensive outreach by archaeologists has taken place over the past three 

decades to help mitigate some of the above, particularly in the fields of best practice 

and recording of objects. The most recent policy document, Code of Practice for 

Responsible Metal Detecting in England and Wales, was published by the PAS in 

2017.  

7.6 For the reasons outlined above it is proposed that metal detecting will only be 

undertaken on KCC owned land as part of an archaeological investigation or to 

search for a specific lost object. KCC should retain ownership of all finds found on its 

property in perpetuity except in certain circumstances (e.g. recent loss of a personal 

possession) which will be set out on the KCC website. 

Page 89

https://finds.org.uk/documents/file/Code-2017.pdf
https://finds.org.uk/documents/file/Code-2017.pdf


24 
 

   Objective 12: Agree and adopt a policy that metal detecting and ‘by eye’ 

searches will only be undertaken on KCC owned land as part of an approved 

project. [also SA2] 

Objective 13: Agree and adopt a policy that KCC should retain ownership of all 

finds found on its property in perpetuity unless special exemptions apply (e.g. 

loss of personal possession). [also SA2] 

Objective 14: Agree and adopt a policy (to be discussed with river and coastal 

authorities) that magnet fishing will not be allowed on KCC owned land. [also 

SA2] 

Objective 15: KCC will work with coastal landowners to consider the benefits of 

a permit system for metal detecting in coastal and riverine foreshore areas. 

 

Supporting the development of robust heritage strategies  
 

7.7 The NPPF guides Local Plans to set out a positive strategy for the conservation 

and enjoyment of the historic environment. The Heritage Conservation Service has 

worked with Dover District Council to produce the Dover District Heritage Strategy, 

which received a Royal Town Planning Institute South East award for planning 

excellence and is recognised by Dover District Council as having brought in millions 

of pounds in investment. A similar draft strategy has been prepared by KCC Heritage 

Conservation for Folkestone and Hythe District Council, and other approaches to 

heritage strategies are being followed by other local authorities such as Swale and 

Tunbridge Wells. Such strategies encourage the use of the historic environment in 

place-making and in seeking opportunities for public benefit and community value in 

development proposals. We will explore with partners whether preparation of a 

county-wide heritage strategy would bring benefits of scale and cost savings. 

 

Objective 16: Explore developing a county level Kent Heritage Strategy to 

assist district authorities who could draw upon it as a framework for their own 

strategies as many issues and themes are commonly held. [also SA1] 

 

Page 90



25 
 

 

 

8 Strategic Aim 4 - Work towards the service becoming more 

financially self-sustaining. 
 

Benchmarking and resourcing 
 

8.1 In 2019, KCC Heritage Conservation carried out a benchmarking survey with 

equivalent teams across the south-east of England. This concluded that i) in 

comparison with other curatorial services KCC Heritage Conservation is 

comparatively under-resourced for both its development management team and its 

Historic Environment Record team and ii) there is scope for increasing income 

generation, particularly by charging for some aspects of the development 

management service and for Priority Searches for HER information. 

 

Case Study: Dover Heritage 

Strategy 

In 2013 (updated in 2020) Dover 

District Council published the 

Dover Heritage Strategy, the result 

of a multi-year collaboration with 

KCC. The strategy was 

commissioned by Dover District 

Council and English Heritage to 

ensure that Dover’s outstanding 

heritage plays its full part in life in 

the District in the future. It 

contains recommendations to 

ensure that decisions are taken 

based on a full understanding of 

the significance of Dover’s 

heritage assets and to help shape 

decision-making. The strategy was 

awarded the RTPI South East 

award for Excellence in Planning 

for Built Heritage) and has been 

used by Dover District Council to 

help secure £4.27 million NLHF 

funding. 

 

Page 91



26 
 

Objective 17. Develop a cost recovery strategy for providing archaeological 

advice to developers for major planning applications and NSIP proposals. [also 

SA1] 

Objective 18. Develop a cost recovery strategy for the creation of HER records 

as a result of development related fieldwork. [also SA1, SA3] 

Objective 19: Determine and secure a funded approach to built historic 

environment advice. [also SA1, SA2] 

Objective 20: Develop a strategy to systematically review and monitor 

progress towards greater financial sustainability. [also SA1, SA2, SA3] 

 

9 Strategic Aim 5 - Contribute to KCC’s action to address the 

Climate Emergency. 
 

9.1 Tackling the climate emergency is a priority for Kent county Council. We have set 
ourselves an ambitious but achievable target - to reach net zero emissions from our 
own KCC estate and our wholly-owned traded companies by 2030. In addition, along 
with all 14 local authorities in Kent and Medway, we have committed to lower 
greenhouse gas emissions to net zero by 2050 at the latest.   
 

Objective 21: Contribute to KCC’s aim to reduce greenhouse gas emissions to net-

zero by 2030 

 
9.2 Working with partners, and subject to funding, we will investigate the likely 
impact of climate change on the county’s heritage assets. We will bring together the 
best current advice on climate change scenarios and identify and quantify the 
possible impacts of these on Kent’s heritage. We will try to establish the likely order 
in which these impacts will present themselves and audit the sensitivity to change of 
heritage asset types. Once this understanding is reached we can then work with 
partners to develop a strategy for managing the impact of climate change on Kent’s 
heritage. 
 

Objective 22: Investigate, with partners, the impact of climate change on the historic 

environment in Kent 

 

 

 

 

Page 92



27 
 

9 Our objectives at a glance  
 

Strategic Aim 1 – Continue to improve the high quality and timely 

historic environment advice provided to KCC, local authorities 

and other bodies involved in growth and change based on 

accessible and up to date information and understanding. 

Objective 1. Continue to provide an archaeological service to Kent’s 

planning authorities, developers and householders [also SA3] 

Objective 2. Explore and determine the potential for requiring 

archaeological contractors who undertake archaeological 

assessments or fieldwork on KCC projects to be Registered 

Archaeological Organisations 

Objective 3.  Continue to provide a historic built environment advice 

service on County Council and strategic matters in Kent . [also SA3] 

Objective 4: Continue to maintain and enhance the Kent HER, to meet 

the requirements of the NPPF and underpin decision-making in 

planning and development management. [also SA2, SA3] 

Strategic Aim 2 - Ensure, working with new and existing partners, 

that KCC’s historic assets are conserved, enhanced, enjoyed and 

valued by Kent’s residents and visitors. 

Objective 5:  Work across KCC to coordinate information on 

heritage assets and finalise the Kent Highways Heritage protocol 

Objective 6: Follow a management approach to KCC-owned 

windmills, so that: i) Mills capable of milling flour remain able to 

do so. ii) The weatherproofing programme will be continued with  

Stelling Minnis Mill as the next key priority within the timeframe 

of this Plan. iii) Static mills will be returned to visual 

completeness as soon as possible iv) Static mills will be made 

active wherever possible [also SA3] 

Objective 7: KCC’s relationship with the windmill volunteer 

groups will be strengthened. [also SA3] 

Objective 8: Explore alternative funding mechanisms for the 

windmills, including setting up a charitable Trust to oversee 

management. [also SA3] 

Objective 9: Assess options for the display and long-term 

storage of archaeological archives and ensure the KCC-held 

archives are placed in an appropriate repository. [also SA3] 

Strategic Aim 3 - Increase awareness, knowledge and 

understanding of Kent’s rich heritage and increase 

involvement in heritage activities amongst its local 

communities. 

 Objective 10: Promote understanding and enjoyment of Kent’s 
heritage using multiple media channels including digital media 
(the online HER, KCC website and social media), print media 
(publications and press releases) and through direct experience 
(community archaeology) [also SA2] 
 
 

P
age 93



28 
 

 

Objective 11: Develop a community engagement strategy and 
communication plan for the Heritage Conservation team. [also 
SA2] 
 
Objective 12: Agree and adopt a policy that metal detecting and 
‘by eye’ searches will only be undertaken on KCC owned land 
as part of an approved project. [also SA2] 
 
Objective 13: Agree and adopt a policy that KCC should retain 
ownership of all finds found on its property in perpetuity unless 
special exemptions apply. [also SA2] 
 
Objective 14: Agree and adopt a policy (to be discussed with 
river and coastal authorities) that magnet fishing will not be 
allowed on KCC owned land. [also SA2] 
 
Objective 15: KCC will work with coastal landowners to consider 
the benefits of a permit system for metal detecting in coastal and 
riverine foreshore areas. 
 
Objective 16: Explore developing a county level Kent Heritage 

Strategy to assist district authorities who could draw upon it as a 

framework for their own strategies as many issues and themes 

are commonly held. [also SA1] 

 

Strategic Aim 4 - Work towards the service becoming more 

financially self-sustaining. 

Objective 17. Develop a cost recovery strategy for providing 
archaeological advice to developers for major planning 
applications and NSIP proposals. [also SA1] 
 
Objective 18. Develop a cost recovery strategy for the creation 
of HER records as a result of development related fieldwork. 
[also SA1, SA3] 
 
Objective 19: Determine and secure a funded approach to built 
historic environment advice. [also SA1, SA2] 
 
Objective 20: Develop a strategy to systematically review and 
monitor progress towards greater financial sustainability. [also 
SA1, SA2, SA3] 
 
Strategic Aim 5 - Contribute to KCC’s action to address the 
Climate Emergency. 
 
Objective 21: Contribute to KCC’s aim to reduce greenhouse 

gas emissions to net-zero by 2030. 

Objective 22: Investigate, with partners, the impact of climate 

change on the historic environment in Kent. 

 

 

P
age 94



29 
 

10 How we will deliver this strategy – our medium-term plan 
 

 

 What (objective) Why (rationale) By When (timescale) What will success look 
like 

Strategic Aim 1 
– Continue to 
improve the high 
quality and timely 
historic 
environment 
advice provided 
to KCC, local 
authorities and 
other bodies 
involved in 
growth and 
change based on 
accessible and 
up to date 
information and 
understanding 

Objective 1. Continue to provide 
an archaeological service to 
Kent’s planning authorities, 
developers and householders 
[also SA3]  
 
Objective 2. Explore and 
determine the potential for 
requiring archaeological 
contractors who undertake 
archaeological assessments or 
fieldwork on KCC projects to be 
Registered Archaeological 
Organisations  
 
Objective 3. Continue to provide 
a historic built environment 
advice service on County 
Council and strategic matters in 
Kent. [also SA3]  
 
Objective 4: Continue to 
maintain and enhance the Kent 
HER, to meet the requirements 

Requirement of NPPF 
and other policy (see 1.7-
1.9) 
 
 
 
Improve standards in 
commercial fieldwork and 
reduce time spent 
commenting on WSIs and 
reports. 
 
 
 
 
Requirement of NPPF 
and other policy (see 1.7-
1.9) 
 
 
 
Requirement of NPPF 
and other policy (see 1.7-
1.9) 

Ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepare report by 
December 2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
Ongoing 
 
 

Targets met; heritage 
protected. 
 
 
 
 
Decision taken. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Targets met; heritage 
protected. 
 
 
 
 
2020 HER Audit Action 
Plan implemented 
according to schedule. 

P
age 95



30 
 

of the NPPF and underpin 
decision-making in planning and 
development management. 
[also SA2, SA3] 

 
 
 
 

 

Strategic Aim 2 
- Ensure, working 
with new and 
existing partners, 
that KCC’s 
historic assets 
are conserved, 
enhanced, 
enjoyed and 
valued by Kent’s 
residents and 
visitors  

Objective 5: Work across KCC 
to coordinate information on 
heritage assets and finalise the 
Kent Highways Heritage 
protocol 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Objective 6: Follow a 
management approach to KCC-
owned windmills, so that: i) Mills 
capable of milling flour - 
Drapers Mill, Margate, and 
Cranbrook Mill - remain able to 
do so. ii) The weatherproofing 
programme will be continued 
with Stelling Minnis Mill as the 
next key priority within the 
timeframe of this Plan. iii) Static 
mills will be returned to visual 
completeness as soon as 
possible. iv) Static mills will be 
made active wherever possible 
[also SA3]. 
 

To conserve heritage 
assets in line with 
statutory requirements 
and good practice, and to 
provide guidance on 
developing designs and 
maintenance solutions 
which balance heritage 
conservation with cost 
and other relevant factors. 
 
To conserve heritage 
assets in line with 
statutory requirements 
and good practice and 
manage them in most 
cost-effective way. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Draft proposal by 
March 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Heritage assets 
conserved and 
managed effectively. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Heritage assets 
conserved and 
managed effectively. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 96



31 
 

Objective 7: KCC’s relationship 
with the windmill volunteer 
groups will be strengthened. 
[also SA3]  
 
 
Objective 8: Explore alternative 
funding mechanisms for the 
windmills, including setting up a 
charitable Trust to oversee 
management. [also SA3]  
 
Objective 9: Assess options for 
the display and long-term 
storage of archaeological 
archives and ensure the KCC-
held archives are placed in an 
appropriate repository. [also 
SA3]  

Volunteer groups 
contribute to heritage 
asset management and 
community is involved. 
 
 
Increase funding available 
for management of the 
mills from other sources.  
 
 
 
To conserve heritage and 
environmental assets for 
the benefit of Kent 
residents. 
Appropriate management 
of heritage assets in line 
with NPPF. 

Ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
Project proposal 
prepared by 
December 2022. 
 
 
 
Options report 
prepared by 
December 2022. 
 
By March 2023 
prepare project plan 
for deposition and 
where appropriate 
display of KCC held 
archaeological 
archives. 
 
KCC held 
archaeological 
archives deposited in 
secure repository by 
December 2023. 
 
Agree plan for Kent 
wide approach to 

Volunteer groups 
involved in day-to-day 
mill management and 
developing future 
approaches. 
 
Increased funding 
available for windmill 
conservation and 
management. 
 
 
Option chosen. 
 
 
 
Plan agreed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Heritage assets 
conserved and 
managed effectively. 
 
 
 
KCC held 
archaeological archives 

P
age 97



32 
 

deposition and 
display of 
archaeological 
archives by March 
2023. 
 

deposited safely and 
retrievable for 
researchers and local 
groups. Significant 
artefacts displayed 
locally. 

Strategic Aim 3 
- Increase 
awareness, 
knowledge and 
understanding of 
Kent’s rich 
heritage and 
increase 
involvement in 
heritage activities 
amongst its local 
communities. 

Objective 10: Promote 
understanding and enjoyment of 
Kent’s heritage using multiple 
media channels including digital 
media (the online HER, KCC 
website and social media), print 
media (publications and press 
releases) and through direct 
experience (community 
archaeology) [also SA2]  
 
Objective 11: Develop a 
Community Engagement 
strategy and Communication 
Plan for the Heritage 
Conservation team. [also SA2].  
 
Objective 12: Agree and adopt 
a policy that metal detecting 
and ‘by eye’ searches will only 
be undertaken on KCC owned 
land as part of an approved 
project. [also SA2]  
 
Objective 13: Agree and adopt 
a policy that KCC should retain 

Increase awareness and 
understanding of Kent’s 
heritage and KCC’s role 
in conserving it.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Increase awareness and 
understanding of Kent’s 
heritage and KCC’s role 
in conserving it. 
 
 
Provide clarity for 
searchers and KCC 
officers. 
 
 
 
 
To conserve heritage 
assets  for the benefit of 

Continue to promote 
heritage through 
multiple media 
channels; see also 
Objective 11 below. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Draft Community 
Engagement strategy 
and Communication 
Plan by March 2023 
 
 
Public consultation 
undertaken and policy 
agreed by March 
2023. 
 
 
 
To be included in 
consultation and 

Increased awareness of 
heritage and KCC’s 
role. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Communication 
strategy prepared and 
agreed. 
 
 
 
Clarification of policy 
and policy acted upon. 
 
 
 
 
 
Heritage assets 
conserved. 

P
age 98



33 
 

ownership of all finds found on 
its property in perpetuity unless 
special exemptions apply. [also 
SA2]  
 
Objective 14: Agree and adopt 
a policy (to be discussed with 
river and coastal authorities) 
that magnet fishing will not be 
allowed on KCC owned land. 
[also SA2]  
 
Objective 15: KCC will work 
with coastal landowners to 
consider the benefits of a permit 
system for metal detecting in 
coastal and riverine foreshore 
areas.  
 
Objective 16: Explore 
developing a county level Kent 
Heritage Strategy to assist 
district authorities who could 
draw upon it as a framework for 
their own strategies as many 
issues and themes are 
commonly held. [also SA1]. 

Kent residents. 
 
 
 
 
Conservation of heritage 
assets and Health & 
Safety considerations. 
 
 
 
 
Provide clarity for 
searchers and KCC 
officers. 
 
 
 
 
Requirement of NPPF 
and other policy (see 1.7-
1.9) 
 
To ensure a strategic 
approach to heritage 
conservation across the 
county 
 

policy for Objective 
12. 
 
 
 
To be included in 
policy for Objective 
12. 
 
 
 
 
Report prepared by 
December 2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
Develop project 
outline & seek 
resources by March 
2023 

 
 
 
 
 
Heritage assets are 
conserved and public 
safety maintained. 
 
 
 
 
Public consultation 
undertaken and policy 
agreed. 
 
 
 
 
Project outline prepared 
and decision taken as 
to whether to proceed. 
 

Strategic Aim 4 
- Work towards 
the service 
becoming more 

Objective 17. Develop a cost 
recovery strategy for providing 
archaeological advice to 
developers for major planning 

To improve sustainability 
of service and provide 
stability in capacity to 
meet service 

Develop draft strategy 
and undertake 
stakeholder 
consultation by March 

Heritage Conservation 
service is more 
financially sustainable 
and stability of capacity 

P
age 99



34 
 

financially self-
sustaining 

applications and NSIP 
proposals. [also SA1] 
 
Objective 18. Develop a cost 
recovery strategy for the 
creation of HER records as a 
result of development related 
fieldwork. [also SA1, SA3].  
 
Objective 19: Determine and 
secure a funded approach to 
built historic environment 
advice. [also SA1, SA2] 
 
 
Objective 20: Develop a 
strategy to systematically 
review and monitor progress 
towards greater financial 
sustainability. [also SA1, SA2, 
SA3] 

commitments. 
 
 
To improve sustainability 
of service and provide 
stability in capacity to 
meet service 
commitments. 
 
To improve sustainability 
of service and provide 
stability in capacity to 
meet service 
commitments. 
 
To assess effectiveness 
of cost recovery strategy. 

2023. 
 
 
Develop draft strategy 
and undertake 
stakeholder 
consultation by March 
2023. 
 
Develop draft strategy 
by March 2023. 
 
 
 
 
Review strategy by 
December 2023. 

improved. 
 
 
Heritage Conservation 
service is more 
sustainable and Historic 
Environment Record 
backlog is reduced. 
 
Heritage Conservation 
service is more 
sustainable. 
 
 
 
Effectiveness of cost 
recovery strategy is 
assessed and 
improvements made as 
required. 

Strategic Aim 5 
- Contribute to 
KCC’s action to 
address the 
Climate 
Emergency. 
 
 

Objective 21: Contribute to 
KCC’s aim to reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions to 
net-zero by 2030 
 
Objective 22: Investigate, with 
partners, the impact of climate 
change on the historic 
environment in Kent 

To help mitigate the 
effects of the Climate 
Emergency. 
 
 
To provide information to 
help guide decision-
making. 

Prepare draft strategy 
and action plan by 
2024. 
 
 
Prepare, subject to 
funding, draft 
assessment by 2024. 

Strategy prepared 
actions agreed. 
 
 
 
Assessment prepared.  
 
 
 
 

P
age 100



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Kent Heritage  

Conservation Strategy 

kent.gov.uk/heritageconservationstrategy  

Page 101

http://kent.gov.uk/heritageconservationstrategy


This page is intentionally left blank



From:  Susan Carey, Cabinet Member for Environment 
 
                         Derek Murphy, Cabinet Member for Economic Development  
    
   Simon Jones, Corporate Director, Growth, Environment and 

Transport   
 

To:   Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee – 17 March 2022 
 
   Growth, Economic Development and Communities Cabinet 

Committee – 22 March 2022 
 
Subject:  Green Economy - Prospects and Opportunities 
                          
Classification: Unrestricted  

 
Past Pathway of report:  N/A  
 
Future Pathway of report: N/A 
 

Electoral Division:  All  
 

Summary: This report provides an overview of the work and progress to date to 
support a more sustainable and lower carbon economy within the county. It outlines 
KCC’s approach and updates on several partnership initiatives working directly with 
businesses to move towards a greener economy within the county.  
 
Recommendation(s):   
The Cabinet Committee is asked to note current and planned activity to support the 
development of the green economy in Kent.  

 
1. Introduction 

  
1.1 Changes in our climate are already affecting Kent and Medway and a resilient 

future depends on us acting now in response to the main climate risks that 
Kent and Medway face, in particular higher temperatures, increased flooding 
and coastal change, more frequent storms and heavy rainfall, drought, and 
soil erosion (Kent and Medway Climate Change Risk and Impact Assessment 
2019). It is crucial that the impacts of climate change are planned for and 
considered alongside other drivers of social, environmental, and economic 
change to reduce the vulnerability of our communities, natural environment, 
and economy to climate change risks. Rising temperature and consequential 
changes in the sea level and weather patterns are an “externality” of economic 
activity, and the public sector has a major role to play in coordinating a 
response that deals with these changes in Kent.  
 

1.2 The United Nations Environment Programme definition of a green economy is 
an economy that is ‘low carbon, resource efficient and socially inclusive.’  
 
In a green economy, growth in employment and income are driven by public 
and private investment into such economic activities, infrastructure and assets 

Page 103

Agenda Item 14



that allow reduced carbon emissions and pollution, enhanced energy, and 
resource efficiency, and prevention of the loss of biodiversity and ecosystem 
services.  
 

1.3 In recent years, Kent’s carbon dioxide emissions have fallen progressively: 
between 2005 and 2019, per capita CO2 emissions fell by around 
50%1.However, the UK’s commitment to achieve ‘net zero’ emissions (over a 
1990 baseline) by 2050 will require further, far-reaching changes in industrial 
processes, transport networks, heating systems and construction. 
Decarbonisation is therefore a structural change that will impact all aspects of 
Kent’s economy, presenting opportunities for the development of new 
technologies and services and challenges for firms that need to adapt.  

 
1.4 The UK Government define clean growth as ‘growing our national economy 

whilst cutting greenhouse emissions,’ whilst ensuring ‘an affordable energy 
supply for business and consumers’. The clean growth sector, therefore, by 
definition, is a sub-sector of the green economy solely focusing on 
decarbonisation and energy or resource efficiency. 
 

2. Defining the ‘clean growth’ opportunity, and measuring its size in Kent 
 

2.1. Although decarbonisation will affect all sectors of the economy, efforts have 
been made to identify those areas of activity that are likely to be at the 
forefront of change, such as those engaged in environmental protection, 
energy production, renewables, and so on.  
 

2.2. This has led to two related definitions of the ‘low carbon’ or ‘clean growth’ 
opportunity. In 2015, a government report defined a ‘Low Carbon and 
Renewable Energy Economy’ (LCREE), which is the main source of official 
data on the size of the ‘sector’. The Office for National Statistics also reports 
on the scale of the Environmental Goods and Services Sector (EGSS).  
 

2.3. Drawing on these two sector definitions, the Clean Growth Southeast report, 
funded by the Southeast Local Enterprise Partnership, was published in 
December 20212. This maps low carbon businesses across the South East 
Local Enterprise Partnership, identifies barriers to and opportunities for 
growth, quantifies the carbon footprint across the region and proposes a pilot 
Clean Growth Programme to support a green economic recovery and 
contribute to the Government’s Net Zero Growth strategy.  
 

2.4. The Clean Growth South East report highlights the potential of low carbon 
growth in Kent. For example:  
 

 There are 58 renewable energy projects in Kent (existing and under 
construction). These total over 700MW of green energy production per 
year. 20 schemes currently in the planning pipeline will add a further 
1000MW of green energy production per year.  

 Nearly 5,200 Kent and Medway businesses were highlighted in this 
report as being part of the clean growth ‘sector’ in 2021, an increase of 957 
from 2015 

                                            
1
 BEIS, UK Local authority and regional carbon dioxide emissions statistics 

2
See Annex 1 for further details of the sector definition. 

Page 104

https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/uk-local-authority-and-regional-carbon-dioxide-emissions-national-statistics-2005-to-2019


 This activity equates to over 37,000 employees and £3.18bn in GVA. For 
comparison, this is roughly equivalent to Kent and Medway’s 
manufacturing sector in employment and output terms and represents 7% 
of the total Kent and Medway GVA originating from the clean growth 
sector3, and approximately 4% of all employees4 in Kent and Medway 
working in the clean growth sector. 

 
2.5. Beyond these headline numbers, it is the supporting of the ‘supply’ of the 

goods and services that we need on our Net Zero journey that will help us 
meet the ever-rising ‘demand’. Simply put, the more capable our local green 
economy is of delivering our own decarbonising ambitions, the stronger and 
more resilient our wider performance will be economically but also from an 
employment, environmental and social perspective. 
 

3. Current Work Activity  
 

Supporting business decarbonisation and business growth  

 

3.1. The County has been leading the way in spearheading promotion of and 
engagement with the Low Carbon and Clean Growth agenda for many years 
under the Low Carbon Kent banner. This aims to support SME demand for 
investment in decarbonisation (increasing business sustainability and reducing 
risk), as well as the supply of new goods and services. The European 
Regional Development Funded Low Carbon Across the South East (LoCASE) 
programme has been running since 2016 and has delivered support for over 
1,400 small and medium enterprises across the South East Local Enterprise 
Partnership region, including over £7.5m in grant funding.  

 

3.2. Waste and the circular economy figure prominently in opportunities for focus 
and employment in the Clean Growth South East report. Already we are 
focussing on these themes through the Interreg Funded Upcycle Your Waste  
and BLUEPRINT projects. The former looks to find novel and viable business 
solutions to challenge the status quo of linear waste streams, having already 
carried out waste surveys on 127 SMEs and spoken to 70 others on barriers 
and opportunities. The aim is to work up pilots across the county to re-use, 
repurpose, re-manufacture and reveal a whole new set of business models. 
BLUEPRINT’s focus on increasing recycling rates and behaviour change 
means its concept was originally about social change, but it delivers economic 
change through exploring, for example, how to develop enduring closed loop 
paper cup recycling and social enterprise training of disadvantaged individuals 
to secure jobs in the circular economy. This aligns with ambitions for refreshed 
local waste and minerals plans as part of circularity in wider infrastructure and 
growth strategies. The outcomes of the Upcycle Your Waste pilots are due to 
be reported in Spring 2022 and will be used to inform the focus of activity for 
the remaining project delivery until July 2023 when the schemes end. 

 

                                            
3
 https://www.kent.gov.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0012/8202/Gross-Value-Added-bulletin.pdf 

This 2021 bulletin reports the GVA statistics from 2019. The total GVA for Kent and Medway in 2019 was £45.211 
bn. 
4
 Nomisweb reports the employee numbers from Jul 20 to Jun 21 for both Kent and Medway. 

https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/1941962885/report.aspx?town=kent#tabempunemp 
And https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/1946157282/report.aspx 

Page 105

https://www.kent.gov.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0012/8202/Gross-Value-Added-bulletin.pdf
https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/1941962885/report.aspx?town=kent#tabempunemp
https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/1946157282/report.aspx


3.3. We have also added the theme of circularity in waste to our Steps to 
Environmental Management (STEM)  accreditation and ensure that all 
businesses engaged (both Kent and beyond, and across any sector, not just 
those within Low Carbon and Renewable Energy) take the chance to think 
about their wider impacts, not just to remain compliant with STEM but also to 
adapt and move towards continuous environmental improvement. It is this 
cross-cutting theme that will lend itself to the added focus coming out of 
COP26 as ‘net zero’ pledges at all levels of our economy seek support to 
benchmark footprints, design action plans and deliver projects to realise this 
‘clean growth’ potential. As such, work has been undertaken by the KCC 
Sustainable Business and Communities team and others in the Kent and 
Medway Climate Change Network (a public sector, officer level group, 
providing support around the delivery of the Kent Environment Strategy, with a 
focus on organisational resource efficiency, environmental sustainability and 
climate change resilience) to link Social Value Key Performance Indicators 
with KCC and borough/district procurement teams in setting minimum 
environmental standard for contractors. Support will be offered to engage and 
involve them to measure and improve their performance, thereby also 
reducing supply chain emissions as a result. 

 

3.4. KCC Business and Enterprise team is leading on the Interreg Funded C-Care 
project as part of the wider covid-response package This includes a key ‘green 
economic recovery’ theme to ensure that we showcase building back better in 
all sectors. In doing so the scheme enables local suppliers of ‘green’ goods 
and services to join a £150K framework for a fully funded (Interreg Channel-
programme-derived) voucher scheme for 100 Small and Medium Enterprises 
(SMEs). The green recovery vouchers will enable the SME to purchase goods 
and services from a framework comprising almost exclusively  of local 
suppliers for energy efficiency measures, waste reduction interventions, 
sustainable transport solutions, biodiversity solutions and 'Net Zero' transition 
planning & feasibility studies. A such, this will be an excellent opportunity for 
KCC’s supply chain to take some small but important steps in the right 
direction for our small and medium sized enterprise community.  

 

3.5. The Kent and Medway Growth Hub is increasingly active in aligning general 
business support and growth with the green economy, assisting the Greater 
South East Energy Hub’s drive to recruit Kent-based installers to domestic 
retrofit schemes. 

 
3.6 On the withdrawal from the European Union, the Government pledged to 

establish a new fund, called the UK Shared Prosperity Fund, which will replace 
European Union structural funds. First details on this Fund were published in 
January 2022 as part of the Government’s Levelling Up paper. The Fund will 
be allocated against investment plans that District and Borough authorities will 
draw up, there is no automatic role for the County Council. There is however 
scope for Districts to include green economy initiatives within their investment 
plans as these are drafted, as two of the three specified themes for these 
investment plans are ‘local businesses’ and ‘people and skills’. Investment 
plans are to be drawn up by summer 2022. Current European Union funding is 
confirmed until April 2023 and therefore, if the roll out of the Shared Prosperity 
Fund is delayed, the team and resource currently dedicated to the majority of 

Page 106



the work highlighted in this paper will be impacted if KCC is unable to invest 
more in terms of base funding for staff.   

 

3.7 In March 2021, the Government launched the UK Community Renewal Fund, 
a one-year pilot scheme to allow communities and businesses to trial new 
approaches and innovative ideas at the local level, ahead of the launch of the 
above UK Shared Prosperity Fund. In the UK Community Renewal Fund 
prospectus, local businesses and organisations were encouraged to submit 
project bids that ‘Support decarbonisation measures – for example 
encouraging local businesses and organisations to reduce greenhouse gases 
through investment in new technology or energy efficiency measures that can 
have bottom line benefits and improve business productivity’. KCC officers 
promoted the opportunity to bid across business, university, college, and 
voluntary and community sector networks. 

 
3.8 In November 2021, the Government announced that the following two Kent-

based projects, focussing on clean growth, had been awarded UK Community 
Renewal Funding: 

 

 The Net Zero Pathway for Change project, led by the Kent Invicta 
Chamber of Commerce, which will provide businesses in Kent with 
further access to carbon reduction advisers, workshops, University 
collaboration through innovation grants, and funding to support the 
implementation of carbon reduction activities.  

 The Growing Green project, which is aligned to the work of the Growing 
Kent & Medway consortium and led by NIAB EMR. ‘Growing Green’ will 
enable micro- and small and medium enterprises in the horticultural and 
food and drink sectors, which don’t normally access innovation support, 
to embark on an innovation journey for the net-zero economy. It is an 
integrated and incentivised business support programme that is 
developed and tested through co-innovation between businesses, 
Research and Development specialists and business support providers.  

 

3.9 Across all of the above, KCC’s business engagement strategy revolves 
around a joined-up service provision. When KCC business-facing teams 
are speaking to a firm about a particular project that might be most pertinent to 
them, we also introduce other sustainability aspects which might not be on 
their agenda and always try to cross-refer across teams and directorates 
where relevant. This extends to programmes delivered by our partners: for 
example, through the Kent and Medway Growth Hub. As every business 
moves towards a low carbon business over the medium term, this joined-up 
approach will become increasingly important.  

 

Developing skills for a low carbon future 

 

3.10    Skills provision and shifting requirements to meet the ambitions of the region 
have been explored by South East Local Enterprise Partnership Skills Board 
and the Kent and Medway Employment Task Force. Skills for decarbonisation 
were highlighted by gaps exposed nationwide by the collapse of the 
Government’s Green Homes Grant; the Kent and Medway Workforce Skills 

Page 107



Evidence Base also demonstrates the cross-sectoral nature of low-carbon 
skills and identifies them as a high priority.   

 

3.11   Recent progress includes Mid Kent College’s new training centre which is set 
to fill a role in training and re-training a workforce for installation of renewables 
such as heat pumps as well as focus on modular construction and retrofitting. 
This is funded by the Department for Education’s Strategic Development 
Fund, which a consortium of Kent colleges was awarded in 2021. In parallel, 
the emerging Local Skills Improvement Plan, being led by Kent Invicta 
Chamber of Commerce, will develop new solutions to ‘short course’ provision 
to meet employer need.  
  

3.12    A follow on Low Carbon Homes conference previously funded by Triple A (our 
successful Horizon 2020 project) will look to further develop the sector locally 
and regionally later in 2022 through LoCASE support. 
 

Decarbonising transport 

 

3.13 Our current approach, bringing together KCC teams such as Transport 
Innovations, Waste, Planning and Business & Enterprise to implement the 
Kent Environment and Energy & Low Emissions Strategies showcases how 
KCC’s approach is broad, realising that local businesses and communities are 
intrinsically linked in realising Net Zero ambitions and driving change. For 
example, KCC’s commitment to cover two years of delivery revenue costs in 
order to secure Highways England funding for a fleet of 48 electric vans 
(through the KCC Transformation Fund) has meant that the Kent REVS 
(Realising Electric Vans Scheme) has been able to successfully launch, 
enabling over 175 interested businesses and charities around Kent to sample 
for free a range of models for up to two months. This has also meant working 
with our Local Authority partners in developing charging infrastructure and is 
set to be further enhanced by the EV600 initiative to install charging hubs 
across the county. Public private partnerships such as this can have wider 
benefits when looking at options for developing infrastructure. Whilst this 
activity is making inroads to decarbonising the KCC fleet of vehicles and of 
enabling some community level activity KCC’s role is much wider than this and 
requires the organisation, through its commitments in the Kent Environment 
Strategy and the Energy and Low Emissions Strategy, to consider and enable 
transport innovation to contribute county wide to the decarbonisation of the 
transport sector. 

 

Active travel schemes (including those offering bike, e-bike, or e-scooter 
rental/repair for example) mobility as a service and other initiatives are also 
becoming increasingly popular as part of local planning. 
 

Developing renewable energy 

 

3.14 This in turn ties in with the Interreg funded Inn2POWER project and offshore 
wind supply chain work KCC is looking to build on by looking at Green 
Hydrogen infrastructure and opportunities through part-funded specialist 
support, backed by the expertise and learning of European partners. With 
three hydrogen production sites at various stages of development in Kent and 

Page 108



Medway, upwards of 30MW of additional currently unreported supply could 
finally break the ‘chicken and egg’ situation and enable promotion and support 
of demand as well as infrastructure supply. Having both a supply of hydrogen 
to be used for fuel and the associated infrastructure to make use of the fuel 
could be an important part of the county’s armoury in contributing to tackling 
road transport emissions as a chief source of emissions and carbon footprint 
in the region, as well as decarbonisation of the natural gas grid through 
blending. Hydrogen can be used to replace natural gas in grid infrastructure 
either wholly or by adding as a blend to natural gas supplies and is highly 
efficient with 1kg hydrogen gas generating the same energy as 2.8kg of 
natural gas. The Energy Network Association suggest that blending 20% 
hydrogen into the existing UK gas grid will reduce carbon emissions by the 
equivalent of 2.5 million cars a year, without any changes needing to be made 
to people’s cookers, boilers, or heating systems. With the increasing use of 
hydrogen and technical advances, the costs of production, distribution and 
product manufacturing will become increasingly affordable for businesses 
across Kent enabling businesses to benefit from both reduced emissions and 
costs through increased efficiency. The Thames Estuary is particularly 
ambitious on hydrogen’s role as an economic driver locally, with opportunities 
and future plans outlined in The Thames Estuary Growth Board’s Hydrogen 
Route Map published in October 2021. 

 

Investing in natural capital 

 

3.15 The role of natural capital and carbon sequestration will be of paramount 
importance to Kent reaching its Net Zero ambitions. The green economy 
includes some crucial players and sub-sectors (such as landscape designers, 
grounds maintenance and arboriculture firms) which need to be included in 
this theme. As such, initiatives and pledges like Plan Tree, Plan Bee and the 
wider adoption of increased biodiversity awareness and investment in local 
and regional strategies are developing. On this issue, there is a South East 
Local Enterprise Partnership  wide ‘nature-based solutions’ study underway 
(led by East Sussex CC but including KCC as a stakeholder) and Kent Wildlife 
Trust is also seeking to explore the role that our business community can do to 
help realise the wider ‘local offsetting’ ambitions through their supply chains.  

 

Supporting future investment  

 

3.16 The Low Carbon Kent partnership through South East Local Enterprise 
Partnership  helps businesses who are looking to deliver low carbon  services 
and innovation by accessing European Regional Development Fund (ERDF) 
grant funding and innovation support. We’ve recently secured Government 
agreement to not only continue this in the South East but also form a 
partnership with Local Authorities in three other Local Enterprise Partnership 
areas – EM3, Coast2Capital and Solent – to realise the same shared 
ambitions across the South and East. 

 

3.17 The launch of the last European Regional development Fund project South 
East New Energy in January 2022 will further identify and tackle barriers to 
rapid decarbonisation by focussing on community energy, large energy users, 
net-zero housing (including retrofit) and piloting innovation opportunities. 

Page 109



KCC’s position in the partnership should enable us to focus on some of these 
key priorities and benefit from shared objectives of the wider collective in 
adopting best practice and learning across our local economy.  

 

4 Financial Implications 

 

Public sector funding  
 

4.1 Most of the projects/initiatives outlined above are funded from Government 
and European Union grants and funding streams. Historically, the European 
funds (especially ERDF) have been especially important in supporting the low 
carbon agenda, and much of our business support activity has been reliant on 
these sources. KCC does fund core staff roles within the Sustainable Business 
and Communities team and provides revenue funding totalling £277,000 per 
annum (21/22 budget) to both support the delivery of the Kent Environment 
Strategy and the Energy and Low Emissions Strategy and to enable match 
funding for the numerous Interreg schemes that are underway. The emerging 
risk for the future delivery of green economy activity is the end of Interreg 
funding in 2023 and the subsequent loss of 78% of the staff team currently 
engaged in activity contributing to the green economy work.  

 
4.2  There is still some uncertainty regarding future funding, given that the last EU-

funded projects will end in mid-2023. Further clarity around the framework for 
future funding has been provided in the Government Levelling Up White Paper 
released in February 2022 (see 3.6 above), but this offers limited opportunity 
to the County Council. Whilst we consider these implications we continue to 
seek to be as well placed as possible to take advantage of new funding 
streams and strategic partnerships as they develop, be that via Greater South 
East Energy Hub, Clean Growth Working Group, South East Local Enterprise 
Partnership, or other emerging partners. 

 
4.3  The County Council is well-placed to contribute capability and knowledge to 

the ongoing development of a green economy in Kent. The Government's 
Heat and Buildings Strategy October 2021, Net Zero Strategy and Review 
October 2021, and Environment Act November 2021 are unclear in the short 
term whilst secondary legislation is enacted. Certainly, inclusion of circular 
economy principles and practice in upcoming waste frameworks has enabled 
these areas to be explored further for contractors and our own teams to realise 
potential benefits for the local green economy. 
 

5 The scale of wider opportunities 
 

5.1 The opportunity to explore partnerships with ‘Green Energy’ projects should not 
be overlooked. Clean Growth South East assessed investment in over 1,500 
current and future clean growth projects and mapped a significant pipeline of 
Clean Growth investments expected in the South East of England in the short, 
medium, and longer term. In the short to medium term out to 2030, the most 
significant investments in the sector are expected to be in Offshore wind, 
Transport infrastructure (including major road infrastructure and port 
development projects), and in the development of regional Nuclear Power sites. 
Investment is also expected in power transmission, Oil & Gas 
Decommissioning, Energy Storage and Solar Photovoltaics.  

Page 110



 
5.2  In the longer term out to 2050, cumulative capital investments of £122bn are 

foreseen in the Clean Growth Sector with the largest investments being made in 
Offshore Wind, Transport and Nuclear projects. Smaller but still significant 
investment categories include Oil & Gas Decommissioning, some remaining 
gas exploitation, Solar Photovoltaics and Energy Storage. Offshore Wind, 
Transport and Nuclear represent consistent and significant opportunity areas for 
the South East Local Enterprise Partnership  region and opportunities for public 
sector collaboration with industry to support and encourage investment in these 
areas could support Clean Growth across the region at a large scale. The 
assessment also shows support should be offered where possible to the 
continued growth in the areas of Oil & Gas Decommissioning, Solar 
Photovoltaics and Energy Storage.  

 
5.3 It is noted that this modelling includes solely the initial capital investment in 

development of energy sector project sites, or in the construction of transport 
infrastructure projects of national significance. The assessment does not 
include the ongoing investments related to these new and existing 
developments for instance, spend necessary in maintaining transport 
infrastructure and in operating and maintaining renewable energy projects. In 
the offshore wind sector alone, operations and maintenance of projects located 
in the East and South East of England is expected to incur a total cumulative 
cost in the region of £30bn in the period up to 2050.  

 
5.4 It is also noted that hydrogen developments have not been included for the 

purposes of our investment forecast analysis due to the limited published 
information sources in the region and across the UK at the time of this 
assessment. However, there are significant plans to develop hydrogen 
production facilities in the region in the planning pipeline. These caveats on the 
assessment provided indicate that the Clean Growth Opportunity for the region 
and its supply chains may be even more significant that the investment 
forecasts suggest.  

 
6 Other implications 

 
6.1 Other implications including legal, equalities and data processing are 

considered on a project-by-project basis as part of the governance for grant 
funding and project delivery. In a general sense, the increased scrutiny and 
tightening of standards and supply chain transparency means that the ‘green 
economy’ now resonates strongly with more stakeholders, communities, and 
the society as a whole. There are the obvious links of local and national 
planning constraints/opportunities that cut across many of the themes of this 
paper. 

 
7 Conclusions and potential opportunities and priorities for the future 
 
7.1 KCC has, for many years, been pro-active in championing and supporting the 

green economy both working in partnerships and directly supporting businesses 
via access to specialist advice and grants to invest in green infrastructure and 
processes to support a lower carbon economy. It is partly for that reason that 
we received the national Association of Directors of Environment, Economy, 
Planning & Transport  (ADEPT) Delivering Clean Growth award in 2021. There 

Page 111



is an opportunity to build on this and extend it, in the light of the increasing 
salience of decarbonisation, to all aspects of Kent’s economic strategy. 

 
Supporting business opportunities 
 
7.2 The Clean Growth South East programme has begun to build a recognisable 

programme, current database, and a network of businesses through delivery of 
the pilot programme. There is an opportunity to keep this running acting as an 
umbrella brand through which information and business opportunities relevant 
to the Clean Growth Sector across the South East Local Enterprise Partnership  
area can be cascaded. This activity could be managed by the SELEP (subject 
to its future funding and role), KCC or a nominated third party as appropriate. 
Low Carbon Kent will seek in 2022 to further build resources and an 
environmental toolkit to help transition more firms - whatever their sector - to a 
low carbon economy 

 
7.3 Achieving clean growth goes hand in hand with reducing carbon emissions. The 

Clean Growth South East report explored how an analysis of the region’s 
carbon footprint can inform the areas where practical support and achievable 
interventions targeting Clean Growth could have the greatest impact on carbon 
emissions across the region, targeting areas of the economy that contribute the 
greatest portions of the region’s carbon emissions, transport, and domestic 
emissions. 

 
7.4 It is recommended that interventions specifically supporting innovative 

companies in the transport and domestic energy efficiency sectors across the 
supply chain are considered, helping bring to market new services or solutions 
to address carbon emissions in these areas, and to support the growth of a 
local supply chain and base of expertise.  

 
Working with larger firms 
 
7.5 There may also be opportunities for specific projects or programmes to be run 

in collaboration with regional point source carbon emitters. These are identified 
points (organisational or sector specific) of largescale emissions the region with 
whom a targeted intervention could be developed. This will engage these 
emitters and, through action with them and their supply chain, focus on carbon 
emissions through energy efficiency at these sites and through their supply 
chains. 

 
Mainstreaming decarbonisation  
 
7.6 Beyond actions to support firms in the ‘vanguard’ of decarbonisation, public 

sector support for business could be linked with greenhouse gas reductions, 
with Key Performance Indicators focussed on achieving ambitious emissions 
reductions, (as well as more traditional measures such as the number of 
businesses targeted, jobs created or GVA generated). 

 
7.7 More broadly, delivering a lower carbon Kent will be central to the emerging 

Kent and Medway Economic Strategy, reflecting the themes set out in this 
paper (and building on the additional evidence base in the Clean Growth South 
East report). The reduction in emissions from KCC financial support for 

Page 112



business is likely to be a tiny fraction of what KCC can, and should, itself 
achieve. Therefore, although beyond the scope of this paper, this will also need 
to be reflected in KCC’s approach to transport, property and other areas in 
which the Council can make a significant contribution to decarbonisation.  

 
8.  Recommendation(s) 
 

8.1  The Cabinet Committee is asked to note current and planned activity to support 
the development of the green economy in Kent.  

 
9.  Contact details 
 
Report Authors: Rob Robinson  
Name, job title: Sustainable Business 
Programme Manager  
Telephone number: 03000 418016 
Email address: 
Rob.Robinson@kent.gov.uk 
 
Report Authors: Helen Shulver  
Name, job title: Interim Head of 
Sustainable Business and Communities 
Telephone number: 03000 417711 
Email address: 
helen.shulver@kent.gov.uk 
 

Relevant Director: Stephanie Holt-Castle 
Name, job title: Director, Growth & 
Communities   
Telephone number 03000 412064 
Email address: stephanie.holt-
castle@kent.gov.uk 

 
 

Page 113

mailto:Rob.Robinson@kent.gov.uk


 
Annex 1: Defining the low carbon ‘sector’  
 
Since 2015, data collected by the Office for National Statistics (ONS) via a survey of 
business within the LCREE definition has been the primary source of official 
information on LCREE activity in the UK and is used by BEIS as the official metric to 
quantify the Clean Growth economy.  
 
The Office for National Statistics (ONS) also reports annually on the Environmental 
Goods and Services Sector (EGSS) framework, adopted under the United Nations 
System of Environmental Economic Accounting. The EGSS is made up of areas of 
the economy engaged in producing goods and services for environmental protection 
purposes, as well as those engaged in conserving and maintaining natural resources, 
aiming to quantify the green economy.  
 
For the Clean Growth South East study commissioned using South East Local 
Enterprise Partnership (SELEP) funding, KCC and partners adopted a definition for 
the clean growth sector in line with both LCREE and EGSS frameworks, against 
which to quantify and measure the performance of the local sector. This definition 
details sub-sector categories, mapped against the relevant Standard Industrial 
Classification (SIC) Codes covering key business classifications that contain energy, 
low carbon, and renewables activity. 
 
 
 

Page 114



 

1 

 

From:   David Brazier, Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport 
 
   Susan Carey, Cabinet Member for Environment 
 
   Simon Jones, Corporate Director for Growth, Environment & 

Transport 
 
To:   Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee – 17 March 2022 

 
Subject:  Risk Management: Growth, Environment and Transport 

Directorate   
 
Classification: Unrestricted 

Past Pathway of Paper:  None 
 
Future Pathway of Paper: None 
 
Electoral Division:   All 
 

Summary: This paper presents the strategic risks relating to the Environment and 
Transport Cabinet Committee, comprising of two risks featuring on the Corporate Risk 
Register for which the Corporate Director is the designated ‘Risk Owner’ on behalf of the 
Corporate Management Team; plus, a summary of key risks from within the directorate. 
 
Recommendation(s):   
The Cabinet Committee is asked to consider and comment on the risks presented. 

 

1.          Introduction 

1.1 Risk management is a key element of the Council’s internal control framework and 
the requirement to maintain risk registers ensures that potential risks that may 
prevent the Authority from achieving its objectives are identified and controlled. 

1.2 Directorate risks are reported to Cabinet Committees annually and contain strategic 
or cross-cutting risks that potentially affect several functions across the Growth, 
Environment & Transport Directorate, and often have wider potential 
interdependencies with other services across the Council and external parties.   

1.3 Corporate Directors also lead or coordinate mitigating actions in conjunction with 
other Directors across the organisation to manage risks featuring on the Corporate 
Risk Register.   

1.4 The majority of these risks, or at least aspects of them, will have been discussed in 
depth at the relevant Cabinet Committee(s) throughout the year, demonstrating that 
risk considerations are embedded within core business. 

1.5 The assessment scores given to individual risks help to prioritise risks in order to 
make clear which risks are most important to the Directorate and requires an 
understanding by senior managers of: 

Page 115

Agenda Item 15



 

2 

 

 The likelihood of each threat occurring. 

 The impact of each threat if it did occur. 
 

The process adopted by KCC follows guidance provided to practitioners in the 
Management of Risk. 

   
2.         Growth, Environment and Transport led Corporate Risks 

2.1 The Corporate Director for the Growth, Environment and Transport directorate is 
the lead Director for two of the council’s corporate risks.  A brief summary of 
changes over the past year are outlined below, with full details contained in the risk 
register attached at Appendix 1. The risks are regularly reviewed by directorate and 
divisional management teams. 

Risk 
Reference 

Risk Description Current 
Score 

Target 
Score 

CRR0003 Securing resources to aid economic 
recovery and enabling infrastructure 

20 (High) 16 (High) 

The scope of the risk has broadened since the coronavirus pandemic, as the Authority 
continues to work with partners to fully understand both short and longer term Covid-19 
impacts.  The Kent and Medway Economic Partnership has produced a comprehensive 
Economic Renewal and Resilience Plan to aid local recovery, which the Authority 
continues to contribute to implementation of. 

An active pipeline of local projects is in place for potential funding announcements, and 
business growth across the County are supported through various schemes including the 
Kent and Medway Business Fund. 
 

CRR0042 Post UK/EU Transition border systems, 
infrastructure, and regulatory 
arrangements 

20 (High) 12 (Medium) 

KCC now operates a full, external border as a sovereign nation and controls are now 
placed on the movement of goods between the UK and the EU.  The new border 
controls are currently being put in place for 1st July 2022.  Actions being taken 
include recruiting and training additional staff to provide capacity for these changes. 

 
2.2 A new Corporate Risk on the Impact of Climate Change is being considered. It 

would encompass the longer-term impacts on the Council’s services, staff and 
assets, commissioned services, strategic infrastructure, population health, 
economy, and natural environment. It goes beyond the current risks already 
identified of severe weather impacts (GT0003) and of replacing funding that 
previously came via Interreg (GT0026). 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 116



 

3 

 

3.         Growth, Environment and Transport Directorate risk profile 

3.1 The current risks in the GET Directorate risk register are shown below. Risks are 
presented in order of significance (highest first). 

Risk 
Reference 

Risk Description Current 
Score 

Target 

GT0004 Skills shortage and capacity issues  20 (High) 12 (Medium) 

As part of the external bidding process officers have to submit suitable business cases, 
which requires staff with the appropriate skill set to manage contracts, projects and for 
planning applications.  It is possible that the directorate would be unable to attract or retain 
suitably trained project managers as the private sector remains competitive in this area. 

A workforce strategy and action plan has been developed and is regularly reviewed, aiming 
to address key skills gaps.  Emphasis has been placed on raising the standards of project 
management, while succession planning is another mitigation. 

 

Risk 
Reference 

Risk Description Current 
Score 

Target 

GT0001 Health and Safety, and wellbeing 
considerations  

20 (High) 10 (Medium) 

Services across the directorate need to pay due regard to potential Health and Safety 
issues due to the nature of the work they undertake, in addition to the impact of working 
from home on the wellbeing of staff. 
 
A strategic roadmap has been put in place to address changed circumstances, with a focus 
on staff wellbeing, physical health, and positive communication. 

 

Risk 
Reference 

Risk Description Current 
Score 

Target 

GT0025 Capital Investment and Asset 
Management 

15 (Medium) 9 (Medium) 

There is a risk of insufficient capital funding for Highway Asset Management and 
Infrastructure growth, as well as achieving Net Zero for the KCC estate by 2030. 
 
Actions are taking place to source additional capital funding with ongoing oversight within 
the directorate. 

 

Risk 
Reference 

Risk Description Current 
Score 

Target 

GT0003 Directorate preparedness for, and 
management of, severe weather 
incidents 

12 (Medium) 9 (Medium) 

This is a directorate-focused version of the corporate emergency response and resilience 
risk.  The number of severe weather events affecting the county has increased in the past 
few years, which can have a significant impact on all GET services, businesses, and the 
Kent community.   Services within the directorate continue to play an important role in 
planning for, responding to, and recovering from these events.  This risk has been updated 
to reflect the current risk of concurrent emergencies. 

 

Page 117



 

4 

 

Risk 
Reference 

Risk Description Current Score Target 

GT0024 Information Governance.  Management of 
personal data. 

12 (Medium) 6 (Low) 

This risk replaced a previous Directorate risk relating to the implementation of the General 
Data Protection Regulations and relates to the management of increasing amounts of 
personal data within the Directorate.  Mitigation primarily relates to training and learning of 
staff across the Directorate.   

 

Risk 
Reference 

Risk Description Current Score Target 

GT0008 Ash Dieback.  Destruction of the Ash 
species and associated costs to KCC. 

12 (Medium) 12 (Medium) 

The degree of spread has caused concerns over the future of Ash trees in the County as 
well as cost implications regarding the management of the disease.  Mitigations involve 
multi-agency monitoring and subsequent action as appropriate, as well as the publication of 
information to the general public.   

 

Risk Reference Risk Description Current 
Score 

Target 

GT0021 Internal services provided to the 
Directorate do not meet an acceptable 
standard 

12 (Medium) 9 (Medium) 

The Directorate Management Team is continually liaising with KCC commissioners on any 
issues that arise regarding performance of service providers (e.g., KCC Local Authority 
trading companies or outsourced services), and the directorate’s services are increasingly 
being involved as key stakeholders in matters of strategy and service design.  This is in 
addition to liaising with corporate services to ensure they can provide expert advice at the 
right time.   

 

Risk 
Reference 

Risk Description Current Score Target 

GT0027 Failure of ICT systems  12 (Medium) 12 (Medium) 

The directorate is growing more reliant on information held electronically and would be 
impacted by staff being unable to continue working remotely due to equipment failure.  
Business Continuity Plans have been updated to include plans to mitigate against this risk 
and equipment is upgraded when available and necessary. 
 

 

Risk 
Reference 

Risk Description Current Score Target 

GT0026 Net Zero and Insufficiency of Funding  12 (Medium) 9 (Medium) 

This risk relates to the capital investment needed in order to meet the 2030 Net Zero 
objective, which is not yet fully identified.  Funding has been secured for estate 
decarbonisation and funding opportunities continue to be sought and applied for. 

 
 
 
 

Page 118



 

5 

 

Risk 
Reference 

Risk Description Current Score Target 

GT0019  Delivery of in-year budget targets. 
 

Medium (12) 9 (Low) 

At the time of reporting to Cabinet in December 2021, the GET directorate was forecasting 
a revenue variance of -£0.2m.  
 

 

Risk Reference Risk Description Current 
Score 

Target 

GT0020 Identification, planning and delivery of 
Medium-Term Financial Plan targets. 

12 (Medium) 4 (Low) 

The directorate is required to make its contribution to the challenging savings targets 
required by the council over the medium term.  There is a reduced ability for the directorate 
to mitigate year-on-year, but the Directorate participates fully in financial monitoring 
processes and has developed savings and income proposals that have been fed into the 
MTFP.  Key projects are overseen by the GET Portfolio Board where they are monitored.   

 

 
4. Key Divisional Risks 

4.1 The Corporate and Directorate risks are underpinned by risks at a divisional level 
that are typically more operational in nature. The Directorate Management Team 
has regular oversight of significant divisional risks, which currently includes those 
relating to: 

 Ensuring services continue to comply with significant policy changes at national 
level and meet service delivery standards in challenging financial context and 
impact of Covid-19;  

 EU Transition and associated risks; 

 Sufficiency of capital funding for highway asset management; 

 Connectivity and Technology requirements; 

 Operational risks such as health and safety concerns in household waste 
recycling centres. 

 
5. Recommendation 

 

The Cabinet Committee is asked to consider and comment on the risks presented in this 
report. 

 
6. Background Documents 

6.1 KCC Risk Management Policy and associated risk management toolkit on KNet 
intranet site. http://knet/ourcouncil/Management-guides/Pages/MG2-managing-
risk.aspx 

 
 

Page 119

http://knet/ourcouncil/Management-guides/Pages/MG2-managing-risk.aspx
http://knet/ourcouncil/Management-guides/Pages/MG2-managing-risk.aspx


 

6 

 

Contact details 
 
Report Author: 
Jody Catterall, Risk Manager 
Jody.catterall@kent.gov.uk 
 
 
Relevant Corporate Director: 
Simon Jones, Corporate Director, Growth, Environment and Transport 
Simon.Jones@kent.gov.uk   

Page 120

mailto:Jody.catterall@kent.gov.uk
mailto:Simon.Jones@kent.gov.uk


    

7 
 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 1 

 

KCC Corporate Risk Register: 

GET-led Corporate Risks 

  

January 2022 – FOR PRESENTATION TO ENVIRONMENT & TRANSPORT CABINET 
COMMITTEE – 17

th
 March 2022 

 

 

Corporate Risk Register - Summary Risk Profile 

 

P
age 121



    

8 
 

Low = 1-6 Medium = 8-15 High =16-25 

 

Risk No. Risk Title Current Risk 
Rating 

Target Risk 
Rating 

Direction of 
Travel 

since Jan 
2021 

CRR0003 Securing resources to aid economic recovery and enabling 
infrastructure  

20 16 
 

CRR0042 Post-Transition UK/EU border systems, infrastructure, and regulatory 
arrangements 

20 12 

 
 

 
 
 
NB: Current & Target risk ratings: The ‘current’ risk rating refers to the current level of risk considering any mitigating controls already in 
place.  The ‘target residual’ rating represents what is deemed to be a realistic level of risk to be achieved once any additional actions 
have been put in place.  On some occasions the aim will be to contain risk at current level. 
 

The overall risk score is derived from multiplying the likelihood and impact scores.   

 

Likelihood & Impact Scales 

Likelihood Very Unlikely (1) Unlikely (2) Possible (3) Likely (4) Very Likely (5) 

Impact Minor (1) Moderate (2) Significant (3) Serious (4) Major (5) 

  

P
age 122



    

9 
 

Risk ID CRR0003  Risk Title          Securing resources to aid economic recovery and enabling infrastructure for 
growth 

Source / Cause of Risk 

The Covid-19 pandemic has 
impacted on the economy in Kent 
& Medway and the impacts could 
be disproportionate across the 
county (e.g., in coastal areas). 

To gain an understanding of the 
implications, an impact 
assessment has been conducted, 
which has led to the preparation 
and launch of an 18-month local 
economic renewal and resilience 
plan, which aims to act as a 
stimulus for improvement. 

The Council actively seeks to 
secure the resources/funding 
necessary to provide the 
infrastructure required to support 
growth, which often need to be bid 
for in very tight timescales and are 
increasingly subject to the drive to 
deliver economic impact, housing, 
and employment outputs.  

UK funds will not fully replace EU 
structural funds lost following EU 
Transition. 

At a local level there is often a 
significant gap between the 
overall costs of the infrastructure 
required and the Council’s ability 
to secure sufficient funds through 

Risk Event 

The inability to fully secure 
sufficient funding, including 
contributions from 
development, to deliver the 
infrastructure necessary to 
support growth may require 
gap funding for KCC to fulfil 
its statutory duties. 

Deferral of developer 
contributions and/or 
elongated planning consents 
leads to delayed or 
compromised infrastructure. 

 

 

Consequence 

Key opportunities for 
growth missed. 

The Council finds it 
increasingly difficult to 
fund services across 
Kent and fully mitigate 
the overall impact of 
housing growth on 
KCC services and, 
therefore, communities. 

Kent becomes a less 
attractive location for 
inward investment and 
business. 

Our ability to deliver 
strategic / enabling 
infrastructure becomes 
constrained. 

Reputational risk 
associated with 
delayed delivery of 
infrastructure required. 

Additional revenue 
costs incurred due to 
infrastructure delays 
e.g., Home to School 
transport costs. 

 

Risk Owner 

Simon Jones,  
Corporate 
Director  
Growth, 
Environment 
and Transport 
(GET) 
 
 
Responsible 
Cabinet 
Member(s): 

On behalf of 
Cabinet: 

 

Derek Murphy, 
Economic 
Development 

 

David Brazier, 
Highways & 
Transport  
 
 
 
 

Current 
Likelihood 

V. Likely (5) 
 
 
 

Target 
Residual 

Likelihood 

Likely (4) 

Current 
Impact 

Serious (4) 
 
 
 

Target 
Residual 
Impact 

Serious (4) 

P
age 123



    

10 
 

the current funding systems, 
including Section106 
contributions, Community 
Infrastructure Levy, and other 
growth levers.  

 

Control Title Control Owner 

Active pipeline in place of projects for potential funding arrangements. 

 

David Smith, Head of Business 
and Enterprise (KCC lead) 

Multi-agency Kent and Medway Employment Task Force has been established. 

 

David Smith, Head of Business 
and Enterprise (KCC lead) 

Single Monitoring System (SMS) is used to track individual s106 planning obligations from the Council's initial 
request for developer contributions through the issue of invoice for payment. 

 

David Smith, Head of Business 
and Enterprise (KCC lead) / 
Stephanie Holt-Castle, Director 
Growth and Communities 

Strong engagement of private sector through Kent and Medway Economic Partnership (KMEP), Business 
Advisory Board and Kent Developer Group 

 

David Smith, Head of Business 
and Enterprise (KCC lead) 

Strong engagement with South-East LEP and central Government to ensure that KCC is in a strong position 
to secure resources from future funding rounds. 

 

David Smith, Head of Business 
and Enterprise (KCC lead) 

Teams across the Growth, Environment and Transport directorate work with each individual District on 
composition of local infrastructure plans including priorities for the CIL and Section 106 contributions, to 
articulate needs for the demands on services 

 

 

Nigel Smith, Head of 
Development (GET) / 
Stephanie Holt-Castle, Director 
Growth and Communities 

P
age 124



    

11 
 

Local Transport Plan 4 produced and approved by County Council 

 

Tom Marchant, Head of 
Strategic Planning and Policy 

Government consultations on proposals for reform of the planning system in England considered and 
responded to. 

 

Tom Marchant, Head of 
Strategic Planning and Policy 

Officers are working on bids to secure funding as appropriate including Local Growth Fund, Housing 
Infrastructure Fund, Major Roads Network 

 

Joe Ratcliffe, Transport 
Strategy Manager 

Economic Recovery Dashboard in place 

 

Rachel Kennard, Chief Analyst 

Kent and Medway Renewal and Resilience Plan Economic Impacts Evidence Base sets out a high-level 
assessment of the impacts of the Covid-19 crisis on the Kent and Medway economy to inform the Renewal 
and Resilience Plan for the next 12-18 months. 

 

Rachel Kennard, Chief Analyst 

Growth and Infrastructure Framework for Kent and Medway published, setting out the infrastructure needed to 
deliver planned growth. 

Stephanie Holt-Castle, 
Director, Growth & 
Communities 

Action Title Action Owner Planned Completion Date 

Contribute to implementation of the Kent and Medway Economic 
Partnership’s local Economic Renewal and Resilience Plan, key delivery 
principles of which are: 

 Greener Futures (building a sustainable, lower carbon economy 

 Open and Productive (supporting long term productivity growth in an 
economy that welcomes investment and trade) 

 Better Opportunities, Fairer Chances (ensuring that people are 
supported through recession and stand to gain from a more resilient 
economy in the return to growth). 

David Smith April 2022 

P
age 125



    

12 
 

Participation on the Renewal and Resilience Group Plan group and the 
Employment Taskforce plans are being scoped to support key delivery 
principles. 

The Kent & Medway Business Fund opened to pre application on 31 
October, with the KMBF Small Business Boost opening in December 2021.   
The next phase of the Innovation Loan is to be scoped. 

David Smith, Head of Business 
and Enterprise (KCC lead) 

March 2022 

Workstreams include Government Relations, Infrastructure Priorities, Joint 
Planning, Delivery modelling, KCC Support of Housing Growth, 
Governance, and Infrastructure Proposition Bid. 

Simon Jones, Corporate 
Director Growth, Environment 
and Transport (GET) 

 

April 2022 

 

  

P
age 126



    

13 
 

Risk ID CRR0042  Risk Title        Post Transition period border systems, Infrastructure, and regulatory arrangements 
–  

Source / Cause of risk 

On 1 January 2021 the Transition 
period with the European Union 
ended, and the United Kingdom 
now operates a full, external 
border as a sovereign nation. This 
means that controls are now 
placed on the movement of goods 
between the UK and the EU.  

To afford industry extra time to 
make necessary arrangements, 
the UK Government has taken the 
decision to introduce the new 
border controls in three stages up 
until 1 July 2022.  
KCC has been working with 
partners at a local and national 
level to assess potential 
implications for the county and 
prepare for various scenarios.  

KCC is reliant on coherent, 
coordinated governance and 
information across Government to 
aid the Local Authority and 
partners locally in planning their 
contingency arrangements and 
responding appropriately.   

 

 

Risk Event 

That changes in border 
customs, checking and 
processing routinely affect 
local communities and both 
the strategic and local road 
networks.  

That the Government does 
not provide sufficient capital 
and revenue financial 
support to departments, 
agencies, local authorities, 
and other infrastructure 
stakeholders necessary to 
address the necessary 
infrastructure, legislation, 
and controls to ensure long 
term plan for frictionless 
border movements.  

 

 

 

 

Consequence 

Significant slowdown in 
the existing flow of 
goods and people 
through the Kent Ports 
leads to long delays in 
accessing Dover Ports 
and Eurotunnel.  

Impacts on major traffic 
routes to support 
Operation Brock and 
other mitigations for 
port delays and the 
consequential increase 
in local and pan-Kent 
road journey times, 
impacting on local 
residents and 
businesses.  

Significant detrimental 
impact on county’s 
economic 
competitiveness, 
attractiveness for 
inward investment and 
quality of life for Kent 
residents. 

Significant increase in 
imported goods subject 
to statutory checks by 

Risk Owner 

Simon Jones, 
Corporate 
Director GET 

 

 

Responsible 
Cabinet 
Member(s): 

 

David Brazier, 
Highways & 
Transport 

 

Mike Hill, 
Community & 
Regulatory 
Services 

 

 

Current 
Likelihood 

Likely (4) 

 

 

Target 
Residual 

Likelihood 

Possible (4) 

Current 
Impact 

Major (5) 

 

 

Target 
Residual 
Impact 

Serious (4) 

P
age 127



    

14 
 

Trading Standards 
including consumer 
goods and animal 
feeds. 

Imported animals now 
subject to welfare 
checks at Border 
controls posts, 
breaches of welfare 
subject to investigation 
by Trading Standards. 

Shortages and delay 
may impact supply 
chains. 

 

Control Title Control Owner 

KCC engagement with and support for the Kent Resilience Forum 

 

Lisa Guthrie, Head of Kent 
Resilience Team 

Regular engagement with senior colleagues in relevant Government Departments on the impacts and 
implications of transition on KCC’s regulatory responsibilities relating to Trading Standards and the resilience 
of Kent highways. 

 

Simon Jones, Corporate 
Director GET 

Several training exercises have taken place to prepare for various scenarios 

 

Simon Jones, Corporate 
Director, GET / Tony Harwood, 
Resilience and Emergencies 
Manager 

KCC involvement in Operation Fennel Strategic and Tactical Groups (multi-agency planning groups for Simon Jones, Corporate 

P
age 128



    

15 
 

potential disruption at Port of Dover and Eurotunnel).   Director GET 

Operation Fennel strategic plan in place 

 

Simon Jones, Corporate 
Director GET 

KCC Cross Directorate Resilience Forum reviews latest situation regarding transition impacts 

 

Tony Harwood, Resilience and 
Emergencies Manager 

KCC contribution to multi-agency communications in the ‘response’ phase, and leadership of communications 
in the ‘planning’ and ‘recovery’ phases 

 

Christina Starte, Head of 
Communications 

KCC services are continually reviewing business continuity arrangements, taking potential scenarios into 
consideration (cross-reference to CRR0004), with co-ordination via Directorate Resilience Groups 

 

Service Managers 

KCC membership of the Delivery Models Operational Group and associated working groups such as 
Emergency Planning, Infrastructure etc. 

 

Steve Rock, Head of Trading 
Standards  

Action Title Action Owner Planned Completion Date 

KCC continues to make a case for further funding from the Ministry of 
Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) and Department 
for Transport (DfT) for direct impact costs of Transition preparedness in the 
county. 

Simon Jones, Corporate 
Director GET 

 July 2022 

Recruitment of additional staff for Ports Team to provide capacity and deal 
specifically with imported goods through the 7-8 Ports and Inland border 
facilities in Kent. 

Steve Rock, Head of Trading 
Standards 

July 2022 

Recruitment of additional animal health officers to provide capacity to deal 
with increased pressures on animal health and welfare in Kent. 

Steve Rock, Head of Trading 
Standards 

December 2021 

P
age 129



    

16 
 

Recruitment of Trainee Trading Standards Officers to increase capability of 
the service to cover statutory functions requiring qualified staff, in particular 
Animal Feed. 

Steve Rock, Head of Trading 
Standards 

 December 2021 

 

P
age 130



1 
 

From:   David Brazier, Cabinet Member for Highways and Transportation 
 
   Susan Carey, Cabinet Member for Environment 
      
   Simon Jones, Corporate Director for Growth, Environment and 

Transport 
 
To:   Environment & Transport Cabinet Committee – 17 March 2022 

Subject:  Performance Dashboard 

Classification: Unrestricted  

Summary: The Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee Performance Dashboard 
shows progress made against targets set for Key Performance Indicators (KPIs). The 
latest Dashboard includes data up to December 2021. 
 
Fifteen of the nineteen KPIs achieved target and are RAG rated Green. Three KPIs were 
below target but did achieve the floor standard and are RAG rated Amber. One KPI was 
below floor standard and is RAG rated Red. 
 
Recommendation(s):   
The Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee is asked to NOTE the report to 
December 2021. 

 
1. Introduction  

 
1.1. Part of the role of Cabinet Committees is to review the performance of the functions 

of the Council that fall within the remit of the Committee. To support this role, 
Performance Dashboards are regularly reported to each Cabinet Committee 
throughout the year, and this is the fourth report for the 2021/22 financial year. 

 
2. Performance Dashboard 

 
2.1. The Dashboard provides a progress report on performance against target for the Key 

Performance Indicators (KPIs) for 2021/22. These KPIs, activity indicators and 
targets came before the Cabinet Committee for comment in June 2021. The current 
Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee Performance Dashboard is attached 
at Appendix 1. 

 
2.2. The current Dashboard provides results up to the end of December 2021. 

 
2.3. KPIs are presented with RAG (Red/Amber/Green) alerts to show progress against 

targets. Details of how the alerts are generated are outlined in the Guidance Notes, 
included with the Dashboard in Appendix 1. 

 
2.4. Four out of five KPIs in Highways & Transportation achieved or exceeded target for 

latest month performance and were RAG rated Green. Streetlights, illuminated signs 
and bollards repaired in 28 calendar days dropped below target in November, and 

Page 131

Agenda Item 16



2 
 

below the floor standard in December. Management action on this KPI is detailed in 
the report. 

 
2.5. Five of the digital take-up indicators in Highways and Transportation were RAG rated 

Green, with Concessionary bus passes missing target by 1 percentage point. 
 

2.6. Six of the eight indicators for Environment and Waste were above target, leaving two 
that were below. Both the Municipal waste recycled and composted and HWRC 
recycling indicators are four percentage points below target, but above the floor 
target and so RAG rated amber. The volume of waste collected at HWRCs is around 
70% of pre-pandemic levels. 

 
2.7. The process for reviewing KPIs and targets for 2022/23 has continued for the 

indicators reported to this Committee and this will take into consideration demand 
and the resources available to services. 

 
 

3. Recommendation(s):  
 
The Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee is asked to NOTE the report to 
December 2021. 

 
 
4. Contact details 
 
 Report Author:  Rachel Kennard 

    Chief Analyst 
    Strategic and Corporate Services - Analytics 
    03000 414527 
    Rachel.Kennard@kent.gov.uk 
 

 Relevant Director:  Simon Jones 
    Corporate Director, Growth, Environment and Transport 

    03000 411683 
    Simon.Jones@kent.gov.uk 

 

Page 132

mailto:Rachel.Kennard@kent.gov.uk
mailto:Simon.Jones@kent.gov.uk


Appendix 1 

1 
 

 
 

 
Environment and Transport 
Performance Dashboard 
 
Financial Year 2021/22 
 

Results up to December 2021 

 
 

 
Produced by Kent Analytics 
 
Publication Date: February 2022 

 
  

P
age 133



Appendix 1 

2 
 

Guidance Notes 
 
Data is provided with monthly frequency except for Waste Management and Greenhouse Gases where indicators are reported with 
quarterly frequency and as rolling 12-month figures to remove seasonality.  
 
RAG RATINGS 
 

GREEN Target has been achieved 

AMBER Floor Standard* achieved but Target has not been met 

RED Floor Standard* has not been achieved 

 
*Floor Standards are the minimum performance expected and if not achieved must result in management action 

 
 
Activity Indicators 
 
Activity Indicators representing demand levels are also included in the report. They are not given a RAG rating. Instead, they are 
tracked within an expected range represented by Upper and Lower Thresholds. The Alert provided for Activity Indicators is whether 
they are within their expected range or not. Results can either be within their expected range (Yes), or Above or Below their expected 
range 

P
age 134



Appendix 1 

3 
 

Key Performance Indicators Summary 
 

Highways & Transportation 
Monthly 

RAG 
YTD 
RAG 

 
Environment & Waste RAG 

HT01 : Potholes repaired in 28 calendar days (routine 
works not programmed) 

GREEN GREEN 
 

WM01 : Municipal waste recycled and composted AMBER 

HT02 : Faults reported by the public completed in 28 
calendar days 

GREEN GREEN 
 

WM02 : Municipal waste converted to energy GREEN 

HT04 : Customer satisfaction with service delivery 
(100 Call Back) 

GREEN GREEN 
 WM01 + WM02 : Municipal waste diverted from 

landfill 
GREEN 

HT08 : Emergency incidents attended to within 2 
hours 

GREEN GREEN 
 

WM03 : Waste recycled and composted at HWRCs AMBER 

HT12 : Streetlights, illuminated signs and bollards 
repaired in 28 calendar days 

RED AMBER 
 WM04 : Percentage of customers satisfied with 

HWRC services 
GREEN 

   
 EPE14 : Greenhouse Gas emissions from KCC estate 

(excluding schools)  
GREEN 

Digital Take up   RAG  
 EW1: Percentage of statutory planning consultee 

responses submitted within 21 days 
GREEN 

DT01 : Percentage of public enquiries for Highways 
Maintenance completed online 

GREEN  
 DT05 : Percentage of HWRC voucher applications 

completed online 
GREEN 

DT03 : Percentage of concessionary bus pass 
applications completed online 

AMBER  
  

 

DT04 : Percentage of speed awareness courses 
booking completed online 

GREEN  
  

 

DT06 : Percentage of Highway Licence applications 
completed online 

GREEN  
  

 

DT15 : Percentage of KCC travel Saver applications 
completed online  

GREEN  
  

 

DT16 : Percentage of 16+ Travel Saver applications 
completed online 

GREEN  
  

 

 
  

P
age 135



Appendix 1 

4 
 

Division Corporate Director Cabinet Member 

Highways & Transportation Simon Jones David Brazier 

 
Key Performance Indicators 
 

 
 
HT12 –The drop in performance in streetlights, illuminated signs and bollards repaired in 28 calendar days is due to several factors – 
an inability to recruit to vacancies, sickness, and staff having to self-isolate due to Covid in December particularly. An Early Warning 
was issued on 07/12/21 regarding performance and it was agreed at a risk reduction meeting that, to reduce the number of outstanding 
orders, a number of measures would be put in place including: 

 An overtime incentive was introduced for weekend working  

 Crews were asked to work between Christmas and New Year 

 Bouygues sent out a request to the wider business looking for teams that could be deployed temporarily in Kent.  

 Bouygues is reviewing crews in Planned works to free up another crew to join the Maintenance works 

 Weekly monitoring meetings have been set up between KCC and Bouygues 
 
 
 
 
 

Ref Indicator description Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21
Month 

RAG

Year to 

Date

YTD 

RAG
Target Floor 

Prev. 

Yr

HT01
Potholes repaired in 28 calendar days 

(routine works not programmed) 
97% 98% 98% 98% GREEN 95% GREEN 90% 80% 94%

HT02
Faults reported by the public completed 

in 28 calendar days 
90% 89% 91% 91% GREEN 90% GREEN 90% 80% 92%

HT04
Customer satisfaction with service 

delivery (100 Call Back) 
90% 98% 98% 98% GREEN 95% GREEN 85% 70% 95%

HT08
Emergency incidents attended to within 

2 hours 
99% 99% 99% 98% GREEN 98% GREEN 98% 95% 97%

HT12
Streetlights, illuminated signs and 

bollards repaired in 28 calendar days
93% 94% 82% 67% RED 88% AMBER 90% 80% 86%

P
age 136



Appendix 1 

5 
 

Division Corporate Director Cabinet Member 

Highways & Transportation Simon Jones David Brazier 
 

Activity Indicators 
 

 

HT01b – Activity is showing as above expected levels in the year to December largely due to high numbers of potholes reported during 
the summer as unusually wet weather had an impact on the roads. Numbers continue to be on the high side of expectations into 
winter. 
 

HT06 – Whilst the routine faults requiring action in 28 days (drains blocked and potholes etc), have been higher than usual, overall 
enquiries including longer term repairs, streetlighting queries and pavement issues, have been lower than expected. 
 

HT07 – Work in progress was impacted by higher demand in the summer from drainage and pothole enquiries, but due to a milder 
Autumn, work volumes have reduced below expectations at this time of year.  
 

HT13 – The demand from utility companies, developers and indeed our own works to access road space in this quarter reached just 
over 37,000 permit requests.  This demand for road space and managing the Kent network continues to put significant pressure on the 
team and does not show any signs of letting up. Recruitment for additional resource in the team is ongoing. 
 
   

Ref Indicator description Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21
Year to 

Date

In 

expected 

range?

HT01b
Potholes repaired (as routine works and 

not programmed)
879 847 766 1,020 1,053 10,172 Above 9,900 6,300

HT02b
Routine faults reported by the public 

completed
5,161 4,384 3,919 3,909 3,621 40,413 Yes 43,200 34,200

HT06
Number of new enquiries requiring 

further action (total new faults)
7,586 6,285 6,767 5,700 4,729 59,987 Below 81,000 66,000

HT07
Work in Progress (active enquiries/jobs) 

- end of month snapshot
7,542 6,824 6,884 5,828 5,535 N/a Below 7,500 6,500

HT13 Streetwork permits issued 11,429 12,030 12,474 13,697 11,024 113,158 Above 105,900 87,900

Expected Range 

Upper | Lower

P
age 137



Appendix 1 

6 
 

Division Corporate Director Cabinet Member 

Highways and Transportation Simon Jones David Brazier 
 

Digital Take-up indicators 
 

 
 

DT03 - There will be some monthly variation with options to apply over the phone, by post and in libraries. Although it has been 
challenging to meet target in the past few months, it is expected for target to be achieved by January.  
 
DT06 – All highway licences are now completed online since a new back-office system went live in August 2021.  
 
DT15 and DT16 - All Traver Saver and 16+ Travel Saver applications are now completed online. 
 
  

Ref Indicator description Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21
Year to 

Date

YTD 

RAG
Target Floor 

Prev. 

Year

DT01
Percentage of public enquiries for Highways 

Maintenance completed online
59% 60% 55% 57% 59% GREEN 55% 45% 57%

DT03
Percentage of concessionary bus pass 

applications completed online
70% 69% 65% 69% 69% AMBER 70% 60% 72%

DT04
Percentage of speed awareness courses 

bookings completed online
83% 84% 87% 84% 87% GREEN 85% 75% 84%

DT06
Percentage of Highway Licence applications 

completed online
100% 100% 100% 100% 99% GREEN 90% 75% 95%

DT15
Percentage of KCC Travel Saver applications 

completed online (Rolling 12 months) 
100% 100% 100% 100% #N/A GREEN 95% 85% 99%

DT16
Percentage of 16+ Travel Saver applications 

completed online (Rolling 12 months)
100% 100% 100% 100% #N/A GREEN 95% 85% 100%

P
age 138



Appendix 1 

7 
 

Division Corporate Director Cabinet Members 

Environment & Waste Simon Jones Susan Carey 
 

Key Performance Indicators (Rolling 12 months except WM08)  
 

 

 

* This is waste collected by Districts, and by KCC via HWRCs. 
 

WM01 – Overall recycling and composting is comparable with previous years but remains behind the aspirational target of 50%.   
Kerbside recycling and composting has dropped slightly to 43%. 
 

WM03 – This remains below the 70% target. There was less recycling and more non-recycling taken to HWRCs in Quarter 3 this year 
compared to Quarter 3 last year.  
  

Ref Indicator description Dec-20 Mar-21 Jun-21 Sep-21 Dec-21 RAG Target Floor 

WM01 Municipal waste* recycled and composted 46% 46% 47% 46% 46% AMBER 50% 45%

WM02 Municipal waste* converted to energy 52% 52% 51% 53% 54% GREEN 49% 44%

01+02 Municipal waste diverted from landfill 97.9% 98.1% 98.1% 99.0% 99.8% GREEN 99% 95%

WM03
Waste recycled and composted at Household 

Waste Recycling Centres (HWRCs)
67% 70% 69% 68% 66% AMBER 70% 65%

WM08
Overall score for mystery shopper assessment 

of Household Waste Recycling Centres 
N/a N/a 97% 96% 96% GREEN 96% 85%

P
age 139



Appendix 1 

8 
 

 

Division Corporate Director Cabinet Members 

Environment & Waste Simon Jones Susan Carey 

 
Activity Indicators (Rolling 12 months) 
 
 

 

 

WM05 – Volumes of kerbside waste remain above expected levels, although they are on a reducing trend. Most collection authorities 
continue to collect side waste, which is waste presented by residents next to their containers. Certain Districts have struggled to 
maintain collection schedules due to personnel shortages and sickness. 
 
WM06 – The volume of waste taken to HWRCs did not increase on the last Quarter, being around 70% of expected levels. There are 
reports of residents continuing to attempt to re-use their waste in communities before attending the HWRC. When residents visit, they 
tend to visit less frequently but bring a larger load. Good levels of booking capacity exist which is spread evenly through the day. 
 
WM07 – Overall kerbside volumes taken to Allington remain above budget, but this, however, is necessary to avoid residual waste 
being disposed of via landfill.  Kerbside tonnage is showing signs of reducing but is still 10% higher than pre-pandemic levels, resulting 
in an increase in waste being taken to Allington compared to budgeted levels. 
 
 

  

Ref Indicator description Dec-20 Mar-21 Jun-21 Sep-21 Dec-21

In 

expected 

range?

WM05 Waste tonnage collected by District Councils 587,851 602,744 601,274 599,294 592,614 Above 550,000 530,000

WM06 Waste tonnage collected at HWRCs 79,993 73,002 89,405 96,438 95,721 Below 150,000 130,000

05+06 Total waste tonnage collected 667,844 675,746 690,680 695,731 687,444 Yes 700,000 660,000

WM07
Waste tonnage converted to energy at Allington 

Waste to Energy Plant
323,123 327,984 329,380 341,831 343,989 Above 340,000 320,000

Expected Range 

Upper | Lower

P
age 140



Appendix 1 

9 
 

Division Corporate Director Cabinet Member 

Environment & Waste Simon Jones Susan Carey 

 
Key Performance Indicator (reported quarterly in arrears) 
 

Ref Indicator description Jun-20 Sep-20 Dec-20 Mar-21 Jun-21 Sep-21 RAG Target Floor  

EW2 
Greenhouse Gas emissions from KCC 
estate (excluding schools) in tonnes  

19,102 18,235 16,940 16,251 16,519 16,601 GREEN 20,433 22,476 

 
EW2 – At the mid-year point for 2021/22 (Quarter 2 into Quarter 3) greenhouse gas emissions were slightly higher than those recorded 
in 2020/21. An increase was expected following the end of more significant COVID restrictions, but this was not as high as anticipated. 
This means we are ahead of where we expected to be at this point in making progress towards the KCC Net Zero by 2030 target. 
 
 
Key Performance Indicators (monthly) 
 

Ref Indicator description Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21 
Year to 

Date 
YTD 
RAG 

Target Floor  

EW1 
Percentage of statutory planning consultee 
responses submitted within 21 days 

94% 94% 97% 85% 100% 92% GREEN 85% 76% 

DT05 
Percentage of HWRC voucher applications 
completed online 

98% 99% 99% 99% 100% 99% GREEN 95% 85% 

 

P
age 141



T
his page is intentionally left blank



From:  Benjamin Watts, General Counsel 
 
To:   Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee – 17 March 2022 
 
Subject:  Work Programme  
    
Classification: Unrestricted  
    
Past and Future Pathway of Paper:   Standard agenda item 
 
 

Summary: This report gives details of the proposed work programme for the 
Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee. 
 
Recommendation:  The Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee is asked to 
consider and agree its Work Programme. 

 
 
1. Introduction  
1.1 The proposed work programme, appended to the report, has been compiled 

from items in the Future Executive Decision List and from actions identified 
during the meetings and at agenda setting meetings, in accordance with the 
Constitution. 

 
1.2 Whilst the chairman, in consultation with the cabinet members, is responsible 

for the programme’s fine tuning, this item gives all members of this cabinet 
committee the opportunity to suggest amendments and additional agenda items 
where appropriate. 
 

2. Work Programme  
2.1  The proposed work programme has been compiled from items in the Future 

Executive Decision List and from actions arising and from topics, within the 
remit of the functions of this cabinet committee, identified at the agenda setting 
meetings [Agenda setting meetings are held 6 weeks before a cabinet 
committee meeting, in accordance with the constitution].   
 

2.2   The cabinet committee is requested to consider and note the items within the 
proposed Work Programme, set out in appendix A to this report, and to suggest 
any additional topics to be considered at future meetings, where appropriate. 

 
2.3   The schedule of commissioning activity which falls within the remit of this 

cabinet committee will be included in the work programme and considered at 
future agenda setting meetings to support more effective forward agenda 
planning and allow members to have oversight of significant services delivery 
decisions in advance.   
 

2.4 When selecting future items, the cabinet committee should consider the 
contents of performance monitoring reports.  Any ‘for information’ items will be 

Page 143

Agenda Item 17



sent to members of the cabinet committee separately to the agenda and will not 
be discussed at the cabinet committee meetings. 

 
3. Conclusion 
3.1 It is vital for the cabinet committee process that the committee takes ownership 

of its work programme to deliver informed and considered decisions. A regular 
report will be submitted to each meeting of the cabinet committee to give 
updates of requested topics and to seek suggestions for future items to be 
considered. This does not preclude members making requests to the chairman 
or the Democratic Services Officer between meetings, for consideration. 

 
 

4. Recommendation:  The Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee is 
asked to consider and agree its Work Programme. 

 
5. Background Documents: None 
 
6. Contact details 
 
Report Author:  
Matthew Dentten 
Democratic Services Officer 
03000 414534 
matthew.dentten@kent.gov.uk 

 

Lead Officer: 
Benjamin Watts 
General Counsel 
03000 410466 
benjamin.watts@kent.gov.uk  
 

 

Page 144

mailto:benjamin.watts@kent.gov.uk


Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee – Work Programme 2022 

 

12 May 2022  
 

No. Item Additional Comments 
 

 Bus Feedback Portal update Bi-Annual 

 Fastrack Service, including ZEBRA (Zero Emission Bus Regional Areas)  

 Kent Design Guide  

 Minerals and Waste Consultation Outcomes  

 Traffic Management Act Part 6 Update  

 

6 July 2022 
 

No. Item Additional Comments 
 

 Annual Equality and Diversity Report Annual 

 

Items for Consideration that have not yet been allocated to a meeting 
North West Maidstone Transfer Station Requested at E&T Cabinet Committee on 16 July 2019 

Cycle Network - Update Requested at E&T Cabinet Committee on 18 January 2022 

Kent and Medway Energy and Low Emissions Strategy - Annual update Summer 2022 

Southern Water - Update  Requested at E&T Cabinet Committee on 18 January 2022. 

Late 2022 

Coastal Environment Plan Late 2022 

 

Item Cabinet Committee to receive item 

Verbal Updates by Cabinet Members and Corporate Director At each meeting 

Performance Dashboard  At each meeting 

Work Programme At each meeting 

Budget Consultation   Annually (November/December) 

Final Draft Budget  Annually (January) 

Strategic Risk Register Annually (March) 

Annual Equality and Diversity Report Annually (June/July) 

Winter Service Policy Annually (September) 

Bus Feedback Portal update Bi-Annual (every six months)  

Appendix A 

P
age 145



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Minutes of the meetings held on 18 January and 18 February 2022
	ETCC - Draft Minutes - 18 February 2022

	8 Decisions taken between Cabinet Committee Meetings
	9 22/00022 - Active Travel Funding Tranche 2
	PROD

	10 22/00023 - Transport for the South East continuation of voluntary participation
	PROD

	11 22/00025 - Bearsted Road Improvement Scheme
	Appendix A
	Sheets and Views
	70040984-SK-0086


	Appendix B
	Sheets and Views
	70040984-SK-0087


	Appendix D
	Appendix E

	12 22/00026 - Heritage Conservation Strategy
	PROD
	Heritage Conservation Strategy

	14 Green Economy - Prospects and Opportunities
	15 Risk Register
	16 Performance Dashboard
	Performance Dashboard - Appendix

	17 Work Programme
	Work Programme - Appendix


